
 EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION  
AGENDA  

Special Meeting of the Board of Directors  
Zoom Meeting  

June 12th, 2020 @ 11:00 AM 
Join Zoom Meeting 

Meeting ID: 862 0232 8277 
Password: 642088 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Public Comment 
 

3. Approval of the Minutes of the May 21st, 2020 Board of Directors Meeting 
(Attachment) 

 
4. Executive Directors Report 

A. Status Update on EGR Bus Yard at Mandela Parkway 
i. Review of Project Schedule 

ii. CTC Approval of Airspace Lease – June 24th  
iii. Status Update on Bid Package & Advertisement of Construction 

 
5. Business Items 

A. Review and Consider Approval of Airspace Lease with Caltrans (Attachments) 
B. Review and Consider Approval of Purchase Agreement with Classic Graphics for 

the Purchase and Installation of Protective Barriers on all Fleet Vehicles for a 
Not to Exceed Amount of $43,000 (Attachment) 

 
6. Confirm date of Next Meeting – July 16th, 2020 @ 9:15 AM  

 
7. Adjournment   

Chair 
Geoffrey Sears, 
Wareham Development 

Vice Chair 
Betsy Cooley, At-Large 
Residential Member 

Secretary  
Vacant 
 
Treasurer 
Andrew Allen 
At-Large Business 
Member 

Directors 
Peter Schreiber,  
Pixar 

Colin Osborne 
At-Large Business 
Member 
 
Kassandra Kappelos 
Public Market 
 
Bobby Lee, At-Large 
Residential Member 
 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86202328277?pwd=dWFPZnRQcFpDSVgvb3ZSU0UzUHE0Zz09


EMERYVILLE TRANSPORATATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

ACTION SUMMARY MINUTES 

Board of Directors Meeting 

May 21, 2020 

 

 
1. Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order at 9:16 AM by Chair, Geoffrey Sears. 

 

Directors Present:  Geoff Sears, Betsy Cooley, Andrew Allen, Bobby Lee, Peter Schreiber, Colin 

Osborne, Kassandra Kappelos 

Staff Present: Roni Hattrup, Tiffany Gephart, Gray-Bowen-Scott 

Others: Christine Daniel, City of Emeryville 

 
2. Public Comment 

No public comment.  

 

3. Approval of the Minutes of the March 19th, 2020 Board of Directors Meeting (Attachment) 
   Betsy motioned for approval of the minutes.  Bobby Lee seconded the motion. 

 

This item was approved by a unanimous vote. 

AYE: 7 

NAY: 0 

ABSTAIN: 0 

 

4. Executive Directors Report 
A. Status Update on EGR Bus Yard at Mandela Parkway 

i. Review of Project Schedule 
ii. CTC Approval of Airspace Lease 

 
Roni provided an overview of the project schedule. Roni commented that CTC postponed 
the approval of the Airspace lease and that the new approval date is scheduled for June 
24th. Roni reviewed the project schedule and noted that the critical Board items include: 
approval of the CA firm bid package and Airspace Lease Agreement by June 12th, 
approval of contractor selection and contract, and approval to order equipment for the 
modular office units by July 16th. Roni commented that staff will coordinate with the 
Board to schedule a special meeting on June 12th to approve the bid package and 
airspace lease agreement. 
 
 
Roni expressed her concerns of low interest by contractors.   Andrew Allen and 
Kassandra Kappelos offered to reach out to some firms for construction advertisement. 
Roni commented that she would welcome the referrals and would ensure a fair 
procurement process.  
 

 
B. Status Update on Emery Go Round Ridership & Performance during COVID-19  

 
Roni commented that ridership has remained steady at nearly 500 riders per day with no 
notable increase as of May 10, 2020. Roni noted that staff will watch ridership closely to 



EMERYVILLE TRANSPORATATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

ACTION SUMMARY MINUTES 

Board of Directors Meeting 

May 21, 2020 

 
maintain social distancing and appropriate staffing. Roni noted that she anticipates 
returning to a normal staff plan in the September/October timeframe regardless of 
ridership to avoid overcrowding and will monitor what other transit agencies are doing.   
 
Roni noted that service has maintained a 90% on-time performance rate, and she may 
need evaluate timing delays on Shellmound/Powell route. 
 
Colin Osborne asked if there have been any comments or concerns from the drivers. Roni 
noted that she has not heard any concerns from drivers and that people seem to be 
honoring social distancing. So far, no one has been sick within the staff.  
 

C. Review of Annual Report Draft  
Roni presented the Emery Go-Round Draft Annual Report. Roni commented that the 2019 
At-a-Glance and Ridership sections have been modified for 2019. Roni noted that  
throughout the state of California and the Bay Area there has been a decline in public 
transit usage during off-peak hours beginning in 2017 due to a decrease in workers living 
in urban areas and an increase in the utilization of ride hailing services. 
 
Roni noted that the summary of financials are taken directly from the financial 
statements and include revenue from reimbursables as well as the depreciation of 
equipment. The pie charts include ETMA revenue and expenditures and exclude revenue 
from reimbursables. Geoff Sears requested a footnote be added to clarify the 
discrepancy.  
 
Geoff Sears asked where the report is posted and if it will be available on the buses. Roni 
commented that the report will be available on the Emery Go-Round website and mailed 
to every member in the PBID. Roni commented that would not be made available on the 
buses.  

 

 
5. Business Items 

A. Construction Administration Services (Attachments) 
i. Review of Statement of Qualifications 

ii. Selection of Construction Administration Firm 
iii. Approval of Professional Services Agreement and Authorization of Phase 1 Project 

Budget 
 
Roni noted that of the 3 firms approached one firm submitted a statement of 
qualifications, and the other two declined due to lack of availability.    
 
Roni reviewed the statement of qualifications and approach submitted by Zoon and key 
tasks. Roni noted that Gray-Bowen-Scott has an existing working relationship with the 
firm and the qualifications have been reviewed and the proposed tasks and budgets are 
reasonable.  
 
Roni commented that she requested a modified cost proposal for tasks 4 and 5 from 
Zoon in order to work with Zoon and staff to further revise and detail those tasks. Roni 



EMERYVILLE TRANSPORATATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

ACTION SUMMARY MINUTES 

Board of Directors Meeting 

May 21, 2020 

 
requested Board approval to execute the agreement for a not to exceed amount of 
$78,100 to be billed hourly for tasks 1, 2,3 6 and 7 and that tasks 4 and 5 will be revised 
and presented to the Board in the future.  

 
Andrew Allen motioned for Approval and Geoff Sears seconded the motion to approve 
the Professional Services agreement and authorization of Phase 1 project budget with 
Zoon.  
 
This item was approved by unanimous vote. 
AYE: 7 
NAY: 0 
ABSTAIN: 0 
 
 

B. Revenue/Cost Projections and 2021 Preliminary Budget (Attachments) 
i. Review and Discuss Revenue and Cost Projections through 2030 

ii. Review and Consider approval of the 2021 Preliminary Budget and  
iii. Recommendation for PBID Levy increase to Emeryville City Council  

 
Roni reviewed the three budget scenarios: Scenario 1 with a 3% increase per year in PBID 
levy assessments starting in 2021; scenario 2 with a 5% increase per year  for calendar 
year 2021-2024 and 3% thereafter; scenario 3 with a 4% increase per year from 2021-
2024 and annual 3% increase thereafter. Roni recommended Scenario 1, a 3% increase 
per year in PBID levy assessments. 

 
Bobby Lee asked why not approve a levy increase of 5%. Roni noted that she anticipates 
some reductions in overall costs and want to be mindful of members who may be facing 
financial hardships. 

 
Andrew motioned for approval, Betsy seconded the motion to approve the 2021 
preliminary budget and the recommendation to Emeryville City Council of an annual 3% 
increase in PBID levy assessments.  
 
This item was approved by unanimous vote. 
AYE: 7 
NAY: 0 
ABSTAIN: 0 
 
Christine Daniels noted that she appreciated the 3% increase recommendation. The City 
of Emeryville anticipates a significant revenue shortfall over the next two years.  
 

C. Review of 1st Quarter Financial Report (Attachment) 
Roni provided a summary of the 1st quarter financial reports. Roni noted that ETMA has received 
40% of projected revenue for Emery Go Round. Roni will be going to the City of Emeryville to 
request the release of CIP funds for the Bus Yard project. Roni noted that ETMA 1st quarter direct 
bill invoices have gone out but not all payments have been received.  
 



EMERYVILLE TRANSPORATATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

ACTION SUMMARY MINUTES 

Board of Directors Meeting 

May 21, 2020 

 
Roni noted that budget costs and overall expenses for direct costs is running high at 27% due 
installation of APC equipment in 2019 that was paid in 2020. Indirect expenses are trending 
below budget and actual expenditures for professional for services is at 20% and not 13% as 
reflected in the 1st quarter report.  
 
Roni noted that total TMA expenditures are approximately 20% and budget expenditures for 
West Berkeley Shuttle and 8 to Go are on target.  

 
6. Confirm date of Next Meeting – June 12th, 2020 @ 9:15 AM (NOTE SPECIAL MEETING DATE) 

Roni commented that Tiffany Gephart will reach out to Board members to request availability for 

the special meeting on June 12th.  

 

7. Adjournment  
The meeting was adjourned at 10:25AM.   

 



 
 

00028147.6   
 1 

(Lease Area No 04-ALA-580-34) 
(Account No. 04-ALA-580-0034-04) 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
AIRSPACE LEASE 

 
THIS LEASE, dated July 1, 2020 (the "Execution Date") is by and between the STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, acting by and through its Department of Transportation, hereinafter called "Landlord," 
and EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION, a California nonprofit 
corporation, doing business as Emery-Go-Round, hereinafter called "Tenant." 

 
W I T N E S S E T H 

 
For and in consideration of the rental and of the covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth to be 
kept and performed by the Tenant, Landlord hereby leases to Tenant and Tenant hereby leases from 
Landlord the Premises herein described for the term, at the rental and subject to and upon all of the 
terms, covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth. 

 
ARTICLE 1. SUMMARY OF LEASE PROVISIONS 

 
Landlord: California Department of Transportation 
 
Tenant: Emeryville Transportation Management Association 
 
Premises:  04-ALA-580-34 located in the City of Oakland County of Alameda, State of California, and 
more particularly described in Article 2. 
 
Lease Term: Thirty (30) years, commencing on July 1, 2020  and expiring on June 30, 2050. 
 
Monthly Rent:  $ 14,325.00 (Article 4) 
Security Deposit: $ 14,325.00 (Article 18) 
 
Use:  Bus and vehicle parking, staging and dispatching, and as a bus driver rest area, and for office and 
administrative functions. (Article 5) 
 
Commercial General Liability Insurance: $5 million (Article 10) 
Business Automobile Liability Insurance: $1 million (Article 10) 
Workers' Compensation Insurance: $1 million (Article 10) 

 
Addresses for Notices: (Article 19) 
 
To Landlord: 

Department of Transportation 
Right of Way Airspace Development MS 11 
US Mail:  PO Box 23440, Oakland, CA 94623-0440 
Street Address:  111 Grand Avenue, 13th floor, Oakland, CA 94612-3771 

Jim Bozionelos
As previously mentioned, it’s just easier on our end to include a firm date instead of a floating “commencement date”



 
 

00028147.6   
 2 

 
To Tenant: 

Veronica "Roni" Hattrup 
Emeryville Transportation Management Association 
Gray-Bowen-Scott 
1211 Newell Ave., Suite 200 
Walnut Creek, CA 94596 
T: (925)937-0980 ext. 212 
Email: Roni@graybowenscott.com 
 
References in this Article 1 to the other Articles are for convenience and designate other Articles 

where references to the particular item contained in the Summary of Lease Provisions appear. Each 
reference in this Lease to the Summary of Lease Provisions contained in this Article 1 shall be construed 
to incorporate all of the terms provided under the Summary of Lease Provisions. In the event of any 
conflict between the Summary of Lease Provisions and the balance of the Lease, the latter shall control. 

 
ARTICLE 2. PREMISES 

 
Landlord hereby leases to Tenant, and Tenant hereby leases from Landlord, for the Lease Term, 

at the monthly rent, and upon the covenants and conditions hereinafter set forth, that certain Premises 
known as Freeway Lease Area No. 04-ALA-580-34, situated in the City of Oakland and County of 
Alameda, said land or interest therein being shown on the map or plat marked "Exhibit A," attached hereto 
and by this reference made a part hereof. 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM all those portions of the above-described Premises occupied by the 
supports and foundations of the existing structure. 

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM all that portion of the Premises above a horizontal plane 5 
feet below the underside of the superstructure of the existing structure, which plane extends to a line 10 
feet, measured horizontally, beyond the outermost protrusion of the superstructure of the structure. 

California Civil Code Section 1938 requires commercial landlords to disclose to tenants whether 
the property being leased has undergone inspection by a Certified Access Specialist ("CASp") to 
determine whether the property meets all applicable construction-related accessibility requirements. 
Tenant is hereby advised that the Premises have NOT been inspected by a CASp. 

A CASp can inspect the subject premises and determine whether the subject Premises comply 
with all of the applicable construction-related accessibility standards under state law. Although state law 
does not require a CASp inspection of the subject Premises, the commercial property owner or lessor may 
not prohibit the lessee or tenant from obtaining a CASp inspection of the subject Premises for the 
occupany or potential occupancy of the lessee or tenant, if requested by the lessee or tenant. The parties 
shall mutually agree on the arrangement for the time and manner of the CASp inspection, the payment 
of the fee for the CASp inspection, and the cost of making any repairs necessary to correct violations of 
construction-related accessibility standards within the Premises. Any CASp inspection shall be 
conducted in compliance with reasonable rules in effect at the Premises with regard to such inspections 
and shall be subject to Landlord's prior written consent. Tenant shall be responsible for all costs 
associated with a CASp inspection. 

This Lease is subject to (1) all easements, covenants, conditions, restrictions, reservations, rights 
of way, liens, encumbrances and other matters of record, (2) all matters discoverable by physical 
inspection of the Premises or that would be discovered by an accurate survey of the Premises and (3) all 



 
 

00028147.6   
 3 

matters known to Tenant or of which Tenant has notice, constructive or otherwise including, without 
limitations, those shown on attached Exhibit "A". 

 
ARTICLE 3. TERM 

 
The term of this Lease shall be for Thirty (30) Years, commencing July 1, 2020, and expiring on 

June 30, 2050.  Tenant shall notify Landlord in writing 30 days prior to vacating the Premises to arrange 
a Premises inspection. If Tenant vacates without notice to Landlord, or remains in possession of all or 
any part of the Premises after the expiration of the term hereof, with or without the express or implied 
consent of Landlord, such tenancy shall be from month to month per Section 19.10 herein. 
 
ARTICLE 4. RENT 

 
4.1 Monthly Rent 

 
Tenant shall pay to Landlord as monthly rent, without deduction, setoff, prior notice, or demand, 

the sum of $ 14,325.00 per month, in advance on the first day of each month, commencing on January 1, 
2021 and continuing during the Lease Term.  

 
Monthly rent for any partial month shall be prorated at the rate of 1/30th of the monthly rent per 

day. All rent checks shall have printed on their face the following tenancy reference number 04-ALA-
580-0034-04 and shall be paid to Landlord at the following address: State of California, Department of 
Transportation, Attention: Cashier, P. O. Box 168019, Sacramento, CA 95816-8019. 

 
4.2 Adjustment to Rent 

 
The monthly rent provided for in Section 4.1 shall be subject to adjustment as of the first day of 

the third year of the term and every year thereafter, via a fixed 3% increase (rounded to closest $5.00 
increment), subject to adjustment pursuant to Section 4.4 below. Table 4.2.1 below provides the Tenant's 
rent obligation for the first ten (10) years of the Lease Term.   

 
Table 4.2.1 
Lease Year                           Period  Rent 
Year 1a   July 1, 2020 – Dec 31, 2020  $          0.00 
Year 1b    Jan 1, 2021 – June 30, 2021  $ 14,325.00 
Year 2   July 1, 2021 – June 30, 2022  $ 14,325.00 
Year 3   July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2023  $ 14,755.00 
Year 4   July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2024  $ 15,195.00 
Year 5   July 1, 2024 – June 30, 2025  $ 15,655.00 
Year 6 April 1, 2025 – March 31, 2026  $ 16,125.00 
Year 7 April 1, 2016 – March 31, 2027  $ 16,605.00 
Year 8 April 1, 2027 – March 31, 2028  $ 17,100.00 
Year 9 April 1, 2028 – March 31, 2029  $ 17,615.00 
Year 10 April 1, 2029 – March 31, 2030  $ 18,145.00 
Year 11 April 1, 2030 – March 31, 2031  $ 18,690.00 (subject to reevaluation) 
 

 

Jim Bozionelos
My intent is to approximate the end of construction.  We can extend this date a few more months if unreasonable to complete by end of the year.



 
 

00028147.6   
 4 

4.3 Landlord's Compensation upon Assignment, Transfer or Sublease of Tenant's Leasehold 
 

(a) In the event that Tenant voluntarily assigns, transfers or subleases any of Tenant's rights in 
the Premises, Tenant shall pay to Landlord compensation in connection with the transaction in an amount 
equal to fifty percent (50%) of any and all consideration, whether in present payments or in future 
payments, which Tenant receives from an assignee, transferee or subtenant in excess of the amount of 
rent Tenant is obligated to pay to Landlord under this Lease. 

(b) Payment by Tenant of the amount of compensation required under this Section 4.3 is a 
condition to Landlord's giving its consent to any assignment, transfer or sublease under Section 16.1, 
and Landlord may withhold its consent to any such assignment, transfer or sublease until this 
compensation has been paid. In addition, before Landlord gives its consent to any such transaction, 
Tenant shall deliver to the assignee, transferee or subtenant a written summary of all sums due and owing 
to Landlord under this section and shall deliver to Landlord a written acknowledgement by the assignee, 
transferee or subtenant that said person affirms that the sums are due and owing to Landlord and that 
said person accepts responsibility for ensuring that such sums are paid directly to Landlord. 

 
4.4 Reevaluation of Monthly Rent 

 
(a) Landlord, at its sole discretion, expressly reserves the right to reevaluate the monthly rent 

twice during the term of this Lease.  As of the commencement of the 11th, and 21styears after the 
commencement of the initial term, or as soon thereafter as Landlord desires, a fair market lease rate may 
be determined in the manner set forth below and shall be established as the monthly rent commencing 
on the start of such 11th and 21st years or as soon thereafter upon the running of the notice period as 
provided for below.  If a new rent determined via a reevaluation does not take effect on the 11th and 21st 
year of the Lease term, then the rent will continue to adjust annually at the set 3% fixed amount until a 
reevaluation, if any, takes place. Landlord shall not be required to provide any further notice to Tenant 
regarding annual rent adjustments during the Lease term. 

(b) The monthly rent established by this section shall continue to be subject to the 3% annual 
adjustment established in Section 4.2. Table 4.2.1 shall be amended to reflect the new monthly rent for 
the remaining Lease Term pursuant to the reevaluation. 

(c) The term "fair market lease rate" means the highest lease rate estimated in terms of money 
which the leased premises, excluding improvements constructed by Tenant thereon, would bring if 
exposed for lease in the open market, with a reasonable time allowed to find a tenant, leasing with full 
knowledge of the purpose and uses to which the leased premises is being put and the restrictions on use 
contained in Article 5 of this Lease. 

(d) The parties intend to establish the fair market lease rate through negotiation. At least 90 days 
prior to implementation of a new reevaluated lease rate, Landlord shall notice Tenant of its intent to 
reevaluate the rent, and shall propose to Tenant a new fair market lease rate. In an effort to encourage 
productive negotiations, if Landlord and Tenant have not mutually agreed upon the fair market lease rate 
for the Premises 60 days after the notice, after engaging in good-faith negotiations to agree upon such 
fair market lease rate, then Landlord shall unilaterally set the fair market lease rate based on data 
collected from a rent survey of reasonably comparable Caltrans and non-Caltrans owned properties and 
shall use the highest per square foot rate paid by a tenant for a comparable property (but adjusting for 
the fact of the improvements constructed by Tenant on the Premises), with a comparable use within 
approximately a one mile radius of the subject Premises. 

(e) If Landlord unilaterally sets the fair market lease rate, Tenant shall have the option to accept 
the new lease rate or Tenant may object to the new lease rate and elect to terminate the Lease with no 
penalty by providing to Landlord a 30 Day Notice of its intent to Quit.  Such termination notice must be 

Roni Hattrup
Did we agree to re-evaluation every 10 years?  That was my recollection from our 2/13/20 call.  



 
 

00028147.6   
 5 

provided by Tenant to Landlord in writing.  Tenant’s election to Quit shall place the Tenant in the same 
legal position as if the entire term of this Lease had run its course and expired.  Tenant shall have no 
further rights other than those expressed within this Lease relevant to the natural expiration of the term 
of the Lease.  In the case that Tenant does not provide notice of intent to terminate, the new fair market 
lease rate established by Landlord shall become effective on the first day of the month following 
Landlord’s 90 day notice of its intent to implement the new reevaluated lease rate.  For example, if 
Landlord provides notice to Tenant of its proposed new rent on February 1, 2021, the new rent would 
take effect on May 1, 2021.  If Tenant fails to pay the new fair market lease rate, Landlord shall treat 
Tenant’s failure to pay the new lease rate as a material breach. 

 
4.5 Reevaluation on Change in Use 

 
Landlord expressly reserves the right to establish a new monthly rent as a condition to Landlord’s 

approval of any use of the Premises not specifically permitted by Section 5.1 and as a condition to any 
amendment to or changes in the uses permitted by that section. 

 
ARTICLE 5. USE 

 
5.1 Specified Use 

 
The Premises shall be used and occupied by Tenant only and exclusively for the purpose of bus 

and vehicle parking, staging and dispatching, and as a bus driver rest area, and ofr office and administrative 
functions related to Tenant’s Emery Go Round transportation operations and for no other purpose 
whatsoever without obtaining prior written consent of Landlord and the concurrence of the Federal 
Highway Administration. Landlord expressly reserves the right to establish a new monthly rent as a 
condition to Landlord's approval of any use of the leased premises not specifically permitted by this 
section.   

Tenant intends to execute an operations and maintenance agreement with a third party 
("Contractor") that will perform day to day transportation operations for Tenant.  Contractor may also 
utilize the Premises for the uses specified herein, and all terms of this Lease regarding the use of the 
Premises also shall apply to Contractor.  
 
5.2 Condition of Premises 

 
Tenant hereby accepts the Premises in the AS-IS condition existing as of the Execution Date, 

subject to all applicable zoning, municipal, county, state and federal laws, ordinances and regulations 
governing and regulating the use of the Premises, and accepts this Lease subject thereto and to all matters 
disclosed thereby and by any exhibits attached hereto. Tenant acknowledges that neither Landlord nor 
any agent of Landlord has made any representation or warranty with respect to the condition of the 
Premises or the suitability thereof for the conduct of Tenant's business, nor has Landlord agreed to 
undertake any modification, alteration or improvement to the Premises except as provided in this Lease. 

Except as may be otherwise expressly provided in this Lease, the taking of possession of the 
Premises by Tenant shall in itself constitute acknowledgement that the Premises are in good and 
Tenantable condition, and Tenant agrees to accept the Premises in its presently existing condition "as 
is", and that the Landlord shall not be obligated to make any improvements or modifications thereto 
except to the extent that may otherwise be expressly provided in this Lease. 

Tenant represents and acknowledges that it has made a sufficient investigation of the conditions 



 
 

00028147.6   
 6 

of the Premises existing immediately prior to the execution of this Lease (including investigation of the 
surface, subsurface and groundwater for contamination and hazardous materials) and is satisfied that the 
Premises will safely support the type of improvements, if any, to be constructed and maintained by 
Tenant upon the Premises, that the Premises is otherwise fully fit physically and lawfully for the uses 
required and permitted by this Lease and that Tenant accepts all risks associated therewith. 

Tenant acknowledges that (1) Landlord has informed Tenant prior to the commencement of the 
term that the Landlord does not know nor has reasonable cause to believe that any release of any 
hazardous material has come to be located on or beneath the Premises; (2) prior to the commencement 
of the term, the Landlord has made available to Tenant, for review and inspection, records in the 
possession or control of the Landlord which might reflect the potential existence of hazardous materials 
on or beneath the Premises; (3) Landlord has provided Tenant access to the Premises for a reasonable 
time and upon reasonable terms and conditions for purposes of providing to Tenant the opportunity to 
investigate, sample and analyze the soil and groundwater on the Premises for the presence of hazardous 
materials; (4) by signing this Lease, Tenant represents to Landlord that, except as otherwise may be 
stated on "Exhibit C" attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein, Tenant does not know 
nor has reasonable cause to believe that any release of hazardous material has come to be located on or 
beneath the Premises; and (5) with respect to any hazardous material which Tenant knows or has 
reasonable cause to believe has come or will come to be located on or beneath the Premises, Tenant has 
listed the hazardous material on attached "Exhibit C" and agrees promptly to commence and complete 
the removal of or other appropriate remedial action regarding the hazardous material at no cost or 
expense to Landlord and in full compliance with all applicable laws, regulations, permits, approvals and 
authorizations. The phrase "hazardous material," as used herein, has the same meaning as that phrase has 
in Section 5.7 of this Lease.   

Tenant agrees that, except as otherwise expressly provided in this Lease, Tenant is solely 
responsible without any cost or expense to the Landlord to take all actions necessary to improve and 
continuously use the Premises as required by this Lease and in compliance with all applicable laws and 
regulations; provided, however, Tenant shall not be responsible for any hazardous materials that migrate 
onto the Premises from sources outside the Premises. 

. 
 
5.3 Compliance with Law 

 
Tenant shall not use the Premises or permit anything to be done in or about the Premises which 

will in any way conflict with any law, statute, zoning restriction, ordinance or governmental rule or 
regulation or requirements of duly constituted public authorities now in force or which may hereafter be 
in force, or with the requirements of the State Fire Marshal or other similar body now or hereafter 
constituted, relating to or affecting the condition, use or occupancy of the Premises. The judgment of 
any court of competent jurisdiction or the admission of Tenant in any action against Tenant, whether 
Landlord be a party thereto or not, that Tenant has violated any law, statute, ordinance or governmental 
rule, regulation or requirement, shall be conclusive of that fact as between Landlord and Tenant. Tenant 
shall not allow the Premises to be used for any unlawful purpose, nor shall Tenant cause, maintain or 
permit any nuisance in, on or about the Premises. Tenant shall not commit or suffer to be committed any 
waste in or upon the Premises. 

 
5.4 Compliance with Requirements of Lease Application 

 
By executing this Lease, Tenant certifies that all the statements made in the lease application 

Tenant submitted to Landlord in connection with this Lease are true and correct. If at any time during 

Roni Hattrup
Per my recollection, this was an item we agreed to on our 2/13/20 call.



 
 

00028147.6   
 7 

the term of this Lease Landlord discovers that any statement Tenant made in the Lease Application is 
false, this Lease may be terminated immediately by Landlord and be of no further force or effect. 

 
5.5 Petroleum Products 

Tenant shall not install facilities for, nor operate on the Premises, a gasoline or petroleum supply 
station. Tenant shall not permit on the Premises any vehicles used or designed for the transportation or 
storage of gasoline or petroleum products. Tenant shall also not permit on the Premises any bulk storage 
of gasoline or petroleum products. 

Landlord acknowledges that vehicles will be parked on the Premises which contain petroleum 
products.  Tenant may use petroleum products in connection with its transportation operations on the 
Premises, subject to compliance with all applicable federal, state and local requirements. Tenant or 
Contractor may conduct Light Maintenance of Emery Go Round fleet vehicles on the Premises.  For 
purposes of this Lease "Light Maintenance" shall mean: (i) the performance of minor repairs to vehicles, 
including exterior and interior lighting, door mechanics, tires, and windshield wipers; and (ii) the 
addition ("topping off" only, as distinguished from draining and/or changing, as the case may be) of 
petroleum-based or other motor vehicle fluids in Tenant's buses in compliance with terms and conditions 
provided in this Paragraph 5.5, Paragraph 5.3 above and Paragraph 5.7 below; and (iii) the exterior 
cleaning of Tenant's and Contractor's buses.  Tenant shall employ industry standard best management 
practices to prevent fluid spills onto the surface of the Premises, and contain all spills if at any time fluids 
contact the Premises.  Tenant shall not store tires on the Premises. 

 
5.6 Explosives and Flammable Materials 

 
The Premises shall not be used for the manufacture of flammable materials or explosives, or for 

any storage of flammable materials, explosives or other materials or other purposes deemed by Landlord 
to be a potential fire or other hazard to the transportation facility. The operation and maintenance of the 
Premises shall be subject to regulations of Landlord so as to protect against fire or other hazard impairing 
the use, safety and appearance of the transportation facility. The occupancy and use of the Premises shall 
not be such as will permit hazardous or unreasonably objectionable smoke, fumes, vapors or odors to rise 
above the surface of the traveled way of the transportation facility. 

 
5.7 Hazardous Materials 

 
Tenant shall at all times and in all respects comply with all federal, state and local laws, 

ordinances and regulations, including, but not limited to, the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 
U.S.C. section 1251, et seq.), Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (42 U.S.C. section 6901, et seq.), 
Safe Drinking Water Act (42 U.S.C. section 300f, et seq.), Toxic Substances Control Act (15 U.S.C. 
section 2601, et seq.), Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. section 7401, et seq.), Comprehensive Environmental 
Response, Compensation and Liability Act (42 U.S.C. section 9601, et seq.), Safe Drinking Water and 
Toxic Enforcement Act (California Health and Safety Code section 25249.5, et seq.), other applicable 
provisions of the California Health and Safety Code (section 25100, et seq., and section 39000, et seq.), 
California Water Code (section 13000, et seq.), and other comparable state laws, regulations and local 
ordinances relating to industrial hygiene, environmental protection or the use, analysis, generation, 
manufacture, storage, disposal or transportation of any oil, flammable explosives, asbestos, urea 
formaldehyde, radioactive materials or waste, or other hazardous, toxic, contaminated or polluting 
materials, substances or wastes, including, without limitation, any "hazardous substances" under any 
such laws, ordinances or regulations (collectively "Hazardous Materials Laws"). As used in the 



 
 

00028147.6   
 8 

provisions of this Lease, "hazardous materials" include any "hazardous substance" as that term is defined 
in section 25316 of the California Health and Safety Code and any other material or substance listed or 
regulated by any Hazardous Materials Law or posing a hazard to health or the environment. Except as 
otherwise expressly permitted in this Lease, Tenant shall not use, create, store or allow any hazardous 
materials on the premises. Fuel stored in a motor vehicle for the exclusive use in such vehicle is excepted. 

In no case shall Tenant cause or allow the deposit or disposal of any hazardous materials on the 
Premises. Landlord, or its agents or contractors, shall at all times have the right to go upon and inspect 
the Premises and the operations thereon to assure compliance with the requirements herein stated. This 
inspection may include taking samples of substances and materials present for testing, and/or the testing 
of soils or underground tanks on the Premises. 

In the event Tenant breaches any of the provisions of this Section, this Lease may be terminated 
immediately by Landlord and be of no further force or effect. It is the intent of the parties hereto that 
Tenant shall be responsible for and bear the entire cost of removal and disposal of hazardous materials 
introduced to the Premises during Tenant's period of use and possession as owner, operator or Tenant of 
the Premises. Tenant shall also be responsible for any clean-up and decontamination on or off the 
Premises necessitated by the introduction of such hazardous materials on the Premises. Tenant shall not 
be responsible for or bear the cost of removal or disposal of hazardous materials introduced to the 
Premises by any party other than Tenant during any period prior to commencement of Tenant's period 
of use and possession of the Premises as owner, operator or Tenant. 

Tenant shall further hold Landlord, and its officers and employees, harmless from all 
responsibility, liability and claim for damages resulting from the presence or use of hazardous materials 
on the Premises during Tenant's period of use and possession of the Premises. 

 
5.8 Signs 

 
Not more than four (4) advertising signs of a size not greater than thirty (30) square feet of surface 

area may be erected on the Premises. The wording on these signs shall be limited to Tenant's name or 
trade name, the words "Parking," or "Auto Parking," a statement of rates, and a directional arrow. The 
location of all these signs shall be subject to Landlord's prior approval. None of these signs shall be 
attached to or painted on any bridge structure or building without the express written consent of 
Landlord. All of these signs shall also comply with all applicable requirements of local governmental 
entitles, including governmental approval and payment of any fees. 

Except as set forth in the previous paragraph of this Section, Tenant shall not construct, erect, 
maintain or permit any sign, banner or flag upon the Premises without the prior written approval of 
Landlord. Tenant shall not place, construct or maintain upon the Premises any advertising media that 
include moving or rotating parts, searchlights, flashing lights, loudspeakers, phonographs or other similar 
visual or audio media. The term "sign" means any card, cloth, paper, metal, painted or wooden sign of 
any character placed for any purpose on or to the ground or any tree, wall, bush, rock, fence, building, 
structure, trailer or thing. Landlord may remove any unapproved sign, banner or flag existing on the 
Premises, and Tenant shall be liable to and shall reimburse Landlord for the cost of such removal plus 
interest as provided in Section 19.11 from the date of completion of such removal. 

 
5.9 Landlord's Rules and Regulations 

 
Tenant shall faithfully observe and comply with the rules and regulations that Landlord shall 

from time to time promulgate for the protection of the transportation facility and the safety of the 
traveling public. Landlord reserves the right from time to time to make reasonable modifications to said 
rules and regulations. The additions and modifications to those rules and regulations shall be binding 



 
 

00028147.6   
 9 

upon Tenant upon delivery of a copy of them to Tenant. 
 
5.10 Wrecked Vehicles 

 
Tenant shall not park or store wrecked or inoperable vehicles of any kind on the Premises. 

 
5.11 Vending 

 
No third party vending of any kind or character shall be conducted, permitted or allowed upon 

the Premises without the prior express written consent of Landlord. 
 
5.12 Water Pollution Control 

 
Tenant shall comply with all applicable State and Federal water pollution control requirements 

regarding storm water and non-storm water discharges from the Premises and will be responsible for all 
applicable permits including but not limited to the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) General Permit and Waste Discharge Requirements for Discharges of Stormwater Associated 
with Industrial Activities (Excluding Construction), the NPDES General Permit for Stormwater 
Discharges Associated with Construction and Land Disturbance Activities, and the Caltrans Municipal 
Separate Storm Sewer System NPDES Permit, and permits and ordinances issued to and promulgated by 
municipalities, counties, drainage districts, and other local agencies regarding discharges of storm water 
and non-storm water to sewer systems, storm drain systems, or any watercourses under the jurisdiction 
of the above agencies. Copies of the current storm water related NPDES permits are available on the 
State Water Resources Control Board's website at 
http://www.swrcb.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater/. 

Tenant understands the discharge of non-storm water into the storm sewer system is prohibited 
unless specifically authorized by one of the permits or ordinances listed above. In order to prevent the 
discharge of non-storm water into the storm sewer system, vehicle or equipment washing, fueling, 
maintenance and repair on the Premises is prohibited. 

In order to prevent the discharge of pollutants to storm water resulting from contact with 
hazardous material, the storage or stockpile of hazardous material on Premises is strictly prohibited. 

Tenant shall implement and maintain the Best Management Practices (BMPs) shown in the 
attached Stormwater Pollution Prevention Fact Sheet(s) for: Parking, Vehicle Storage, and Trash 
Removal marked "Exhibit B." Tenant shall identify any other potential sources of storm water and non-
storm water pollution resulting from Tenant's activities on the premises, which are not addressed by the 
BMPs, contained in the attached Fact Sheet(s), and shall implement additional BMPs to prevent pollution 
from those sources. Additional BMPs may be obtained from 2 other manuals: 

(1) Right of Way Property Management and Airspace Storm Water Guidance Manual available 
for review online at: www.dot.ca.gov/hq/row/rwstormwater, and 

(2) Construction Site Best Management Practices Manual, available for review online at: 
www.dot.ca.gov/hq/construc/stormwater/manuals.htm. 
In the event of conflict between the attached fact sheet(s), the above-referenced manuals, and this Lease, 
this Lease shall control. 

Tenant shall provide Landlord with the Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) code applicable 
to Tenant's facilities and activities on the Premises. A list of SIC codes regulated under the General 
Industrial Permit SIC codes may be found at the State Water Resources Control Board website: 
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater/gen_indus.shtml. Other SIC codes 
may be found at www.osha.gov/pls/imis/sicsearch.html. 

http://www.swrcb.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater/
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/row/rwstormwater
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/construc/stormwater/manuals.htm
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/construc/stormwater/manuals.htm
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater/gen_indus.shtml
http://www.osha.gov/pls/imis/sicsearch.html


 
 

00028147.6   
 10 

Landlord, or its agents or contractors, shall at all times have the right to enter and inspect the 
Premises and the operations thereon to assure compliance with the applicable permits, and ordinances 
listed above. Inspection may include taking samples of substances and materials present for testing, 
and/or the testing of storm sewer systems or watercourses on the Premises. 

 
ARTICLE 6. IMPROVEMENTS 

 
6.1 No Improvements Without Prior Written Consent of Landlord 

 
No improvements of any kind shall be placed in, on, or upon the Premises, and no alterations 

shall be made in, on, or upon the Premises without the prior written consent of Landlord and the 
concurrence of the Federal Highway Administration. Tenant may, at its sole expense, install and 
maintain any additional fencing and entrances that may be required by its use of the Premises, subject to 
the approval of the location by Landlord, the Federal Highway Administration and the City of Oakland 
and County of Alameda; provided that Tenant shall at its sole expense construct and maintain sidewalks 
and driveways at the locations where the additional entrances are installed. In the event Tenant violates 
any of the provisions of this Article, this Lease may be terminated immediately by Landlord and be of no 
further force or effect. 

 
6.2 Approved Improvements 

 
 Tenant has proposed, and Landlord has approved Tenant’s conceptual proposal to improve the 
Premises to support its Emery Go Round transportation operations.  Construction may not begin until 
Landlord provides final construction plan approvals pursuant to this Article. Tenant conceptually plans to 
install, at Tenant’s sole cost and expense: (As Applicable) 

a) Electric power pedestal, meter, service; 
b) Lighting; 
c) Paving 
d) Fencing. 

 
6.3 Encroachment Permit 

 
Tenant, prior to construction or alteration of any improvements on or of the leased premises, shall 

obtain an executed encroachment permit (the "Encroachment Permit") from Landlord. 
Issuance by Landlord of an Encroachment Permit shall be contingent upon Tenant's providing, 

at Landlord's sole discretion, all or a combination of, the following, to the extent applicable: 
(a) Final construction plans and detailed specifications. All such plans and specifications 

submitted by Tenant to Landlord shall be subject to the review and approval of Landlord, the State Fire 
Marshal and if on an interstate freeway the Federal Highway Administration. 

(b) Evidence of coverage that assures Landlord that sufficient monies will be available to 
complete the proposed construction or alteration. The amount of coverage shall be at least equal to the 
total estimated construction cost. Such coverage shall take one of the following forms: 

(1) Completion bond issued to Landlord as obligee. 
(2) Performance bond and labor and material bond or performance bond containing the 

provisions of the labor and material bond supplied by Tenant's contractor or contractors, provided said 
bonds are issued jointly to Tenant and Landlord as obligees. 

(3) Satisfactory evidence of availability of funds necessary for completion of the proposed 



 
 

00028147.6   
 11 

construction or alteration. 
(4) Any combination of the above. 
All bonds shall be issued by a company qualified to do business in the State of California and 

acceptable to Landlord. All bonds be in a form acceptable to Landlord and shall ensure faithful and full 
observance and performance by Tenant of all terms, conditions, covenants and agreements relating to 
the construction of improvements within the leased premises. 

(c) Liability insurance as provided in Article 10. 
(d) A copy of a building permit issued by the appropriate local jurisdiction. 
(e) A copy of Tenant's contract with the general contractor actually performing construction. 
(f) Note and Deed of Trust, if any. 
(g) Loan escrow instructions, if any. 
(h) Final landscaping and irrigation plans and detailed specifications including a maintenance 

plan for litter removal, watering, fertilization and replacement of landscaping. 
(i) Evidence of compliance with the applicable provisions of all federal, state and local 

environmental statutes, laws, regulations and ordinances. 
Tenant agrees to diligently apply for and meet all requirements for issuance of the Encroachment 

Permit and Landlord agrees to not unreasonably withhold issuance of said Encroachment Permit. Tenant 
is obligated to deliver to Landlord the documents described in subdivisions (a) through (i) of this section 
regardless of whether an Encroachment Permit may have been issued inadvertently before these 
documents have been provided to Landlord. 

 
6.4 Planning and Zoning 

 
Tenant's use and proposed improvements shall be subject to all applicable zoning, municipal, 

county, state and federal laws, ordinances and regulations governing and regulating the use of the 
Premises. 

 
6.5 Standard of Construction 

 
Tenant agrees that any improvements or construction upon the premises shall: (a) be consistent with all 
fire safety requirements including State Fire Marshall approval, (b) be subject to the approval of Landlord, 
and (c) in every respect comply with the laws, ordinances and regulations, federal, state, municipal or 
otherwise, that may govern construction of the same. Tenant shall not construct or place on the leased 
premises any improvements which impair Landlord's ability to maintain, operate, use, repair or improve 
any part of the transportation facility situated on the leased premises or on adjoining real property. Tenant 
shall save Landlord harmless of and from any loss or damage caused by reason of the construction of said 
improvements. 
 
6.6 Soil Testing 

 
At Tenant's sole cost and expense, Tenant shall secure soil compaction tests and other tests as 

necessary for construction of Tenant's improvements and for the support of the improvements on the 
underlying land or structures thereon. Tenant shall notify Landlord of the location of all test borings, 
which shall not materially interfere with the operation of any of Landlord's facilities located on the 
Premises.  Tenant hereby agrees that Landlord is making no representation regarding existing soil 
compaction or structural capability of the land or any existing structure thereon. Responsibility for any 
loss or damage caused by inadequate soil compaction or other structural capacity for Tenant's proposed 
improvements shall be subject to the indemnification provisions of Section 10.1 



 
 

00028147.6   
 12 

 
 
6.7 Commencement of Construction 

 
Tenant shall commence construction of the improvements described in Tenant's final 

construction plans and detailed specifications within 90 calendar days of receipt of the Encroachment 
Permit. In the event construction is not commenced within the time set forth herein, this Lease may be 
terminated by Landlord and thereafter be of no further force and effect. 

 
6.8 Completion of Construction and Occupancy of Improvements 

 
Construction of the improvements shall be completed consistent with the approved construction 

plans within 270 calendar days after the commencement of construction. Tenant shall not occupy or use 
any of the improvements until Tenant has received final building approval and a Certificate of 
Occupancy from the appropriate local agency and Landlord has issued to Tenant an executed 
Encroachment Permit Completion Notice.  In the event Tenant violates any of the provisions of this 
section, this Lease may be terminated by Landlord and be of no further force and effect. 

 
6.9 "As-Built" Plans 

 
Within ninety (90) days after completion of construction of improvements or alterations, 

Tenant shall furnish Landlord, at Tenant's expense, one set of "As-Built" plans, according to a scale 
and size reasonably designated by Landlord, showing said improvements as constructed in detail, 
including the location of underground and aboveground utility lines. 

 
6.10 Termination If Required Construction Proves Economically Infeasible 

 
This Lease requires Tenant to submit plans for any proposed improvements and construction 

activities conducted on the premises and to obtain an Encroachment Permit prior to beginning any 
construction related activities on the premises. If Landlord's Encroachment Permits office reviews 
Tenant's plans, and thereafter requires Tenant to construct certain improvements or to employ certain 
construction methods as a condition of the Encroachment Permit, Tenant shall have the option to elect 
not to proceed with the construction or to terminate this lease agreement if the required improvements 
or construction methods prove economically infeasible to Tenant. 

 
ARTICLE 7. SURRENDER OF PREMISES AT EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF LEASE 

 
At the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, Tenant shall peaceably and quietly leave, 

surrender, and yield up to Landlord the Premises together with all appurtenances and fixtures in good 
order, condition and repair, reasonable wear and tear excepted. 

 
ARTICLE 8. OWNERSHIP AND REMOVAL OF IMPROVEMENTS AND PERSONAL 
PROPERTY 

 
8.1 Ownership of Improvements During Term 

 
All improvements constructed on the premises by Tenant as permitted or required by this Lease 

shall, during the term of this Lease, be and remain the property of Tenant; provided, however, that 



 
 

00028147.6   
 13 

Tenant's rights and powers with respect to the improvements are subject to the terms and limitations of 
this Lease and Tenant's interest in such improvements shall terminate upon the expiration or earlier 
termination of this Lease. Following completion of construction, Tenant shall not remove any 
improvements from the premises nor waste, destroy or modify any improvements on the premises, except 
as specifically permitted by this Lease. At the expiration or termination of this Lease, all improvements 
constructed on the Premises by Tenant shall vest in Landlord. Tenant shall deliver said improvements to 
Landlord in good condition and repair, reasonable wear and tear, and damage due to destruction or 
condemnation, excepted, without compensation to Tenant, any subtenant or third party, free and clear of 
all claims to or against them by Tenant, any subtenant or third party, and Tenant shall defend and hold 
Landlord harmless from all liability arising from such claims or from the exercise by Landlord of its 
rights under this section. In the event said improvements are not delivered to Landlord in good condition 
and repair, reasonable wear and tear excepted, Landlord shall make the necessary maintenance and 
repairs and Tenant shall be liable to and shall reimburse Landlord for any such expenditures made, plus 
interest as provided in Section 22.11 from the date of completion of work. Landlord and Tenant covenant 
for themselves and all persons claiming under or through them that the improvements are real property. 

 
8.2 Removal of Personal Property and Ownership at Termination 

 
At the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, Landlord may, at Landlord's sole election, 

require the removal from the premises, at Tenant's sole cost and expense, of all personal property (other 
than fixtures), or of certain personal property (other than fixtures), as specified in the notice provided for 
below. A demand to take effect at the normal expiration of the term shall be effected by notice given at 
least thirty (30) days before the expiration date. A demand to take effect on any other termination of the 
term of this Lease shall be effectuated by notice given concurrently with notice of such termination or 
within ten (10) days after such termination. Tenant shall be liable to Landlord for costs incurred by 
Landlord in effecting the removal of personal property which Tenant has failed to remove after demand 
pursuant to this Section 8.2. 

Tenant may remove any personal property and trade fixtures from time to time within forty-five 
(45) days of the expiration of the term. Tenant shall repair all damage (structural or otherwise) caused 
by any such removal. Any personal property or trade fixtures not removed by Tenant within forty-five 
(45) days following expiration of the term shall be deemed to be abandoned by Tenant and shall, without 
compensation to Tenant, become the Landlord's property, free and clear of all claims to or against them 
by Tenant or any other person. 

 
8.3 Removal of Improvements at Termination 

 

Upon the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, Landlord may, upon written notice, 
require Tenant to remove, at the sole cost and expense of Tenant, and not later than ninety (90) days after 
the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, all structures, buildings and improvements of any kind 
whatsoever placed or maintained on the premises, whether below, on or above the ground by Tenant or 
others, including, but not limited to, foundations, structures, buildings, utility lines, switchboards, 
transformer vaults and all other service facilities constructed or installed upon the premises (except for 
paving, lighting, and fencing); and Tenant shall, upon the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, 
immediately restore, and quit and peacefully surrender possession of the premises to Landlord in at least 
as good and usable condition, acceptable to Landlord, as the same was in at the time of first occupation 
thereof by Tenant or others, ordinary wear and tear excepted, and shall, in any event, leave the surface 
of the ground in a level, graded condition, with no excavations, holes, hollows, hills or humps. Should 



 
 

00028147.6   
 14 

Tenant fail to so remove said structures, buildings and improvements and restore the premises, Landlord 
may sell, remove or demolish the same, and in the event of said sale, removal or demolition, Tenant shall 
reimburse Landlord for any cost or expense thereof in excess of any consideration received by Landlord 
as a result of such sale, removal or demolition.   

 
8.4 Liens 

 
(a) Exemption of Landlord from Liability 

 
Tenant shall at all times indemnify and save Landlord harmless from all claims for labor or 

materials in connection with construction, repair, alteration, or installation of structures, improvements, 
equipment or facilities by Tenant or Tenant's agents within the premises, and from the cost of defending 
against such claims, including attorney fees. 

 
(b) Tenant's Obligations 

 
In the event a lien is imposed upon the premises as a result of such construction, repair, alteration 

or installation by Tenant or Tenant's agents, Tenant shall either: 
(1) Record a valid Release of Lien, or 
(2) Deposit sufficient cash with Landlord to cover the amount of the claim on the lien in 

question and authorize payment to the extent of said deposit to any subsequent judgment holder that may 
arise as a matter of public record from litigation with regard to a lienholder claim, or 

(3) Procure and record a bond in accordance with Section 3143 of the California Civil Code, 
which frees the premises from the claim of the lien and from any action brought to foreclose the lien. 

Should Tenant fail to accomplish one of the three optional actions within 30 days after Landlord's 
written notice to Tenant of the filing of such a lien, the Lease shall be in default and shall be subject to 
immediate termination. 

 
ARTICLE 9. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS 

 
9.1 Tenant's Obligations 

 
Tenant, at its own cost and expense, shall maintain the Premises, and keep it free of all grass, 

weeds and debris, and of flammable materials (except to the extent Tenant is permitted to use and store 
same in minimal quantities pursuant to the provisions of this Lease). Tenant shall ensure that the 
Premises is at all times in an orderly, clean, safe, and sanitary condition. Landlord requires a high 
standard of cleanliness, consistent with the location of the Premises as an adjunct of the California State 
Highway System. 

Tenant hereby expressly waives the right to make repairs at the expense of Landlord and waives 
the benefit of the provisions of Sections 1941 and 1942 of the California Civil Code or any successor 
thereto. 

Tenant shall take all steps necessary to protect effectively the fences, guardrails, and the piers 
and columns, if any, of the all structures from damage incident to Tenant's use of the Premises and any 
improvements, all without expense to Landlord. Tenant shall, at its own cost and expense, repair in 
accordance with Landlord's standards any damage to any property owned by Landlord, including, but 
not limited to, all fences, guardrails, piers and columns, caused by Tenant, its contractors, subtenants, 
invitees or other third parties. At Tenant's request, Landlord will repair such damage to its property, and 
Tenant agrees to reimburse Landlord promptly after demand for the amount Landlord has reasonably 



 
 

00028147.6   
 15 

expended to complete the repair work. 
Tenant shall be responsible for the care, maintenance, and any required pruning of trees, shrubs, 

or any other landscaping on the Premises. Tenant assumes the liability for any damage or injury caused 
by any falling branches or other such materials from any tree or shrub whether the branches fall due to 
lack of maintenance or act of god or any other natural or unnatural causes. Tenant's liability insurance 
required within Article 10 shall cover any damage caused by any falling tree or shrub branches or other 
materials; and, furthermore, per the same Article 10, Tenant covenants and agrees to indemnify and save 
harmless Landlord from all liability, loss, cost, and obligation on account of any injuries or losses caused 
by any falling branches or material from any tree or shrub. 

Tenant shall designate in writing to Landlord a representative who shall be responsible for the 
day-to-day operation and level of maintenance, cleanliness and general order. 

 
9.2 Landlord's Rights 

 
In the event Tenant fails to perform Tenant's obligations under this Article, Landlord shall give 

Tenant notice to do such acts as are reasonably required to so maintain the Premises. If within ten (10) 
days after Landlord sends written notice to repair, Tenant fails to do the work and diligently proceed in 
good faith to prosecute it to completion, Landlord shall have the right, but not the obligation, to do such 
acts and expend such funds at the expense of Tenant as are reasonably required to perform such work. 
Any amount so expended by Landlord shall be paid by Tenant promptly after demand plus interest as 
provided in Section 19.11 from the date of completion of such work to date of payment. Landlord shall 
have no liability to Tenant for any damage, inconvenience or interference with the use of the Premises 
by Tenant as a result of performing any such work. 

 
9.3 Retention of Existing Improvements 

 
Landlord may at its option retain existing State improvements including fencing, lighting and 

irrigation facilities. 
 
ARTICLE 10. INSURANCE 

 
10.1 Indemnification 

 
Neither Landlord nor any of Landlord's officers or employees is responsible for any injury, 

damage, or liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by Tenant under or in 
connection with any work, authority, or jurisdiction conferred upon Tenant or arising under this Lease. 

It is understood and agreed Tenant will fully defend, indemnify, and save harmless Landlord and 
all of its officers and employees from all claims, suits, or actions of every kind brought forth under any 
theory of liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by Tenant under this 
Lease. Tenant's obligations to defend, indemnify, and save harmless Landlord extends to any and all 
claims, suits, or actions of every kind brought forth under any theory of liability occurring due to the use 
of the premises and Tenant's operations under this Lease, any accompanying agreement with Landlord, 
and any Encroachment Permit issued by Landlord, excluding those arising by reason of the negligence 
or intentional misconduct of Landlord, its officers, employees, and agents. 

Tenant shall include in any contract it enters with any third party to conduct work in association 
with this Lease, including any contractors who design, construct, or maintain equipment, structures, 
fixtures or other property, a requirement the contractor will fully defend, indemnify and save harmless 



 
 

00028147.6   
 16 

Landlord and its officers and employees from any and all claims, suits or actions of every kind brought 
forth under any theory of liability occurring due to the work conducted in association with this Lease. If 
Tenant has any additional insured endorsements executed by any third parties conducting work in 
association with this Lease naming Landlord to comply with this provision, Tenant shall provide copies 
of the additional insured endorsements and a Certificate of Insurance to Landlord within thirty 
(30) days of executing this lease. 

If the Lease is terminated due to Tenant's breach, Tenant also agrees to indemnify, defend, and 
save harmless Landlord from any third party claims for damages arising out of the termination of the 
Lease. Such third party claims include any claims from any contractors retained by Tenant or its 
successors. 

Furthermore, Tenant agrees it controls the premises. As such, Tenant agrees to defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless Landlord, its officers, agents, and employees for any and all claims arising out of any 
allegedly dangerous condition of public property based upon the condition of the premises. 

Tenant agrees to defend, indemnify and save harmless Landlord, its officers, employees, and 
agents from any and all claims, suits or actions of every kind brought forth under any theory of liability 
with respect to the premises or the activities of Tenant or its officers, employees, and agents at the 
premises, excluding those arising by reason of the negligence or intentional misconduct of Landlord, its 
officers, employees, and agents. 

Tenant's obligations to defend Landlord is not excused because of Tenant's inability to evaluate 
liability or because Tenant evaluates liability and determines Tenant is not liable. Tenant must respond 
within 30 days to the tender of any defense and indemnity by Landlord, unless this time has been 
extended by Landlord. 

 
10.2 Liability Insurance 

 
Nothing in this Lease is intended to establish a standard of care owed to any member of the public or to 
extend to the public the status of a third-party beneficiary for any of these insurance specifications. 
 
Commercial General Liability Insurance 

Tenant shall procure Commercial General Liability Insurance with $1 million per occurrence 
and $5 million aggregate limits covering all operations by or on behalf of Tenant, providing 
insurance for bodily injury liability and property damage liability, and including coverage for: 
1. Premises, operations and mobile equipment 
2. Products and completed operations 
3. Broad form property damage (including completed operations) 
4. Explosion, collapse, and underground hazards 
5. Personal injury 
6. Contractual liability 

 
Tenant shall provide proof of the Commercial General insurance policy with all endorsements, riders, 
and amendments to Landlord on or before the Commencement Date by a Certificate of Additional 
Insured. 

 
The Commercial General Liability insurance procured by Tenant shall also comply with the 

following: 
1. Shall extend to all of Tenant's operations and remain in full force and effect during the term of 

this Lease. 
2. Must be with an insurance company with a rating from A.M. Best Financial Strength Rating of 



 
 

00028147.6   
 17 

A- or better and a Financial Size Category of VII or better. 
3. Shall be on Commercial General Liability policy form no. CG0001 as published by the 

Insurance Services Office (ISO) or under a policy form at least as broad as policy form no. 
CG0001. 

4. Shall contain completed operations coverage with a carrier acceptable to Landlord through the 
expiration of the latent and patent deficiency in construction statutes of repose set forth in Code 
of Civil Procedure section 337.15. 

5. Shall name Landlord, including its officers, directors, agents (excluding agents who are design 
professionals), and employees, as additional insureds under the General Liability Policy with 
respect to liability arising out of or connected with work or operations performed in connection 
with this Lease. Coverage for such additional insureds does not extend to liability to the extent 
prohibited by Insurance Code section 11580.04. 

6. Shall provide additional insured coverage by a policy provision or by an endorsement 
providing coverage at least as broad as Additional Insured (Form B) endorsement form CG 
2010, as published by the Insurance Services Office (ISO), or other form designated by 
Landlord. 

7. Shall state the insurance afforded the additional insureds applies as primary insurance. Any 
other insurance or self-insurance maintained by Landlord is excess only and must not be 
called upon to contribute with this insurance. 

 
Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance 

Tenant shall provide workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance as required 
under the Labor Code and provide Landlord the following certification before performing any work 
(Labor Code § 1861) in connection with this Lease: "I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of 
the Labor Code which require every employer to be insured against liability for workers' compensation 
or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this contract." 

Tenant shall provide Employer's Liability Insurance in amounts not less than: 
1. $1,000,000 for each accident for bodily injury by accident 
2. $1,000,000 policy limit for bodily injury by disease 
3. $1,000,000 for each employee for bodily injury by disease 

 
Tenant shall carry automobile liability insurance, including coverage for all owned, hired, and 

non-owned automobiles. The primary limits of liability must be not less than $1,000,000 combined 
single limit for each accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

Tenant intends to contract with a third party (“Contractor”) to operate Tenant’s transportation 
service.  Tenant shall cause Contractor to carry the above commercial general liability insurance.  As 
to the Workers' Compensation, Employer's Liability and automobile liability insurance, Tenant either 
shall carry such insurance itself or cause Contractor to carry same.  Tenant shall cause Contractor to 
provide Landlord with evidence of all insurance carried by Contractor pursuant to the terms of this 
Lease.  Tenant shall be included as an additional insured on Contractor’s policy so to afford Tenant 
the same coverage benefits, including the duty to defend, as if Tenant was the primary insured. 

Landlord allows reasonable deductible clauses not overly broad, exceeding $250,000, or harmful 
to Landlord. Tenant agrees by executing this Lease it shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
Landlord until such deductible is paid or applied to any claim arising out of this Lease, regardless of 
Tenant's evaluation of liability, as discussed in Section 9.1.  Landlord may assure Tenant's compliance 
with these insurance obligations. Ten days before an insurance policy lapses or is canceled during the 



 
 

00028147.6   
 18 

term of this Lease, Tenant must submit evidence of renewal or replacement of the policy. Tenant is not 
relieved of its duties and responsibilities to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Landlord, its officers, 
agents, and employees by Landlord's acceptance of insurance policies and certificates. The minimum 
insurance coverage amounts do not relieve Tenant from liability in excess of such coverage. 

 
10.3. Self-Insurance 

 
Landlord acknowledges that Tenant may be self-insured. Reasonable self-insurance programs 

and self-insured retentions in insurance policies are permitted by Landlord. If Tenant uses a self- 
insurance program or self-insured retention, Tenant must provide Landlord with the same protection 
from liability and defense of suits as would be afforded by first-dollar insurance. Further, execution of 
this Agreement is Tenant's acknowledgment Tenant will be bound by all laws as if Tenant were an 
insurer as defined under Insurance Code section 23 and Tenant's self-insurance program or self- insured 
retention shall operate as insurance as defined under Insurance Code section 22. Tenant shall notify 
Landlord in writing not less than thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of the termination of its self-
insurance coverage and shall obtain the insurance coverage required by this section effective on that 
termination date. 

 
10.4 Failure to Procure and Maintain Insurance 

 
If Tenant fails to procure or maintain the insurance required by this Article in full force and 

effect, this Lease may be terminated immediately by Landlord. In addition, if Tenant fails to procure or 
maintain the insurance required by this Article, Tenant shall cease and desist from operating any business 
on the premises and the improvements erected thereon and shall prevent members of the public from 
gaining access to the premises during any period in which such insurance policies are not in full force 
and effect. 

 
10.5 Waiver of Subrogation 

 
Tenant hereby waives any and all rights of recovery against Landlord, or against the officers, 

employees, agents and representatives of Landlord, for loss of or damage to Tenant or its property or the 
property of others under its control to the extent that such loss or damage is insured against under any 
insurance policy in force at the time of such loss or damages. Tenant shall give notice to its insurance 
carrier or carriers that the foregoing waiver of subrogation is contained in the Lease. 

 
ARTICLE 11. PAYMENT OF TAXES 

 
Tenant agrees to pay and discharge, or cause to be paid and discharged when due, before the 

same become delinquent, all taxes, assessments, impositions, levies and charges of every kind, nature 
and description, whether general or special, ordinary or extraordinary, which may at any time or from 
time to time during the term of this Lease, by or according to any law or governmental, legal, political, 
or other authority whatsoever, directly or indirectly, be taxed, levied, charged, assessed or imposed upon 
or against, or which shall be or may be or become a lien upon the Premises or any buildings, 
improvements or structures at any time located thereon, or any estate, right, title or interest of Tenant in 
and to the Premises, buildings, improvements or structures. Specifically, and without placing any 
limitation on Tenant's obligations under the immediately preceding sentence, Tenant shall pay when due, 
before delinquency, any and all possessory interest taxes, parking taxes, workers' compensation, taxes 
payable to the California Franchise Tax Board, personal property taxes on fixtures, equipment and 



 
 

00028147.6   
 19 

facilities owned by Tenant, whether or not the same have become so fixed to the land as to comprise a 
part of the real estate. 

Tenant understands that any possessory interest of Tenant created in the Premises by this Lease 
may be subject to property taxation and that Tenant may be liable for payment of any such tax levied on 
such interest. Any obligation of Tenant under this Article, including possessory interest tax that the city 
or county may impose upon Tenant's interest herein, shall not reduce any rent due Landlord hereunder 
and any such obligation shall become the liability of and be paid by Tenant. In the event Tenant defaults 
in the payment of any of the obligations set forth in this Article, this Lease may be terminated 
immediately by Landlord and be of no further force or effect. 

 
ARTICLE 12. RIGHT OF ENTRY 

 
12.1 Inspection, Maintenance, Construction and Operation of Freeway Structures 

 
Landlord, through its agents or representatives, and other city, county, state and federal agencies, 

through their agents or representatives, shall have full right and authority to enter in and upon the 
Premises and any building or improvements situated thereon at any and all reasonable times during the 
term of this Lease for the purpose of inspecting the same without interference or hindrance by Tenant, 
its agents or representatives. 

 
Landlord further reserves the right of entry for the purpose of inspecting the Premises, or the 

doing of any and all acts necessary or proper on said Premises in connection with the protection, 
maintenance, reconstruction, and operation of the freeway structures and its appurtenances; provided, 
further, that Landlord reserves the further right, at its discretion, to immediate possession of the same in 
case of any national or other emergency, or for the purpose of preventing sabotage, and for the protection 
of said freeway structures, in which event the term of this Lease shall be extended for a period equal to 
the emergency occupancy by Landlord, and during said period Tenant shall be relieved, to the degree of 
interference, from the performance of conditions or covenants specified herein. Landlord further reserves 
the right of entry by any authorized officer, engineer, employee, contractor or agent of the Landlord for 
the purpose of performing any maintenance activities upon the property which Tenant has failed to 
perform after the expiration of the applicable cure period specified in Article 9. 

 
12.2 Future Transportation Projects 

 
(a) Landlord's Right to Possession of Premises. 

 
Tenant understands and acknowledges that Landlord may, during the Term of this Lease, 

construct an "Approved and Funded Transportation Project", which may require the temporary or 
permanent use of all or a portion of the premises. An "Approved and Funded Transportation Project" is 
defined as a proposed transportation facility to be constructed by Landlord where the funds necessary to 
construct the facility are available to Landlord (regardless of the source of the funds) and where the 
transportation facility can reasonably be expected to be constructed within a reasonable period of time 
following termination of this Lease as provided in this Article. 

In the event Landlord determines that the premises or any portion thereof will be affected by an 
"Approved and Funded Transportation Project", Landlord shall immediately notify Tenant of its intent 
to take possession of all or a portion of the premises and shall provide Tenant with at least ninety (90) 
days written notice within which to vacate the required area. Landlord's notice to Tenant shall indicate 
the area of the premises to be taken. If possession is to be a temporary use of all or part of the premises, 



 
 

00028147.6   
 20 

Landlord shall additionally state in such notice to Tenant Landlord's reasonable estimate of the period 
of time of such temporary use by Landlord. If possession is to be permanent, Landlord shall have the 
right to terminate the Lease. Upon the date Landlord is entitled to possession of the premises, or portion 
thereof, Tenant shall peaceably surrender possession of the premises, or portion thereof, and comply 
with the restriction as stated in the notice. The failure of Tenant to vacate the required area of the premises 
shall constitute a material default and breach of this Lease entitling Landlord to exercise its rights and 
remedies.  If an alternative location or locations are available, Landlord shall meet with Tenant prior to 
terminating the Lease to discuss with Tenant the possibility of leasing such alternate location. 

 
(b) Reduction of Monthly Rent if Lease Remains Effective 

 
For the period during which Landlord has taken possession of the premises under this section, 

and if this Lease remains effective, Tenant shall be entitled to receive a reduction in Monthly Rent for 
the term of Landlord's use of the area of the premises used by Landlord. The rent will be reduced by the 
same percentage as the useable square footage reduction as required by State's project. 

 
(c) Tenant's Sole Rights; Tenant's Waiver. 

 
Landlord's taking of possession of the premises under this Section 12.2 does not constitute a 

taking or damaging entitling Tenant to compensation under any Condemnation provisions. The reduction 
in Monthly Rent as provided herein shall be Tenant's sole remedy against Landlord for Tenant's inability 
to possess or use part or all of the area of the premises as a result of an "Approved and Funded 
Transportation Project", and Tenant expressly agrees to hold Landlord harmless from any and all liability 
for, and expressly waives any right it may have to recover against Landlord, damages to the Premises, 
any improvements constructed on the premises or improvements thereon, and damages to any other 
property, project or operations including any claim for loss of business goodwill or resulting from 
Tenant's inability to use or possess all or any portion of the premises as a result of an "Approved and 
Funded Transportation Project". In addition, Tenant expressly recognizes that it is not entitled to receive 
benefits under the federal or state Uniform Relocation Assistance Act (United States Code, Section 7260, 
et seq.) as a result of Landlord's use or possession of any portion of the premises an "Approved and 
Funded Transportation Project". Landlord agrees to instruct its authorized representatives to minimize 
the effect of any required construction on Tenant's use of the premises, both in the construction phase 
and in the permanent effect on the premises in connection with an "Approved and Funded Transportation 
Project".   

 
12.3 Maintenance Work and Retrofitting of Freeway Structures 

 
Tenant understands and agrees that Landlord may be required to perform maintenance or retrofit 

work on all or a part of the freeway structures that are situated on and above the premises. Landlord shall 
have the right to impose such restrictions on Tenant's right to enter, occupy, and use the premises and to 
maintain the existing improvements or construct improvements thereon as Landlord deems are necessary 
to enable it to complete construction of all freeway maintenance or structural retrofit work without 
interference from Tenant. 

In the event Landlord determines that it needs to obtain possession of all or a portion of the 
premises, or needs to place restrictions on Tenant's use of the premises, Landlord shall, if possible, at 
least ninety (90) days prior to the effective date of the commencement of such possession or restrictions 
notify Tenant in writing describing the extent of the possession or restrictions and the effective date of 
their commencement. Upon the effective date of said notice, Tenant shall peaceably surrender possession 



 
 

00028147.6   
 21 

of the premises and comply with the restrictions as stated therein. The monthly rent stated in Section 4.1, 
as adjusted in Section 4.2, shall be reduced by an amount equal to the proportion which the area of the 
portion of the premises which Tenant is restricted from using or which has been surrendered to Landlord 
bears to the total area of the leased premises. This reduction in rent shall be Tenant's sole remedy against 
Landlord for Tenant's inability to possess or use the entire area of the premises, and Tenant expressly 
agrees to hold Landlord harmless from any and all liability for, and expressly waives any right it may 
have to recover against Landlord, damages to the premises, any improvements constructed on the 
premises, and waives its right to use or possess any portion of the premises or improvements thereon, 
and damages to any other property, project or operation caused by Landlord's possession, imposition of 
restrictions or Tenant's inability to use or possess all or any portion of the premises. In addition, Tenant 
expressly recognizes that it is not entitled to receive benefits under the federal or state Uniform 
Relocation Assistance Acts (United States Code, title 42, Section 4601, et seq.; California Government 
Code, Section 7260, et seq.) as a result of Landlord's use or possession of any portion of the premises. 

Tenant shall conduct its operations on the premises in such a manner so as not to interfere with 
Landlord's or its contractor's performance of any structural retrofit work done on or above the premises. 
Tenant acknowledges that the performance of the structural retrofit work may cause damage to paving 
or other improvements constructed by Tenant on the premises. Tenant expressly agrees to hold Landlord 
harmless from all such damage to its improvements, except that at the conclusion of the retrofit work, 
Landlord shall restore the premises to their preexisting condition at no cost to Tenant. 

 
12.4 Reinstitution of Lease. 

 
If Landlord takes possession of all or a portion of the Premises in accordance with the preceding 

provisions of this Article 12, Landlord shall notify Tenant that Landlord has completed the use or work 
requiring such repossession within thirty days after Landlord completes such use or work, and if 
requested by Tenant in writing within ninety days thereafter, either (i) in the case of a partial 
repossession by Landlord, Tenant shall be entitled to lease the entire Premises (i.e., the initial Premises 
leased before Landlord's repossession) and pay the corresponding monthly rent for the remainder of the 
Lease term and (ii) in the case of a total repossession by Landlord and termination of the Lease, Landlord 
shall enter into a new lease with Tenant with respect to the entire Premises with substantially the same 
terms and conditions as set forth in this Lease (except that the expiration date of the new lease shall be 
extended one day for each day between the date of Landlord's repossession and the commencement date 
of the new lease, which shall be Landlord's only obligation to Tenant in the case it repossesses all of the 
Premises). 

 
12.5 Tenant's Termination Rights. 

 
Notwithstanding any provisions of this Article 12 to the contrary, in the event Tenant determines 

that: (i) the portion of the Premises that will be taken pursuant to this Article 12 constitutes a material 
portion of the Premises, or (ii) Landlord's construction activities will unreasonably interfere with 
Tenant's use of the Premises, Tenant shall have the right to terminate this Lease, unless Landlord is able 
to provide an alternative site with comparable improvements to which Tenant is able to relocate at 
minimal cost and disruption to Tenant. 

 
ARTICLE 13. CONDEMNATION BY PUBLIC ENTITIES OTHER THAN LANDLORD 

 
13.1 Definitions 

 



 
 

00028147.6   
 22 

(a) "Condemnation" means (1) the exercise of the power of eminent domain, whether by 
legal proceedings or otherwise, by a public entity having that power, that is, a condemnor, and (2) a 
voluntary sale or transfer to any condemnor, either under the threat of condemnation or while legal 
proceedings in condemnation are pending. 

(b) "Award" means all compensation, sums, or anything of value awarded, paid or received 
upon a total or partial condemnation of the leased premises. 

(c) "Substantial taking" means a taking of a portion of the leased premises by condemnation 
which, assuming a reasonable amount of reconstruction on the remainder, substantially impairs Tenant's 
ability to use the remainder for the purposes permitted under this Lease. 

 
13.2 Termination of Lease as to Part Condemned 

In the event the whole or any part of the premises is taken by condemnation by a public entity, 
other than Landlord, in the lawful exercise of its power of eminent domain, this Lease shall cease as to 
the whole or the part condemned upon the date possession of the whole or that part is taken by the public 
entity. 

 
13.3 Partial Taking 

 
If a part of the leased premises is taken by condemnation but there is no substantial taking of the 

premises, Tenant shall continue to be bound by the terms, covenants, and conditions of this Lease. 
However, if the fair rental value of the remainder will be less than the rent required by this Lease, the 
monthly rent and adjusted monthly rent shall be reduced to an amount equal to the fair rental value as of 
the date possession of the part is taken by the public entity. 

If the part taken by condemnation constitutes a substantial taking of the leased premises, Tenant 
may elect to: 

(a) Terminate this Lease and be absolved of obligations hereunder which have not accrued 
at the date possession is taken by the public entity; or 

(b) Continue to occupy the remainder of the premises and remain bound by the terms, 
covenants and conditions of this Lease. If Tenant elects to continue to occupy the remainder, and if the 
fair rental value of the remainder will be less than the rent required by this Lease, the monthly rent and 
adjusted monthly rent shall be reduced to the fair rental value as of the date possession of the part is taken 
by the public entity. 

Tenant shall give notice in writing of its election to terminate this Lease hereunder within thirty 
(30) days of the date possession of the part is taken by the public entity. If Tenant fails to give Landlord 
its written notice of termination within the time specified, this Lease shall remain in full force and effect 
except that the monthly rental shall be reduced as provided in this section. 

If it continues to occupy the remainder, Tenant, whether or not the award upon the taking by 
condemnation is sufficient for the purpose, shall, at its expense, within a reasonable period of time, 
commence and complete restoration of the remainder of the leased premises as nearly as possible to its 
value, condition and character immediately prior to such taking; provided, however, that in the case of a 
taking for temporary use, Tenant shall not be required to effect restoration until such taking is terminated. 
Tenant shall submit to Landlord its plans for the restoration of the remainder within ninety (90) days of 
the date possession of the part is taken by the public entity. 

 
13.4 Adjustment of Rent 

 
Should a portion of the premises be condemned and the rent be reduced as provided above, the 



 
 

00028147.6   
 23 

reduced rent shall continue to be subject to adjustment and reevaluation in accordance with Article 4. 
 
13.5 Compensation 

 
Landlord shall be entitled to receive and shall receive all compensation for the condemnation of 

all or any portion of the premises by exercise of eminent domain except as hereinafter provided. Tenant 
shall be entitled to that portion of said compensation which represents the present worth as of the date 
possession is taken by the public entity of the remaining use under the Lease of all improvements 
constructed by Tenant on the leased premises located within the part taken by the public entity. Tenant 
may also assert a claim for loss of business goodwill under the provisions of Section 1263.510 of the 
California Code of Civil Procedure. Tenant shall assert no claim for loss of bonus value. For the purposes 
of this Article, "condemnation bonus value" means that value attributable to the fact that the rental rate 
Tenant is obligated to pay under this Lease is less than the fair market lease rate of the premises as defined 
in Article 4 above. 

If all or a portion of the leased premises is condemned at a time when Tenant possesses an interest 
in real property located outside the leased premises (hereinafter called "outside property"), Tenant may 
claim entitlement to an award of damages accruing to the outside property by reason of the severance 
therefrom of the condemned portion of the leased premises as provided in the Eminent Domain Law 
(California Code of Civil Procedure Sections 1230.010 through 1273.050). 

 
ARTICLE 14. UTILITIES 

 
Tenant shall pay when due, and shall hold Landlord harmless from any liability for, all charges 

for water, gas, heat, light, power, telephone, sewage, air conditioning and ventilating, scavenger, 
janitorial and landscaping services and all other materials and utilities supplied to the Premises. Landlord 
shall not be liable in damages or otherwise for any failure or interruption of any utility service furnished 
to the Premises, and no such failure or interruption shall entitle Tenant to terminate this Lease. 

 
ARTICLE 15. DEFAULT 

 
15.1 Default 

 
The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute a material breach and default of this Lease 

by Tenant. 
(a) Any failure by Tenant to pay rent or any other monetary sums required to be paid hereunder, 

where such failure continues for ten (10) days after written notice thereof has been given by Landlord to 
Tenant. 

(b) The abandonment or vacation of the Premises by Tenant. Failure to occupy and operate the 
Premises for thirty (30) consecutive days following the mailing of written notice from Landlord to 
Tenant calling attention to the abandonment shall be deemed an abandonment or vacation. 

(c) The making by Tenant of any general assignment or general arrangement for the benefit of 
creditors; the filing by or against Tenant of a petition to have Tenant adjudged bankrupt or of a petition 
for reorganization or arrangement under any law relating to bankruptcy (unless, in the case of a petition 
filed against Tenant the same is dismissed within sixty (60) days); the appointment of a trustee or receiver 
to take possession of substantially all of Tenant's assets, where possession is not restored to Tenant within 
forty-five (45) days; or the attachment, execution or other judicial seizure of substantially all of Tenant's 
assets, where such seizure is not discharged within thirty (30) days. 

(d) The failure by Tenant to comply with any provision of any law, statute, zoning restriction, 



 
 

00028147.6   
 24 

ordinance or governmental rule, regulation or requirement as set forth in Section 5.3 of this Lease. 
(e) The failure by Tenant to comply with the requirements of the Lease Application. 
(f) The failure by Tenant to comply with the requirements regarding hazardous materials as set 

forth in Article 5 of this Lease. 
(g) The construction by Tenant of any improvements on the Premises contrary to the provisions 

of Article 6 of this Lease. 
(h) The failure by Tenant to pay any tax, assessment, imposition, levy or charge of any kind as 

set forth in Article 11 of this Lease. 
(i) The failure by Tenant to observe and perform any other provision of this Lease to be observed 

or performed by Tenant, where such failure continues for thirty (30) days after written notice thereof by 
Landlord to Tenant; provided, however, that if the nature of such default is such that it cannot be 
reasonably cured within such thirty (30) day period, Tenant shall not be deemed to be in default if Tenant 
shall within such period commence such cure and thereafter diligently prosecute the same to completion. 

 
15.2 Landlord's Remedies 

 
In the event of any material default or breach by Tenant, Landlord may at any time thereafter, 

without limiting Landlord in the exercise of any right of remedy at law or in equity which Landlord may 
have by reason of such default or breach, terminate Tenant's right to possession by any lawful means, in 
which case this Lease shall immediately terminate and Tenant shall immediately surrender possession 
of the Premises to Landlord. In such event Landlord shall be entitled to recover from Tenant all damages 
incurred by Landlord by reason of Tenant's default including, but not limited to, the following: 

(a) the worth at the time of award of any unpaid rent which had been earned at the time of such 
termination; plus 

(b) the worth at the time of award of the amount by which the unpaid rent which would have 
been earned after termination until the time of award exceeds the amount of such rental loss that is proved 
could have been reasonably avoided; plus 

(c) the worth at the time of award of the amount by which the unpaid rent for the balance of the 
term after the time of award exceeds the amount of such rental loss that is proved could be reasonably 
avoided; plus 

(d) any other amount necessary to compensate Landlord for all the detriment proximately caused 
by Tenant's failure to perform its obligations under this Lease or which in the ordinary course of events 
would be likely to result therefrom; plus 

(e) at Landlord's election, such other amounts in addition to or in lieu of the foregoing as may 
be permitted from time to time by applicable State law. Upon any such re-entry Landlord shall have the 
right to make any reasonable repairs, alterations or modifications to the premises, which Landlord in its 
sole discretion deems reasonable and necessary. As used in subparagraphs (a) and (b), above, the "worth 
at the time of award" is computed by including interest on the principal sum at a rate one percent (1%) 
above the discount rate of the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco from the date of default. As used 
in subparagraph (c), above, the "worth at the time of award" is computed by discounting such amount at 
a rate one percent (1%) above the discount rate of the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco at the time 
of award. The term "rent" as used in this Article shall be deemed to be and to mean rent to be paid 
pursuant to Article 4 and all other monetary sums required to be paid by Tenant pursuant to the terms of 
this Lease. 

 
15.3 Late Charges 

 



 
 

00028147.6   
 25 

Tenant hereby acknowledges that late payment by Tenant to Landlord of rent and other sums due 
hereunder will cause Landlord to incur costs not contemplated by this Lease, the exact amount of which 
will be extremely difficult to ascertain. Such costs include, but are not limited to, processing and 
accounting charges. Accordingly, if any installment of rent or any other sum due from Tenant shall not 
be received by Landlord or Landlord's designee within ten (10) days after such amount shall be due, a 
late charge equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the payment due and unpaid plus $100.00 shall 
be added to the payment, and the total sum shall become immediately due and payable to Landlord. An 
additional charge of one and one-half percent (1.5%) of such payment, excluding late charges, shall be 
added for each additional month that such payment remains unpaid. Landlord shall apply any monies 
received from Tenant first to any accrued delinquency charges and then to any other payments due under 
the Lease. The parties hereby agree that such late charges represent a fair and reasonable estimate of the 
costs Landlord will incur by reason of late payment by Tenant. Acceptance of such late charges by 
Landlord shall in no event constitute a waiver of Tenant's default with respect to such overdue amount, 
nor prevent Landlord from exercising any of the other rights and remedies granted hereunder. 

 
15.4 Landlord's Right to Cure Tenant's Default 

 
At any time after Tenant is in default or material breach of this Lease, and such default or material 

breach continues following thirty (30) days prior written notice to Tenant (or, such shorter written notice 
period as may be (a) expressly provided for in this Lease or (b) reasonably necessary given the nature of 
the default or breach), Landlord may cure such default or breach at Tenant's cost. If Landlord at any 
time, by reason of such default or breach, pays any sum or does any act that requires the payment of any 
sum, the sum paid by Landlord shall be due immediately from Tenant to Landlord at the time the sum is 
paid, and if paid at a later date shall bear interest as provided in Section 19.11 from the date the sum is 
paid by Landlord until Landlord is reimbursed by Tenant. The sum, together with interest on it, shall be 
additional rent. 

 
ARTICLE 16. ASSIGNMENTS, TRANSFERS, SUBLEASES AND ENCUMBRANCES 

 
16.1 Prohibition on Assignments, Transfers and Subleases 

 
Tenant shall not assign, transfer or sublease all or any part of its interest in this Lease or in the 

Premises, and Landlord reserves the right to deny its consent to any assignment, transfer or sublease of 
all or any part of this Lease or the Premises.   

 
16.2 Voluntary Assignments and Subleases 

 
In addition, with respect to transactions not expressly prohibited under Section 16.1, Tenant shall 

not voluntarily assign or transfer all or any part of its interest in this Lease or in the Premises, or sublet 
all or any part of the Premises, or allow any other person or entity (except Tenant's authorized 
representatives) to occupy or use all or any part of the Premises without first obtaining Landlord's written 
consent and the concurrence of the Federal Highway Administration. 

Landlord may, at its sole discretion, elect to consent to any such assignment, transfer or sublease 
if all of the following express conditions are satisfied: 

(a) Landlord receives compensation from Tenant upon the assignment, transfer, sale or sublease 
of any of Tenant's rights in the Premises per the provisions of Article 4.3. 

(b) The prospective assignee, transferee or subtenant completes a lease application and meets all 



 
 

00028147.6   
 26 

of the requirements for eligibility to lease from the State of California. 
Tenant's failure to obtain Landlord's required written approval prior to any assignment, transfer 

or sublease shall render such assignment, transfer or sublease void. Occupancy of the Premises by a 
prospective transferee, subtenant or assignee before approval of the transfer, sublease or assignment by 
Landlord shall constitute a breach of this Lease. Landlord's consent to any assignment, transfer or 
sublease shall not constitute a waiver of any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Lease. Such 
terms, covenants and conditions shall apply to each and every assignment, sublease and transfer of rights 
under this Lease and shall be severally binding upon each and every party thereto. Any document to 
transfer, sublet, or assign the Premises or any part thereof shall incorporate directly or by reference all 
the provisions of this Lease. 

 
16.3 Change in Partnership or Limited Liability Partnership 

 
If Tenant is a partnership or limited liability partnership, a withdrawal or change, voluntary, 

involuntary or by operation of law, or the dissolution of the partnership, shall be deemed a voluntary 
assignment subject to the provisions of Section 16.2. 

 
16.4 Change in Tenants 

If Tenant consists of more than one person, a purported assignment, voluntary, involuntary or by 
operation of law, from one tenant to another shall be deemed a voluntary assignment subject to the 
provisions of Section 16.2. 

 
16.5 Change in Corporation or Limited Liability Company 

 
If Tenant is a corporation or limited liability company, any dissolution, merger, consolidation, or 

other reorganization of Tenant, or the sale or other transfer of a controlling percentage of the capital 
stock of Tenant, or the sale of 51% of the value of the assets of Tenant, shall be deemed a voluntary 
assignment subject to the provisions of Section 16.2. The phrase "controlling percentage" means the 
ownership of, and the right to vote, stock possessing at least 51% of the total combined voting power of 
all classes of Tenant's capital stock issued, outstanding, and entitled to vote for the election of directors 
or a controlling interest in the LLC. 

 
16.6 Assignment of Rent from Subtenants 

 
Tenant immediately and irrevocably assigns to Landlord, as security for Tenant's obligations 

under this Lease, all rent from any subletting of all or a part of the Premises as permitted by this Lease, 
and Landlord, as assignee and attorney-in-fact for Tenant, or a receiver for Tenant appointed on 
Landlord's application, may collect such rent and apply it toward Tenant's obligations under this Lease; 
except that, until the occurrence of an act of default by Tenant, Tenant shall have the right to collect such 
rent. 

 
16.7 Information to be Supplied to Landlord 

 
Tenant shall supply Landlord with all information Landlord determines to be necessary on all 

persons or firms to which Tenant proposes to sublet, transfer or assign any of its interest in the Premises, 
or which might establish rights to enter, control, or otherwise encumber the Premises by reason of any 
agreement made by Tenant. In addition, with respect to any proposed sublease, transfer or assignment, 



 
 

00028147.6   
 27 

Tenant shall provide Landlord with: 
(a) a copy of all documents relating thereto, 
(b) a statement of all terms and conditions of said transaction, including the consideration 

therefor, and 
(c) a copy of the financial statement of the prospective subtenant, transferee or assignee. 
(d) a copy of all documents showing compliance by the prospective subtenant, transferee or 

assignee with all of the bid eligibility requirements contained in the bid package. 
 
16.8 Processing Fees for Assignments, Transfers and Subleases 

 
(a) In addition to the sum specified in Section 4.3, a fee of one thousand five hundred dollars 

($1,500) shall be paid to Landlord for processing each consent to assignment, transfer, or sublease to 
Landlord as required by this Lease. This processing fee shall be deemed earned by Landlord when paid 
and shall not be refundable. 

(b) If a processing fee has been paid by Tenant for another phase of the same transaction, a 
second fee will not be charged. 

(c) The amounts specified above for processing fees shall be automatically adjusted at the end 
of the first year of this Lease and every year thereafter in accordance with an annual fee schedule adopted 
by Landlord. Landlord shall make said fee schedule available to Tenant upon receiving a request therefor. 

 
16.9 Encumbrances 

 
Tenant shall not encumber the Premises in any manner whatsoever. 

 
ARTICLE 17. NONDISCRIMINATION 

 
Tenant, for itself, its personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the 

consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running with the land that: (1) no 
person, on the ground of race, color, or national origin shall be excluded from participation in, be denied 
the benefits of, or otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) in connection 
with the construction of any improvements on said land and the furnishing of services thereon, no 
discrimination shall be practiced in the selection of employees and contractors, by contractors in the 
selection and retention of first-tier subcontractors, and by first-tier subcontractors in the selection and 
retention of second-tier subcontractors, (3) such discrimination shall not be practiced against the public 
in its access to and use of the facilities and services provided for public accommodations (such as eating, 
sleeping, rest, recreation, and vehicle servicing) constructed or operated on, over, or under the premises, 
and (4) Tenant shall use the land in compliance with all other requirements imposed pursuant to Title 
49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21 (49 C.F.R., Part 21) and as said regulations may be amended. 
In the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants, the Landlord shall have the right 
to terminate this Lease, and to re-enter and repossess said land and the facilities thereon, and hold the 
same as if said Lease had never been made or issued. 

 
ARTICLE 18. SECURITY DEPOSIT 

 
Concurrently with Tenant's execution of this Lease, Tenant shall deposit with Landlord the sum 

of $0.00 as a Security Deposit. Said sum shall be held by Landlord as a Security Deposit for the faithful 
performance by Tenant of all of the terms, covenants and conditions of this Lease to be kept and 



 
 

00028147.6   
 28 

performed by Tenant during the term hereof. If Tenant defaults with respect to any provision of this 
Lease, including but not limited to the provisions relating to the payment of rent and any of the monetary 
sums due herewith, Landlord may use, apply or retain all or any part of this Security Deposit for the 
payment of any other amount which Landlord may spend by reason of Tenant's default or use it to 
compensate Landlord for any other loss or damage which Landlord may suffer by reason of Tenant's 
default. If any portion of said Deposit is so used or applied, Tenant shall within ten (10) days after written 
demand therefor, deposit cash with Landlord in an amount sufficient to restore the Security Deposit to 
its original amount; Tenant's failure to do so shall be a material breach of this Lease. Landlord shall not 
be required to keep this Security Deposit separate from its general funds, and Tenant shall not be entitled 
to interest on such deposit. If Tenant shall fully and faithfully perform every provision of this Lease to 
be performed by it, the Security Deposit or any balance thereof shall be returned to Tenant at the 
expiration of the Lease term and after Tenant has vacated the premises. 

 
ARTICLE 19. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

 
19.1 Quiet Enjoyment 

 
Landlord covenants and agrees with Tenant that upon Tenant paying rent and other monetary 

sums due under the Lease and performing its covenants and conditions, Tenant shall and may peaceably 
and quietly have, hold and enjoy the Premises for the term. 

 
19.2 Captions, Attachments, Defined Terms 

 
The captions of the Articles of this Lease are for convenience only and shall not be deemed to be 

relevant in resolving any question of interpretation or construction of any section of this Lease. Exhibits 
attached hereto, and addenda and schedules initiated by the parties, are deemed by attachment to 
constitute part of this Lease and are incorporated herein. The words "Landlord" and "Tenant," as used 
herein, shall include the plural as well as the singular. Words used in neuter gender include the masculine 
and feminine and words in the masculine or feminine gender include the neuter. If there be more than 
one Landlord or Tenant, the obligations hereunder imposed upon Landlord or Tenant shall be joint and 
several. If the Tenants are husband and wife, the obligations shall extend individually to their sole and 
separate property as well as to their community property. 

 
19.3 Entire Agreement 

 
This instrument along with any exhibits and attachments hereto constitutes the entire agreement 

between Landlord and Tenant relative to the premises and this agreement and the exhibits and 
attachments may be altered, amended or revoked only by an instrument in writing signed by both 
Landlord and Tenant. Landlord and Tenant agree hereby that all prior or contemporaneous oral 
agreements between and among themselves and their agents and representatives relative to the leasing 
of the premises are merged in or revoked by this agreement. 

 
19.4 Severability 

 
If any terms or provision of this Lease shall, to any extent, be determined by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease shall not be affected thereby, and 
each term and provision of this Lease shall be valid and be enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by 



 
 

00028147.6   
 29 

law. 
 
19.5 Costs of Suit 

 
If Tenant or Landlord shall bring any action for any relief against the other, declaratory or 

otherwise, arising out of this Lease, including any suit by Landlord for the recovery of rent or possession 
of the premises, the losing party shall pay the successful party a reasonable sum for attorney's fees which 
shall be deemed to have accrued on the commencement of such action and shall be paid whether or not 
such action is prosecuted to judgment. Should Landlord, without fault on Landlord's part, be made a 
party to any litigation instituted by Tenant or by any third party against Tenant, or by or against any 
person holding under or using the premises by license of Tenant, or for the foreclosure of any lien for 
labor or materials furnished to or for Tenant or any such other person or otherwise arising out of or 
resulting from any act or transaction of Tenant or of any such other person, Tenant shall save and hold 
Landlord harmless from any judgment rendered against Landlord or the premises or any part thereof, 
and all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, incurred by Landlord in connection with 
such litigation. 

 
19.6 Time, Joint and Several Liability 

 
Time is of the essence of this Lease and each and every provision hereof, except as to the 

conditions relating to the delivery of possession of the premises to Tenant. All the terms, covenants and 
conditions contained in this Lease to be performed by either party if such party shall consist of more 
than one person or organization, shall be deemed to be joint and several, and all rights and remedies of 
the parties shall be cumulative and non-exclusive of any other remedy at law or in equity. 

 
19.7 Binding Effect; Choice of Law 

 
The parties hereto agree that all the provisions hereof are to be construed as both covenants and 

conditions as though the words importing such covenants and conditions were used in each separate 
section hereof; and all of the provisions hereof shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto 
and their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns. This Lease shall be governed by 
the laws of the State of California. 

 
19.8 Waiver 

 
No covenant, term or condition or the breach thereof shall be deemed waived, except by written 

consent of the party against whom the waiver is claimed and any waiver or the breach of any covenant, 
term or condition shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach of the same 
or any other covenant, term or condition. Acceptance by Landlord of any performance by Tenant after 
the time the same shall have become due shall not constitute a waiver by Landlord of the breach or 
default of any covenant, term or condition. Acceptance by Landlord of any performance by Tenant after 
the time the same shall have become due shall not constitute a waiver by Landlord of the breach or 
default of any covenant, term or condition unless otherwise expressly agreed to by Landlord in writing. 

 
19.9 Surrender of Premises 

 
The voluntary or other surrender of this Lease by Tenant, or a mutual cancellation thereof, shall 

not work a merger and shall, at the option of the Landlord, terminate all or any existing subleases or 



 
 

00028147.6   
 30 

subtenancies, or may, at the option of Landlord, operate as an assignment to it of any or all such subleases 
or subtenancies. 

 
19.10 Holding Over 

 
If Tenant remains in possession of all or any part of the premises after the expiration of the term 

hereof, with or without the express or implied consent of Landlord, such tenancy shall be from month to 
month only and not a renewal hereof or an extension for any further term, and in such case, rent and 
other monetary sums due hereunder shall be payable at the time specified in this Lease and such month- 
to-month tenancy shall be subject to every other term, covenant, condition and agreement contained 
herein, except that the monthly rental rate set forth in Section 4.1 may be increased by Landlord effective 
the first month of the holdover period, or upon 30 days notice any time thereafter, to 125% of the monthly 
rental rate in effect prior to the holdover period. 

 
19.11 Interest on Past Due Obligations 

 
Except as expressly herein provided, any amount due to Landlord not paid when due shall bear 

interest at a rate one percent (1%) above the discount rate of the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco 
from the due date. Payment of such interest together with the amount due shall excuse or cure any default 
by Tenant under this Lease. 

 
19.12 Recording 

 
Neither Landlord nor Tenant shall record this Lease. 

19.13 Notices 
 

All notices or demands of any kind required or desired to be given by Landlord or Tenant 
hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed delivered forty-eight (48) hours after depositing the 
notice or demand in the United States mail, certified or registered, postage prepaid, addressed to the 
Landlord or Tenant respectively at the addresses set forth in Article 1. 

 
19.14 No Reservation 

 
Submission of this instrument for examination or signature by Tenant does not constitute a 

reservation of or option for lease; it is not effective as a lease or otherwise until execution and delivery 
by both Landlord and Tenant. 

 
19.15 Corporate Authority 

 
If Tenant is a corporation, each individual executing this Lease on behalf of said corporation 

represents and warrants that he/she is duly authorized to execute and deliver this Lease on behalf of said 
corporation in accordance with a duly adopted resolution of the Board of Directors of said corporation 
or in accordance with the Bylaws of said corporation, and that this Lease is binding upon said corporation 
in accordance with its terms. If Tenant is a corporation, Tenant shall, within thirty (30) days after 
execution of this Lease, deliver to Landlord a certified copy of resolution of the Board of Directors of 
said corporation authorizing or ratifying the execution of this Lease. 

 



 
 

00028147.6   
 31 

 
 
19.16 Force Majeure 

 
If either Landlord or Tenant shall be delayed or prevented from the performance of any act 

required hereunder by reason of acts of God, governmental restrictions, regulations or controls (except 
those reasonably foreseeable in connection with the uses contemplated by this Lease) or other cause 
without fault and beyond the control of the party obligated (except financial inability), performance of 
such act shall be excused for the period of the delay and the period for the performance of any such act 
shall be extended for a period equivalent to the period of such delay. Nothing in this clause shall excuse 
Tenant from prompt payment of any rent, taxes, insurance or any other charge required of Tenant, except 
as may be expressly provided in this Lease. 

 
ARTICLE 20.  TERMINATION OF LEASE 
 

20.1 Termination by Mutual Consent 
 

Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, this Lease may be terminated, and the 
provisions of this Lease may be altered, changed or amended by mutual consent of Landlord and Tenant. 

 
20.2 Termination by One Party 
 

Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, this Lease may be terminated at any time 
by: (a) Tenant, if (i) Tenant ceases to have sufficient funding to meet its obligations under this Lease, 
upon providing Landlord with one hundred eighty days (180) days prior notice in writing, or (ii) pursuant 
to Section 4.4(e) above; or (b) Landlord, pursuant to Article 12 above.  Notices of termination under 
this section shall be delivered in accordance with the provisions of Section 19.13 to the addresses set 
forth in Article 1. 

If at the time Tenant terminates this Lease, and the entire cost of Tenant's improvements has not 
been amortized over the remaining term, those improvements shall become the property of Landlord, 
and Landlord shall not refund or otherwise reimburse Tenant for the remaining unamortized cost of the 
improvements.   

 
 
 

xxxxxxxx 
 
 
 

xxxxxxxx 
 
 
 

Signature Page Follows 
 
 
 

xxxxxxxx 



 
 

00028147.6   
 32 

 
 
 
 

In Witness Whereof Landlord and Tenant have executed this Lease as of the Execution Date. 
 
LANDLORD: STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
 
 
 
Dated: ________________       By: ____________________________________ 
      JULIE McDANIEL 

District Office Chief 
 Right of Way Airspace Development, Local Programs, 

Relocation Assistance and Utility Relocations 
 
 
 
TENANT:  EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION,  
a California nonprofit corporation, doing business as Emery-Go-Round 
 
 
 
 
Dated: ________________       By: ____________________________________ 
       

 
 
 
 



 
 

00028147.6   
  

EXHIBIT A 
PREMISES 

 



 
 

00028147.6   
  

 
 



 
 

00028147.6   
  

Useable Area After Site Improvements 

 



 
 

00028147.6   
  

EXHIBIT B 
STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION FACT SHEET(S) 

 

 



 
 

00028147.6   
  

 



 
 

00028147.6   
  

 



 
 

00028147.6   
  

 



 
 

00028147.6   
  



 
 

00028147.6   
 

EXHIBIT C 
PRE-EXISTING HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

 
[add results of Phase I and Phase II reports here, if any 

 
 
 





 
PRELIMINARY SITE INVESTIGATION 

REPORT 
 
 
 

EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT 
ASSOCIATION 

MANDELA PARKWAY BUS YARD 
OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 

 
 
 
 
 

PREPARED FOR 
 

BKF ENGINEERS 
1730 N. FIRST STREET, SUITE 600 

SAN JOSE, CALIFORNIA 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GEOCON PROJECT NO. E9133-02-02 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AUGUST 2019 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE INVESTIGATION REPORT Page 

REPORT LIMITATIONS ....................................................................................................................... i 

1.0 INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................................... 1 
1.1 Project Description and Proposed Improvements ........................................................ 1 
1.2 General Objectives ....................................................................................................... 1 

2.0 BACKGROUND ...................................................................................................................... 1 
2.1 Hazardous Waste Determination Criteria .................................................................... 1 
2.2 Environmental Screening Levels ................................................................................. 2 

3.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES ............................................................................................................ 2 
3.1 Pre-field Activities ....................................................................................................... 2 
3.2 Field Activities ............................................................................................................. 2 

4.0 INVESTIGATIVE METHODS ................................................................................................ 3 
4.1 Sampling Procedures .................................................................................................... 3 
4.2 Laboratory Analyses .................................................................................................... 3 
4.3 Laboratory QA/QC ...................................................................................................... 3 

5.0 INVESTIGATIVE RESULTS .................................................................................................. 4 
5.1 Subsurface Conditions ................................................................................................. 4 
5.2 Laboratory Analytical Results...................................................................................... 4 
5.3 Laboratory Quality Assurance/Quality Control ........................................................... 4 
5.4 Statistical Evaluation for Lead Detected in Soil Samples ............................................ 5 

5.4.1 Calculating the UCLs for the Arithmetic Mean .............................................. 5 
5.4.2 Correlation of Total and WET Lead ............................................................... 5 

6.0 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS .................................................................... 7 
6.1 CAM 17 Metals in Soil ................................................................................................ 7 
6.2 Petroleum Hydrocarbons in Soil .................................................................................. 7 
6.3  Organic Compounds in Soil ......................................................................................... 8 
6.4 Worker Protection ........................................................................................................ 8 
6.5 Excess Soil Disposal .................................................................................................... 8 

 
 
FIGURES 
1. Vicinity Map 
2. Site Plan 
 
 
TABLES 
1. Summary of Lead Results 
2. Summary of CAM 17 Metals Results  
3. Summary of Petroleum Hydrocarbons and Semi-Volatile Organic Compounds Results 
 
 
APPENDICES 
A. Laboratory Reports and Chain-of-Custody Documentation  
B. Metal Statistical Analysis 
 

 



 

ETMA Mandela Parkway Bus Yard  BKF Engineers 
Geocon Project No. E9133-02-02 - i - August, 2019 

REPORT LIMITATIONS 

This report has been prepared exclusively for BKF Engineers. The information contained herein is only 

valid as of the date of the report and will require an update to reflect additional information obtained at 

a later date. 

 

This report is not a comprehensive site characterization and should not be construed as such. The findings 

as presented in this report are predicated on the results of the limited sampling and laboratory testing 

performed. In addition, the information obtained is not intended to address potential impacts related to 

sources other than those specified herein. Therefore, the report should be deemed conclusive with respect 

to only the information obtained. We make no warranty, express or implied, with respect to the content 

of this report or any subsequent reports, correspondence or consultation. Geocon Consultants, Inc. strived 

to perform the services summarized herein in accordance with the local standard of care in the geographic 

region at the time the services were rendered. 

 

The contents of this report reflect the views of the author who is responsible for the facts and accuracy 

of the data presented herein. This report does not constitute a standard, specification, or regulation. 

 
GEOCON CONSULTANTS, INC.  
 
 
  

DRAFT DRAFT 
Suzanne Nase Richard Day, CEG, CHG 
Project Geologist Senior Geologist 
   
   
  

  



 

ETMA Mandela Parkway Bus Yard  BKF Engineers 
Geocon Project No. E9133-02-02 - 1 - August, 2019 

PRELIMINARY SITE INVESTIGATION REPORT 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

This Preliminary Site Investigation (PSI) Report for the proposed Emeryville Transportation 

Management Association (ETMA) Mandela Parkway Bus Yard Project in the City of Emeryville in 

Alameda County, California was prepared by Geocon Consultants, Inc (Geocon) for BKF Engineers 

(BKF). 

1.1 Project Description and Proposed Improvements 

The project proposes to construct a new bus yard on Caltrans-owned parcels beneath the Interstate 580 

(I-580) viaducts, east of Mandela Parkway. The new facility will accommodate approximately 30 buses 

and 20 passenger vehicles with driveway access to/from Mandela Parkway near the northwest and 

southwest corners of the site. New parking stalls and interior driveways will be constructed throughout 

the site, around column foundations for the overhead I-580 viaducts. 

The project area is depicted on the Site Location Map, Figure 1.  

1.2 General Objectives 

The purpose of the investigation was to evaluate concentrations of California Assessment 

Manual 17 (CAM 17) metals; total petroleum hydrocarbons (TPH) as diesel (TPHd), as motor oil 

(TPHmo), and as gasoline (TPHg); benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene, and total xylenes (BTEX); and 

semi-volatile organic compounds (SVOCs) in soil within the project limits. 

The information obtained from this investigation will be used to evaluate soil handling practices, disposal 

options, worker health and safety, and soil reuse options. 

2.0 BACKGROUND 

2.1 Hazardous Waste Determination Criteria 

Regulatory criteria to classify a waste as California hazardous for handling and disposal purposes are 

contained in the CCR, Title 22, Division 4.5, Chapter 11, Article 3, §66261.24. Criteria to classify a waste 

as Resource, Conservation, and Recovery Act (RCRA) hazardous are contained in Chapter 40 of the Code 

of Federal Regulations (40 CFR), Section 261. 

For waste containing metals, the waste is classified as California hazardous when: 1) the representative 

total metal content equals or exceeds the respective Total Threshold Limit Concentration (TTLC); 

or 2) the representative soluble metal content equals or exceeds the respective Soluble Threshold Limit 

Concentration (STLC) based on the standard Waste Extraction Test (WET). A waste has the potential of 

exceeding the STLC when the waste’s total metal content is greater than or equal to 10 times the 

respective STLC value since the WET uses a 1:10 dilution ratio. Hence, when a total metal is detected at 



 

ETMA Mandela Parkway Bus Yard  BKF Engineers 
Geocon Project No. E9133-02-02 - 2 - August, 2019 

a concentration greater than or equal to 10 times the respective STLC, and assuming that 100 percent of 

the total metals are soluble, soluble metal analysis is required. A material is classified as RCRA 

hazardous, or Federal hazardous, when the representative soluble metal content equals or exceeds the 

Federal regulatory level based on the Toxicity Characteristic Leaching Procedure (TCLP). 

The above regulatory criteria are based on chemical concentrations. Wastes may also be classified as 

hazardous based on other criteria such as ignitability and corrosivity; however, for the purposes of this 

investigation, toxicity (i.e., representative lead concentrations) is the primary factor considered for waste 

classification since waste generated during the construction activities would not likely warrant testing for 

ignitability or other criteria. Waste that is classified as either California hazardous or RCRA hazardous 

requires management as a hazardous waste. 

2.2 Environmental Screening Levels 

The San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board (SFRWQCB) has published 

Environmental Screening Levels (ESLs) for commonly found contaminants in soil, groundwater, soil gas, 

and surface water, to assist in evaluating sites impacted by releases of hazardous chemicals. The ESLs 

are commonly used by contractors, soil trucking companies, and private and commercial land owners as 

default acceptance criteria to evaluate suitability of import soil material. The respective ESLs are listed 

at the end of Tables 2 and 3 for comparative purposes. 

3.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The scope of services included the following: 

3.1 Pre-field Activities 

• Notified Underground Service Alert (USA) at least 72 hours prior to drilling activities. 

• Retained the services of Exploration Geoservices, Inc (EGI) in San Jose, California, a 
California-licensed driller, to advance the auger borings.  

• Retained the services of Advanced Technology Laboratories (ATL) in Signal Hill, California, 
a Caltrans-approved and California-certified analytical laboratory, to perform the chemical 
analyses of soil samples. 

3.2 Field Activities 

Our field investigation was performed on May 9, 2019. A total of six borings were advanced using hollow 

stem auger drilling techniques and soil samples were collected from various depth intervals within the 

top 2.5 feet. Groundwater was not encountered during boring advancement.  

 

  



 

ETMA Mandela Parkway Bus Yard  BKF Engineers 
Geocon Project No. E9133-02-02 - 3 - August, 2019 

4.0 INVESTIGATIVE METHODS 

4.1 Sampling Procedures 

Soil samples were collected using hollow stem auger drilling techniques advanced in soil in the unpaved 

lot under the I-580 viaducts.  

Soil samples were collected into stainless steel sleeves and capped with Teflon tape and plastic end caps. 

Sample containers were labeled, placed in a chest cooled with ice, and transported to ATL using standard 

chain-of-custody documentation. The shallow soil borings were backfilled with soil cuttings and surrounding 

native material. 

4.2 Laboratory Analyses 

Laboratory analyses were performed by ATL under standard turnaround times. The laboratory reports 

and COC documentation are included in Appendix A. 

All samples were analyzed as follows: 

• CAM 17 total metals using EPA Test Methods 6010B/7471A. 

• TPHd and TPHmo using EPA Test Method 8015B. 

• TPHg using EPA Test Method 8015B (Modified) 

• BTEX using EPA Test Method 8260B. 

• SVOCs using EPA Test Method 8270C. 

 

Based on the total metal results, soluble metal analysis was performed as follows: 

• 1 sample for WET chromium and 5 samples for WET lead using EPA Test Method 6010B. 

• 1 sample for TCLP lead using EPA Test Method 6010B. 
 

4.3 Laboratory QA/QC 

QA/QC procedures were performed for each method of analysis with specificity for each analyte listed 

in the test method's QA/QC. The laboratory QA/QC procedures included the following: 

• One method blank for every 10 samples, batch of samples or type of matrix, whichever was more frequent. 

• One sample analyzed in duplicate for every 10 samples, batch of samples or type of matrix, 
whichever was more frequent. 

• One spiked sample for every 10 samples, batch of samples or type of matrix; whichever was 
more frequent, with the spike made at 10 times the detection limit or at the analyte level. 

 

Prior to submitting the samples to the laboratories, the COC documentation was reviewed for accuracy 

and completeness. 



 

ETMA Mandela Parkway Bus Yard  BKF Engineers 
Geocon Project No. E9133-02-02 - 4 - August, 2019 

5.0 INVESTIGATIVE RESULTS 

5.1 Subsurface Conditions 

The subsurface soils consisted of brown sand/clay with trace gravels to a depth of one to two feet, 

underlain by dark brown to black and brown-orange moist, medium stiff clay to a depth of 4.5 feet in 

most borings. Trace gravels and sands were observed in some locations. Groundwater was not 

encountered during boring advancement.  

5.2 Laboratory Analytical Results 

The analytical results are presented in Tables 1 through 3 and summarized below:  

• The following metals were not detected above their respective laboratory reporting limits: 
antimony, beryllium, cadmium, molybdenum, selenium, silver, and thallium. 

• Total chromium was reported at concentrations ranging from 18 mg/kg to 81 mg/kg. 

• WET chromium was not detected at or above the reporting limit of 1.0 mg/l.  

• Total lead was reported at concentrations ranging from not detected (laboratory reporting limit 
of 1.0 mg/kg) to 200 mg/kg. 

• WET lead was reported at concentrations ranging from 1.9 mg/l to 11 mg/l. 

• TCLP lead was reported at concentrations of not detected (laboratory reporting limit of 
0.25 mg/l). 

• Remaining CAM 17 metals were reported in the samples at total concentrations below 10 times 
their respective STLCs. 

• TPHd was reported at concentrations ranging from 2.1 mg/kg to 3,200 mg/kg. 

• TPHmo was reported at concentrations ranging from 4.2 mg/kg to 7,400 mg/kg. 

• TPHg was not detected at or above the laboratory reporting limit of 1.0 mg/kg to 100 mg/kg. 

• BTEX compounds were not detected at or above the laboratory reporting limits. 

• SVOCs compounds were not detected at or above the laboratory reporting limits, although the 
laboratory reporting limits in some samples were increased due to sample dilution as noted on 
the analytical laboratory report. 

5.3 Laboratory Quality Assurance/Quality Control 

We reviewed the QA/QC results provided with the laboratory analytical reports (Appendix A). Based on 

this limited data review, no additional qualifications of the soil data are necessary, and the data are of 

sufficient quality for the purposes of this report.  

  



 

ETMA Mandela Parkway Bus Yard  BKF Engineers 
Geocon Project No. E9133-02-02 - 5 - August, 2019 

5.4 Statistical Evaluation for Lead Detected in Soil Samples 

Statistical methods were applied to the total lead data to evaluate: 1) the upper confidence limits (UCLs) 

of the arithmetic means of the total lead concentrations for each sampling depth; and 2) if an acceptable 

correlation between total and WET lead concentrations exists that would allow the prediction of WET 

lead concentrations based on calculated UCLs. 

5.4.1 Calculating the UCLs for the Arithmetic Mean 

The upper one-sided 95% UCL of the arithmetic mean is defined as the value that, when calculated 

repeatedly for randomly drawn subsets of site data, equals or exceeds the true mean 95% of the time. 

Statistical confidence limits are the classical tool for addressing uncertainties of a distribution mean. The 

UCLs of the arithmetic mean concentration are used as the mean concentrations because it is not possible 

to know the true mean due to the essentially infinite number of soil samples that could be collected from 

a site. The UCLs therefore account for uncertainties due to limited sampling data. As data become less 

limited at a site, uncertainties decrease, and the UCLs move closer to the true mean. 

 

ProUCL (ver 5.1) was used to calculate the 95% UCLs. The ProUCL output is included in Appendix B. 

The following tables present the calculated UCL and statistics for the site: 

 
Total Lead 
95% UCL 

(mg/kg) 

Total Lead 
Mean 

(mg/kg) 

Total Lead 
Minimum 
(mg/kg) 

Total Lead 
Maximum 

(mg/kg) 

90.85 57.5 <1.0 200 

 

5.4.2 Correlation of Total and WET Lead 

Total and corresponding WET lead concentrations are bivariate data with a linear structure. This linear 

structure should allow for the prediction of WET lead concentrations based on the 95% UCL total lead 

concentrations for the site. 

 

To estimate the degree of interrelation between total and corresponding WET lead values (x and y, 

respectively), the correlation coefficient [r] is used. The correlation coefficient is a ratio that ranges from 

+1 to –1. A correlation coefficient of +1 indicates a perfect direct relationship between two variables; 

a correlation coefficient of –1 indicates that one variable changes inversely with relation to the other. 

Between the two extremes is a spectrum of less-than-perfect relationships, including zero, which 

indicates the lack of any sort of linear relationship at all. The correlation coefficient was calculated for 5 

(x, y) data points (i.e., soil samples analyzed for both total lead [x] and WET lead [y]) from the site. The 

resulting coefficient of determination (r2) equaled 0.7600, which yields a corresponding correlation 
coefficient (r) of 0.8718. 



 

ETMA Mandela Parkway Bus Yard  BKF Engineers 
Geocon Project No. E9133-02-02 - 6 - August, 2019 

 

For the correlation coefficient that indicates a linear relationship between total and WET lead 

concentrations, it is possible to compute the line of dependence or a best-fit line between the 

two variables. A least squares method was used to find the equation of a best-fit line (regression line). 

The equation of the regression line was determined to be y = 0.0565(x)-2.0839, where x represents total 

lead concentrations, y represents predicted WET lead concentrations, and -2.0839 represents the 

y-intercept.  

 

This equation was used to predict an expected WET lead concentration of 3.05 mg/l for site soils as a 

whole.  

 

Regression analysis results and a scatter plot depicting the (x, y) data points along with the regression line 

are included in Appendix B. 

  



 

ETMA Mandela Parkway Bus Yard  BKF Engineers 
Geocon Project No. E9133-02-02 - 7 - August, 2019 

6.0 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

6.1 CAM 17 Metals in Soil 

Site soil site excavated to a depth of 2.5 feet is expected to be classified as non-hazardous based on lead 

content because the maximum total lead concentration of 200 mg/kg is less than the TTLC of 

1,000 mg/kg and the 95% UCL-predicted WET lead concentration for site soil as a whole of 3.05 mg/l 

is less than the STLC of 5.0 mg/l. Site soil excavated to a depth of 2.5 feet would also be classified as 

non-hazardous based on chromium content. Other CAM 17 metals were reported in the samples at total 

concentrations below 10 times their respective STLCs. Accordingly, soil to a depth of 2.5 feet would be 

classified as non-hazardous based on CAM 17 metal content. 

 

The CAM 17 metals concentrations in site soil were compared to ESLs. Arsenic, lead, and nickel were 

reported at concentrations greater than one or more ESL value. Because concentrations of arsenic, lead, 

and nickel exceeded one or more ESL, statistical methods were used to calculate the 95% UCL for total 

arsenic, lead, and nickel. The test results are included in Appendix B. ESLs, UCLs, and published 

background concentrations for arsenic, lead, and nickel are summarized in the following table. 

 

 

Metal Maximum 
95% 
UCL 

Tier 1 
ESL 

Shallow 
Soil 

Residential 
ESL 

Shallow Soil 
Commercial/ 

Industrial 
ESL 

Worker 
Direct 

Exposure 
ESL 

Published 
Background 

Mean1 

Published 
Background 

Range1 

Arsenic 3.9 2.985 0.067 0.067 0.31 0.98 3.5 0.6 to 11 

Lead 200 90.85 80 80 320 160 23.9 12.4 to 97.1 

Nickel 88 43.24 86 820 11,000 86 57 9.0 to 509 
Concentrations reported in mg/kg 
1 Kearney Foundation of Soil Science, March 1996 
 

Based on the maximum and/or the 95% UCL concentrations for arsenic, lead, and nickel, offsite reuse 

or disposal of excavated soil may be restricted depending on proposed use. 

 

Metals results for soil samples are summarized in Tables 1 and 2. 

6.2 Petroleum Hydrocarbons in Soil 

TPHg was reported in one sample at 100 mg/kg, below residential and commercial/industrial direct 

exposure ESLs. TPHg was not detected at or above the laboratory reporting limit of 1.0 mg/kg in the 

other samples. 

TPHd was reported at concentrations ranging from 2.1 mg/kg to 3,200 mg/kg, above the residential and 

commercial/industrial direct exposure ESLs. 



 

ETMA Mandela Parkway Bus Yard  BKF Engineers 
Geocon Project No. E9133-02-02 - 8 - August, 2019 

TPHmo was reported at concentrations ranging from 4.2 mg/kg to 7,400 mg/kg, below the residential NS 

commercial/industrial direct exposure ESLs. 

Based on the reported TPHd concentrations, offsite reuse or disposal of excavated soil may be restricted 

depending on proposed use. 

A summary of petroleum hydrocarbons compounds concentrations in site soil is presented in Table 3. 

6.3  Organic Compounds in Soil 

BTEX and SVOC compounds were not detected at or above the laboratory reporting limits. 

A summary of organic compounds concentrations in site soil is presented in Table 3. 

6.4 Worker Protection 

The contractor(s) should prepare a project-specific health and safety plan to prevent or minimize worker 

exposure to metals and petroleum hydrocarbons in soil. The plan should include protocols for 

environmental and personnel monitoring, requirements for personal protective equipment, and other 

health and safety protocols and procedures for the handling of soil. 

6.5 Excess Soil Disposal 

Geocon anticipates that excess soil would not be classified as a hazardous waste (based on metal content), 

would not be accepted at offsite reuse sites (based on metal and petroleum hydrocarbon content), and 

will require disposal at a Class II landfill facility. Geocon recommends stockpiling and sampling of 

excess soil in accordance with the designated Class II landfill waste profiling requirements. 

 



San
Francisco

Bay

Lake
Merritt

Oakland    Inner    Harbor

880

880

980

980

580

580

24

13

OaklandOakland

7th

Br
oa

dw
ay

Br
oa

dw
ay

M
ar

ke
t

St
.

Grand
Ave.

14
th

Ave.

Park
Blvd.

Park

Bl
vd

.

San

Pablo

Ave.

M
an

de
la

Pk
w

y.

8th

St.

St.
40th

St.
40th

Fr
ui

tv
al

e
Av

e.

Av
e.

Lin
co

ln

Co
ol

id
ge

Oakland

Ave.

Gr
an

d
Av

e.

7th

St.

Br
oa

dw
ay

Br
oa

dw
ay

M
ar

ke
t

St
.

St.

19th

St.

14th

Grand

Ave.

19th

St.

14th

Grand
Ave.

Grand

Ave.

14
th

Ave.

Park
Blvd.

Park

Bl
vd

.

San

Pablo

Ave.

Av
e.

Te
le

gr
ap

h

Av
e.

Te
le

gr
ap

h

M
an

de
la

Pk
w

y.

8th

St.

St.
40th

St.

St.
51st

St.
51st

40th

Fr
ui

tv
al

e
Av

e.

Av
e.

Ave.

Lin
co

ln

Co
ol

id
ge

Oakland

Ave.

Gr
an

d
Av

e.

Mari
tim

e

St
.

80

80 Mountain View
Cemetery

W
eb

st
er

 T
ub

e
Po

se
y 

Tu
be

W
eb

st
er

 T
ub

e
Po

se
y 

Tu
be

PROJECT
SITE
PROJECT
SITE

580

880

N
0 1/2

Scale in Miles VICINITY MAP

June 2019 Figure 1E9133-04-02

Oakland,
California

ETMA Mandela Parkway Bus Yard

P H O N E 9 2 5 . 3 7 1 . 5 9 0 0 – FA X 9 2 5 . 3 7 1 . 5 9 1 5
6 6 7 1 B R I S A S T R E E T – L I V E R M O R E , C A  9 4 5 5 0 



N

0 50

Scale in Feet
SITE PLAN

June 2019 Figure 2E9133-02-02

Oakland,
California

ETMA Mandela Parkway Bus Yard

P H O N E 9 2 5 . 3 7 1 . 5 9 0 0 – FA X 9 2 5 . 3 7 1 . 5 9 1 5
6 6 7 1 B R I S A S T R E E T – L I V E R M O R E , C A  9 4 5 5 0 

LEGEND:

I N T E R S TAT E      5 8 0I N T E R S TAT E      5 8 0

M
A

N
D

E
L

A
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

M
A

N
D

E
L

A
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

Approximate Boring LocationB1

H6

H3

H4

H2

H1

H6

H3

H5H5

H4

H2

H1



TABLE 1
Summary of Lead Results

ETMA Mandela Parkway Bus Yard
Oakland, California

Sample ID

Sample
Depth
(feet)

Total
Lead

(mg/kg)

WET
Lead
(mg/l)

TCLP
Lead
(mg/l)

H1-0 0 to 0.5 130 4.1 ---
H1-1 1 to 1.5 20 --- ---

H2-0.5 0.5 to 1.0 28 --- ---
H2-1.5 1.5 to 2 27 --- ---

H3-0.5 0.5 to 1.0 6.9 --- ---
H3-1 1 to 1.5 71 3.1 ---

H4-1 1 to 1.5 200 11 <0.25
H4-2 2 to 2.5 18 --- ---

H5-0.5 0.5 to 1.0 57 1.9 ---
H5-1.5 1.5 to 2 130 2.7 ---

H6-0.5 0.5 to 1.0 <1.0 --- ---
H6-1.5 1.5 to 2 <1.0 --- ---

Hazardous Waste Criteria
TTLC (mg/kg) 1,000 --- ---
STLC (mg/l) --- 5.0 ---
TCLP (mg/l) --- --- 5.0

Notes:
mg/kg  = Milligrams per kilogram

mg/l  = Milligrams per liter
---  = Not analyzed or no standard
<  = Not detected above the laboratory reporting limit

WET  = Waste Extraction Test using citric acid as the extraction fluid
TCLP  = Toxicity Characteristic Leaching Procedure
TTLC  = Total Threshold Limit Concentration
STLC  = Soluble Threshold Limit Concentration

E9133-02-02 PSI Report Tables; Lead 1 of 1 August 2019



TABLE 2
Summary of CAM 17 Metals Results
ETMA Mandela Parkway Bus Yard

Oakland, California

Sample
ID

Sample
Depth (ft) A

nt
im

on
y

A
rs

en
ic

B
ar

iu
m

B
er

yl
liu

m

C
ad

m
iu

m

C
hr

om
iu

m

C
ob

al
t

C
op

pe
r

L
ea

d

M
er

cu
ry

M
ol

yb
de

nu
m

N
ic

ke
l

Se
le

ni
um

Si
lv

er

T
ha

lli
um

V
an

ad
iu

m

Z
in

c

H1-0 0 to 0.5 <2.0 3.7 140 <1.0 <1.0 23 6.2 20 130 0.13 <1.0 23 <1.0 <1.0 <1.0 20 81

H1-1 1 to 1.5 <2.0 2.5 120 <1.0 <1.0 18 5.6 14 20 0.14 <1.0 24 <1.0 <1.0 <1.0 16 36

H2-0.5 0.5 to 1.0 <2.0 3.6 48 <1.0 <1.0 29 7.4 27 28 0.13 <1.0 18 <1.0 <1.0 <1.0 36 59

H2-1.5 1.5 to 2 <2.0 2.2 130 <1.0 <1.0 33 9.7 19 27 <0.10 <1.0 51 <1.0 <1.0 <1.0 25 44

H3-0.5 0.5 to 1.0 <2.0 <1.0 33 <1.0 <1.0 24 13 33 6.9 <0.10 <1.0 25 <1.0 <1.0 <1.0 43 23

H3-1 1 to 1.5 <2.0 3.5 120 <1.0 <1.0 18 6.8 30 71 0.62 <1.0 26 <1.0 <1.0 <1.0 21 79

H4-1 1 to 1.5 <2.0 2.0 73 <1.0 <1.0 20 5.6 22 200 0.14 <1.0 24 <1.0 <1.0 <1.0 20 58

H4-2 2 to 2.5 <2.0 3.4 58 <1.0 <1.0 39 13 16 18 <0.10 <1.0 88 <1.0 <1.0 <1.0 43 33

H5-0.5 0.5 to 1.0 <2.0 1.1 48 <1.0 <1.0 26 8.8 39 57 <0.10 <1.0 26 <1.0 <1.0 <1.0 26 39

H5-1.5 1.5 to 2 <2.0 3.9 160 <1.0 <1.0 26 8.0 54 130 0.66 <1.0 38 <1.0 <1.0 <1.0 22 95

H6-0.5 0.5 to 1.0 <2.0 <1.0 2.7 <1.0 <1.0 81
<1.0

15 64 <1.0 0.13 <1.0 34 <1.0 <1.0 <1.0 29 13

H6-1.5 1.5 to 2 <2.0 <1.0 1.8 <1.0 <1.0 43 16 61 <1.0 0.14 <1.0 22 <1.0 <1.0 <1.0 45 12

Hazardous Waste Criteria
TTLC (mg/kg) 500 500 10,000 75 100 2,500 8,000 2,500 1,000 20 3,500 2,000 100 500 700 2,400 5,000

STLC (mg/l) 15 5.0 100 0.75 1.0 5.0 80 25 5.0 0.2 350 20 1.0 5.0 7.0 24 250
TCLP (mg/l) --- 5.0 100 --- 1.0 5.0 --- --- 5.0 0.2 --- --- 1.0 5.0 --- --- ---

ESLs
Residential Direct Exposure 11 0.067 15,000 16 78 120,000 23 3,100 80 13 390 820 390 390 0.78 390 23,000

Commercial/Industrial Direct Exposure 160 0.31 220,000 230 1,100 1,800,000 350 47,000 320 190 5,800 11,000 5,800 5,800 12 5,800 350,000

Background Concentrations (2)

Minimum 0.15 0.6 133 0.25 0.05 23 2.7 9.1 12.4 0.10 0.1 9.0 0.015 0.10 0.17 39 88
Mean 0.60 3.5 509 1.28 0.36 122 14.9 28.7 23.9 0.26 1.3 57 0.058 0.80 0.56 112 149

Maximum 1.95 11 1,400 2.70 1.70 1,579 46.9 96.4 97.1 0.90 9.6 509 0.430 8.30 1.10 288 236

Notes:
Results are shown in milligrams per kilogram (mg/kg) TTLC  = Total Threshold Limit Concentration

<  = not detected at or above laboratory reporting limit STLC  = Soluble Threshold Limit Concentration
Results shown in italics are soluble results in milligrams per liter (mg/l) TCLP  = Toxicity Characteristic Leaching Procedure

ESLs  = Environmental Screening Levels, SFRWQCB, 2019 (Rev 2)
(1)  = Value listed is for Chromium III, as there is no construction exposure standard for total chromium
(2)  = Background Concentrations of Trace and Major Elements in California Soils (Kearney Foundation of Soil Science, Division of Agricultural and Natural Resources, University of California, March 1996)  

E9133-02-02 PSI Report Tables; Metals - Soil 1 of 1 August 2019



TABLE 3
Summary of Petroleum Hydrocarbons and Semi-Volatile Organic Componds Results

ETMA Mandela Parkway Bus Yard
Oakland, California

Sample ID
Sample

Depth (ft)
TPHg

(mg/kg)
TPHd

(mg/kg)
TPHmo
(mg/kg)

BTEX          
(mg/kg)

SVOCs       
(mg/kg)

H1-0 0 to 0.5 <1.0 120 550 ND ND
H1-1 1 to 1.5 <1.0 3.4 5.9 ND ND

H2-0.5 0.5 to 1.0 <1.0 1,000 3,700 ND ND
H2-1.5 1.5 to 2 <1.0 25 44 ND ND

H3-0.5 0.5 to 1.0 100 3,200 7,400 ND ND
H3-1 1 to 1.5 <1.0 210 860 ND ND

H4-1 1 to 1.5 <1.0 280 1,100 ND ND
H4-2 2 to 2.5 <1.0 20 39 ND ND

H5-0.5 0.5 to 1.0 <1.0 82 250 ND ND
H5-1.5 1.5 to 2 <1.0 520 2,200 ND ND

H6-0.5 0.5 to 1.0 <1.0 30 67 ND ND
H6-1.5 1.5 to 2 <1.0 2.1 4.2 ND ND

ESLs
Residential Direct Exposure 430 260 12,000 --- ---

Commercial/Industrial Direct Exposure 2,000 1,200 180,000 --- ---

Notes:
BTEX = Benzene, Toluene, Ethylbenzene, Xlyenes
mg/kg  = milligrams per kilogram

ND = No detections above the laboratory reporting limit for the suite of analytes
SVOCs = Semi-Volatile Organic Compounds 

TPHd  = Total petroleum hydrocarbons as diesel
TPHmo  = Total petroleum hydrocarbons as motor oil

TPHg  = Total petroleum hydrocarbons as gasoline
<  = Not detected above the stated laboratory reporting limit

ESLs  = Environmental Screening Levels, SFRWQCB, 2019 (Rev 2)

E9133-02-02 PSI Report Tables; Organics - Soil 1 of 1 August 2019



 
 
 
 

 APPENDIX  A



May 21, 2019

6671 Brisa Street

Livermore, CA 94550

Rick Day

Tel: (925) 961-5270  

Fax:(925) 371-5915

Geocon Consultants, Inc.
ELAP No.:  1838        

CSDLAC No.: 10196

ORELAP No.: CA300003

Re: ATL Work Order Number :

Client Reference :

1901964

Enclosed are the results for sample(s) received on May 14, 2019 by Advanced Technology 

Laboratories. The sample(s) are tested for the parameters as indicated on the enclosed chain of 

custody in accordance with applicable laboratory certifications. The laboratory results contained 

in this report specifically pertains to the sample(s) submitted.

Thank you for the opportunity to serve the needs of your company. If you have any questions, 

please feel free to contact me or your Project Manager.

Sincerely,

President & Laboratory Director

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Edgar Caballero

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040

www.atlglobal.com

The cover letter and the case narrative are an integral part of  this analytical report and its absence renders the report invalid. 

Test results contained within this data package meet the requirements of applicable state-specific certification programs. The 

report cannot be reproduced without written permission from the client and Advanced Technology Laboratories .

Page 1 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Sample ID Laboratory ID Matrix Date Sampled Date Received

SUMMARY OF SAMPLES

H1-0 1901964-01 Soil 5/09/19   9:00 5/14/19   9:18

H1-1 1901964-02 Soil 5/09/19   9:00 5/14/19   9:18

H2-0.5 1901964-03 Soil 5/09/19   9:30 5/14/19   9:18

H2-1.5 1901964-04 Soil 5/09/19   9:30 5/14/19   9:18

H3-0.5 1901964-05 Soil 5/09/19  11:00 5/14/19   9:18

H3-1 1901964-06 Soil 5/09/19  11:00 5/14/19   9:18

H4-1 1901964-07 Soil 5/09/19  10:30 5/14/19   9:18

H4-2 1901964-08 Soil 5/09/19  10:30 5/14/19   9:18

H5-0.5 1901964-09 Soil 5/09/19  12:30 5/14/19   9:18

H5-1.5 1901964-10 Soil 5/09/19  12:30 5/14/19   9:18

H6-0.5 1901964-11 Soil 5/09/19  11:30 5/14/19   9:18

H6-1.5 1901964-12 Soil 5/09/19  11:30 5/14/19   9:18

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 2 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-01

Client Sample ID H1-0

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Title 22 Metals by ICP-AES EPA 6010B Analyst: GO

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:162.0NDAntimony

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:161.03.7Arsenic

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:161.0140Barium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:161.0NDBeryllium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:161.0NDCadmium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:161.023Chromium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:161.06.2Cobalt

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:162.020Copper

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:161.0130Lead

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:161.0NDMolybdenum

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:161.023Nickel

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:161.0NDSelenium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:161.0NDSilver

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:161.0NDThallium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:161.020Vanadium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:161.081Zinc

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Mercury by AA (Cold Vapor) EPA 7471A Analyst: KEK

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0659 05/20/2019 05/20/19 17:240.100.13Mercury

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Gasoline Range Organics by EPA 8015B (Modified) Analyst: JBL

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0619 05/18/2019 05/18/19 09:391.0NDGasoline Range Organics

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 98.5 % 05/18/2019 05/18/19 09:39B9E061945 - 149

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

10 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 01:5410120DRO

10 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 01:5410550ORO

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 3 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-01

Client Sample ID H1-0

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

Surrogate: p-Terphenyl 0% 05/17/2019 05/18/19 01:54B9E061634 - 158 S4

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Volatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8260B Analyst: VW

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 08:515.0NDBenzene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 08:515.0NDEthylbenzene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 08:5110NDm,p-Xylene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 08:515.0NDo-Xylene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 08:515.0NDToluene

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 110 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 08:51B9E058860 - 145

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 92.7 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 08:51B9E058868 - 121

Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane 106 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 08:51B9E058865 - 137

Surrogate: Toluene-d8 104 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 08:51B9E058882 - 119

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600ND1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600ND1,2-Dichlorobenzene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600ND1,3-Dichlorobenzene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600ND1,4-Dichlorobenzene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600ND2,4,5-Trichlorophenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600ND2,4,6-Trichlorophenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D133000ND2,4-Dichlorophenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600ND2,4-Dimethylphenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D133000ND2,4-Dinitrophenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600ND2,4-Dinitrotoluene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600ND2,6-Dinitrotoluene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600ND2-Chloronaphthalene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600ND2-Chlorophenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600ND2-Methylnaphthalene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600ND2-Methylphenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D133000ND2-Nitroaniline

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600ND2-Nitrophenol

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 4 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-01

Client Sample ID H1-0

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D113000ND3,3´-Dichlorobenzidine

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D133000ND3-Nitroaniline

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D133000ND4,6-Dinitro-2-methyphenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600ND4-Bromophenyl-phenylether

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D113000ND4-Chloro-3-methylphenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D113000ND4-Chloroaniline

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600ND4-Chlorophenyl-phenylether

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600ND4-Methylphenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D133000ND4-Nitroaniline

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600ND4-Nitrophenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDAcenaphthene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDAcenaphthylene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDAnthracene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D133000NDBenzidine (M)

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDBenzo(a)anthracene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDBenzo(a)pyrene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDBenzo(b)fluoranthene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDBenzo(g,h,i)perylene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDBenzo(k)fluoranthene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D133000NDBenzoic acid

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D113000NDBenzyl alcohol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDbis(2-chloroethoxy)methane

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDbis(2-Chloroethyl)ether

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDbis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDbis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDButylbenzylphthalate

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDChrysene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDDi-n-butylphthalate

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDDi-n-octylphthalate

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDDibenz(a,h)anthracene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDDibenzofuran

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDDiethyl phthalate

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDDimethyl phthalate

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDFluoranthene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDFluorene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDHexachlorobenzene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D113000NDHexachlorobutadiene

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 5 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-01

Client Sample ID H1-0

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D113000NDHexachlorocyclopentadiene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDHexachloroethane

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDIndeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDIsophorone

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDN-Nitroso-di-n propylamine

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDN-Nitrosodiphenylamine

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDNaphthalene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDNitrobenzene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D133000NDPentachlorophenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDPhenanthrene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDPhenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D16600NDPyrene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48 D133000NDPyridine

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichlorobenzene-d4 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48B9E062316 - 87 S4

Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48B9E06230 - 148 S4

Surrogate: 2-Chlorophenol-d4 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48B9E062317 - 96 S4

Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48B9E062316 - 107 S4

Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48B9E062316 - 86 S4

Surrogate: 4-Terphenyl-d14 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48B9E06233 - 156 S4

Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48B9E062316 - 99 S4

Surrogate: Phenol-d6 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 18:48B9E062317 - 90 S4

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 6 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-02

Client Sample ID H1-1

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Title 22 Metals by ICP-AES EPA 6010B Analyst: GO

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:202.0NDAntimony

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:201.02.5Arsenic

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:201.0120Barium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:201.0NDBeryllium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:201.0NDCadmium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:201.018Chromium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:201.05.6Cobalt

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:202.014Copper

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:201.020Lead

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:201.0NDMolybdenum

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:201.024Nickel

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:201.0NDSelenium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:201.0NDSilver

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:201.0NDThallium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:201.016Vanadium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:201.036Zinc

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Mercury by AA (Cold Vapor) EPA 7471A Analyst: KEK

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0659 05/20/2019 05/20/19 17:310.100.14Mercury

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Gasoline Range Organics by EPA 8015B (Modified) Analyst: JBL

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0619 05/18/2019 05/18/19 09:581.0NDGasoline Range Organics

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 94.6 % 05/18/2019 05/18/19 09:58B9E061945 - 149

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 00:321.03.4DRO

1 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 00:321.05.9ORO

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 7 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-02

Client Sample ID H1-1

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

Surrogate: p-Terphenyl 113 % 05/17/2019 05/18/19 00:32B9E061634 - 158

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Volatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8260B Analyst: VW

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:065.0NDBenzene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:065.0NDEthylbenzene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:0610NDm,p-Xylene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:065.0NDo-Xylene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:065.0NDToluene

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 110 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:06B9E058860 - 145

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 97.5 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:06B9E058868 - 121

Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane 111 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:06B9E058865 - 137

Surrogate: Toluene-d8 96.1 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:06B9E058882 - 119

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330ND1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330ND1,2-Dichlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330ND1,3-Dichlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330ND1,4-Dichlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330ND2,4,5-Trichlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330ND2,4,6-Trichlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:141600ND2,4-Dichlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330ND2,4-Dimethylphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:141600ND2,4-Dinitrophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330ND2,4-Dinitrotoluene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330ND2,6-Dinitrotoluene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330ND2-Chloronaphthalene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330ND2-Chlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330ND2-Methylnaphthalene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330ND2-Methylphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:141600ND2-Nitroaniline

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330ND2-Nitrophenol

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 8 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-02

Client Sample ID H1-1

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14660ND3,3´-Dichlorobenzidine

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:141600ND3-Nitroaniline

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:141600ND4,6-Dinitro-2-methyphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330ND4-Bromophenyl-phenylether

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14660ND4-Chloro-3-methylphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14660ND4-Chloroaniline

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330ND4-Chlorophenyl-phenylether

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330ND4-Methylphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:141600ND4-Nitroaniline

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330ND4-Nitrophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDAcenaphthene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDAcenaphthylene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDAnthracene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:141600NDBenzidine (M)

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDBenzo(a)anthracene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDBenzo(a)pyrene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDBenzo(b)fluoranthene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDBenzo(g,h,i)perylene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDBenzo(k)fluoranthene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:141600NDBenzoic acid

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14660NDBenzyl alcohol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDbis(2-chloroethoxy)methane

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDbis(2-Chloroethyl)ether

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDbis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDbis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDButylbenzylphthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDChrysene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDDi-n-butylphthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDDi-n-octylphthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDDibenz(a,h)anthracene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDDibenzofuran

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDDiethyl phthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDDimethyl phthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDFluoranthene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDFluorene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDHexachlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14660NDHexachlorobutadiene

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 9 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-02

Client Sample ID H1-1

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14660NDHexachlorocyclopentadiene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDHexachloroethane

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDIndeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDIsophorone

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDN-Nitroso-di-n propylamine

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDN-Nitrosodiphenylamine

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDNaphthalene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDNitrobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:141600NDPentachlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDPhenanthrene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDPhenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14330NDPyrene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:141600NDPyridine

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichlorobenzene-d4 84.7 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14B9E062316 - 87

Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol 139 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14B9E06230 - 148

Surrogate: 2-Chlorophenol-d4 78.6 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14B9E062317 - 96

Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl 99.6 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14B9E062316 - 107

Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol 72.0 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14B9E062316 - 86

Surrogate: 4-Terphenyl-d14 111 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14B9E06233 - 156

Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5 79.0 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14B9E062316 - 99

Surrogate: Phenol-d6 77.8 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:14B9E062317 - 90

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 10 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-03

Client Sample ID H2-0.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Title 22 Metals by ICP-AES EPA 6010B Analyst: GO

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:212.0NDAntimony

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:211.03.6Arsenic

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:211.048Barium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:211.0NDBeryllium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:211.0NDCadmium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:211.029Chromium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:211.07.4Cobalt

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:212.027Copper

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:211.028Lead

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:211.0NDMolybdenum

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:211.018Nickel

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:211.0NDSelenium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:211.0NDSilver

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:211.0NDThallium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:211.036Vanadium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:211.059Zinc

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Mercury by AA (Cold Vapor) EPA 7471A Analyst: KEK

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0659 05/20/2019 05/20/19 17:370.100.13Mercury

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Gasoline Range Organics by EPA 8015B (Modified) Analyst: JBL

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0619 05/18/2019 05/18/19 10:161.0NDGasoline Range Organics

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 94.1 % 05/18/2019 05/18/19 10:16B9E061945 - 149

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

100 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 03:161001000DRO

100 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 03:161003700ORO

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 11 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-03

Client Sample ID H2-0.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

Surrogate: p-Terphenyl 0% 05/17/2019 05/18/19 03:16B9E061634 - 158 S4

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Volatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8260B Analyst: VW

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:255.0NDBenzene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:255.0NDEthylbenzene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:2510NDm,p-Xylene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:255.0NDo-Xylene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:255.0NDToluene

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 106 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:25B9E058860 - 145

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 95.9 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:25B9E058868 - 121

Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane 110 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:25B9E058865 - 137

Surrogate: Toluene-d8 92.8 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:25B9E058882 - 119

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000ND1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000ND1,2-Dichlorobenzene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000ND1,3-Dichlorobenzene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000ND1,4-Dichlorobenzene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000ND2,4,5-Trichlorophenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000ND2,4,6-Trichlorophenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D1160000ND2,4-Dichlorophenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000ND2,4-Dimethylphenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D1160000ND2,4-Dinitrophenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000ND2,4-Dinitrotoluene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000ND2,6-Dinitrotoluene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000ND2-Chloronaphthalene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000ND2-Chlorophenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000ND2-Methylnaphthalene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000ND2-Methylphenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D1160000ND2-Nitroaniline

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000ND2-Nitrophenol

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 12 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-03

Client Sample ID H2-0.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D166000ND3,3´-Dichlorobenzidine

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D1160000ND3-Nitroaniline

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D1160000ND4,6-Dinitro-2-methyphenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000ND4-Bromophenyl-phenylether

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D166000ND4-Chloro-3-methylphenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D166000ND4-Chloroaniline

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000ND4-Chlorophenyl-phenylether

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000ND4-Methylphenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D1160000ND4-Nitroaniline

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000ND4-Nitrophenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDAcenaphthene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDAcenaphthylene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDAnthracene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D1160000NDBenzidine (M)

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDBenzo(a)anthracene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDBenzo(a)pyrene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDBenzo(b)fluoranthene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDBenzo(g,h,i)perylene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDBenzo(k)fluoranthene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D1160000NDBenzoic acid

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D166000NDBenzyl alcohol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDbis(2-chloroethoxy)methane

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDbis(2-Chloroethyl)ether

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDbis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDbis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDButylbenzylphthalate

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDChrysene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDDi-n-butylphthalate

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDDi-n-octylphthalate

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDDibenz(a,h)anthracene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDDibenzofuran

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDDiethyl phthalate

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDDimethyl phthalate

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDFluoranthene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDFluorene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDHexachlorobenzene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D166000NDHexachlorobutadiene

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 13 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-03

Client Sample ID H2-0.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D166000NDHexachlorocyclopentadiene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDHexachloroethane

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDIndeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDIsophorone

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDN-Nitroso-di-n propylamine

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDN-Nitrosodiphenylamine

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDNaphthalene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDNitrobenzene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D1160000NDPentachlorophenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDPhenanthrene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDPhenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D133000NDPyrene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40 D1160000NDPyridine

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichlorobenzene-d4 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40B9E062316 - 87 S4

Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40B9E06230 - 148 S4

Surrogate: 2-Chlorophenol-d4 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40B9E062317 - 96 S4

Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40B9E062316 - 107 S4

Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40B9E062316 - 86 S4

Surrogate: 4-Terphenyl-d14 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40B9E06233 - 156 S4

Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40B9E062316 - 99 S4

Surrogate: Phenol-d6 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 19:40B9E062317 - 90 S4

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 14 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-04

Client Sample ID H2-1.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Title 22 Metals by ICP-AES EPA 6010B Analyst: GO

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:222.0NDAntimony

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:221.02.2Arsenic

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:221.0130Barium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:221.0NDBeryllium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:221.0NDCadmium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:221.033Chromium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:221.09.7Cobalt

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:222.019Copper

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:221.027Lead

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:221.0NDMolybdenum

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:221.051Nickel

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:221.0NDSelenium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:221.0NDSilver

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:221.0NDThallium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:221.025Vanadium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:221.044Zinc

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Mercury by AA (Cold Vapor) EPA 7471A Analyst: KEK

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0659 05/20/2019 05/20/19 17:390.10NDMercury

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Gasoline Range Organics by EPA 8015B (Modified) Analyst: JBL

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0619 05/18/2019 05/18/19 10:351.0NDGasoline Range Organics

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 97.6 % 05/18/2019 05/18/19 10:35B9E061945 - 149

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 00:481.025DRO

1 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 00:481.044ORO

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 15 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-04

Client Sample ID H2-1.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

Surrogate: p-Terphenyl 105 % 05/17/2019 05/18/19 00:48B9E061634 - 158

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Volatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8260B Analyst: VW

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:435.0NDBenzene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:435.0NDEthylbenzene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:4310NDm,p-Xylene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:435.0NDo-Xylene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:435.0NDToluene

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 104 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:43B9E058860 - 145

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 94.4 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:43B9E058868 - 121

Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane 105 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:43B9E058865 - 137

Surrogate: Toluene-d8 105 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 10:43B9E058882 - 119

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330ND1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330ND1,2-Dichlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330ND1,3-Dichlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330ND1,4-Dichlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330ND2,4,5-Trichlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330ND2,4,6-Trichlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:061600ND2,4-Dichlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330ND2,4-Dimethylphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:061600ND2,4-Dinitrophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330ND2,4-Dinitrotoluene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330ND2,6-Dinitrotoluene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330ND2-Chloronaphthalene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330ND2-Chlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330ND2-Methylnaphthalene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330ND2-Methylphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:061600ND2-Nitroaniline

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330ND2-Nitrophenol

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 16 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-04

Client Sample ID H2-1.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06660ND3,3´-Dichlorobenzidine

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:061600ND3-Nitroaniline

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:061600ND4,6-Dinitro-2-methyphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330ND4-Bromophenyl-phenylether

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06660ND4-Chloro-3-methylphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06660ND4-Chloroaniline

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330ND4-Chlorophenyl-phenylether

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330ND4-Methylphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:061600ND4-Nitroaniline

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330ND4-Nitrophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDAcenaphthene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDAcenaphthylene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDAnthracene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:061600NDBenzidine (M)

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDBenzo(a)anthracene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDBenzo(a)pyrene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDBenzo(b)fluoranthene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDBenzo(g,h,i)perylene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDBenzo(k)fluoranthene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:061600NDBenzoic acid

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06660NDBenzyl alcohol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDbis(2-chloroethoxy)methane

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDbis(2-Chloroethyl)ether

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDbis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDbis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDButylbenzylphthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDChrysene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDDi-n-butylphthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDDi-n-octylphthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDDibenz(a,h)anthracene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDDibenzofuran

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDDiethyl phthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDDimethyl phthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDFluoranthene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDFluorene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDHexachlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06660NDHexachlorobutadiene

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 17 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-04

Client Sample ID H2-1.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06660NDHexachlorocyclopentadiene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDHexachloroethane

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDIndeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDIsophorone

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDN-Nitroso-di-n propylamine

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDN-Nitrosodiphenylamine

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDNaphthalene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDNitrobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:061600NDPentachlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDPhenanthrene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDPhenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06330NDPyrene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:061600NDPyridine

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichlorobenzene-d4 83.7 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06B9E062316 - 87

Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol 134 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06B9E06230 - 148

Surrogate: 2-Chlorophenol-d4 79.4 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06B9E062317 - 96

Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl 99.5 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06B9E062316 - 107

Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol 72.4 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06B9E062316 - 86

Surrogate: 4-Terphenyl-d14 115 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06B9E06233 - 156

Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5 78.9 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06B9E062316 - 99

Surrogate: Phenol-d6 79.4 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:06B9E062317 - 90

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 18 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-05

Client Sample ID H3-0.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Title 22 Metals by ICP-AES EPA 6010B Analyst: GO

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:232.0NDAntimony

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:231.0NDArsenic

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:231.033Barium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:231.0NDBeryllium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:231.0NDCadmium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:231.024Chromium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:231.013Cobalt

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:232.033Copper

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:231.06.9Lead

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:231.0NDMolybdenum

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:231.025Nickel

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:231.0NDSelenium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:231.0NDSilver

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:231.0NDThallium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:231.043Vanadium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:231.023Zinc

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Mercury by AA (Cold Vapor) EPA 7471A Analyst: KEK

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0659 05/20/2019 05/20/19 17:410.10NDMercury

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Gasoline Range Organics by EPA 8015B (Modified) Analyst: JBL

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

50 B9E0619 05/18/2019 05/18/19 13:0450100Gasoline Range Organics

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 97.8 % 05/18/2019 05/18/19 13:04B9E061945 - 149

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

100 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 03:001003200DRO

100 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 03:001007400ORO

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 19 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-05

Client Sample ID H3-0.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

Surrogate: p-Terphenyl 0% 05/17/2019 05/18/19 03:00B9E061634 - 158 S4

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Volatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8260B Analyst: VW

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

50 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 13:14 D2250NDBenzene

50 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 13:14 D2250NDEthylbenzene

50 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 13:14 D2500NDm,p-Xylene

50 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 13:14 D2250NDo-Xylene

50 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 13:14 D2250NDToluene

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 95.9 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 13:14B9E058860 - 145

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 97.5 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 13:14B9E058868 - 121

Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane 97.8 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 13:14B9E058865 - 137

Surrogate: Toluene-d8 99.4 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 13:14B9E058882 - 119

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000ND1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000ND1,2-Dichlorobenzene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000ND1,3-Dichlorobenzene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000ND1,4-Dichlorobenzene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000ND2,4,5-Trichlorophenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000ND2,4,6-Trichlorophenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D1160000ND2,4-Dichlorophenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000ND2,4-Dimethylphenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D1160000ND2,4-Dinitrophenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000ND2,4-Dinitrotoluene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000ND2,6-Dinitrotoluene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000ND2-Chloronaphthalene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000ND2-Chlorophenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000ND2-Methylnaphthalene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000ND2-Methylphenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D1160000ND2-Nitroaniline

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000ND2-Nitrophenol

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 20 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-05

Client Sample ID H3-0.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D166000ND3,3´-Dichlorobenzidine

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D1160000ND3-Nitroaniline

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D1160000ND4,6-Dinitro-2-methyphenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000ND4-Bromophenyl-phenylether

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D166000ND4-Chloro-3-methylphenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D166000ND4-Chloroaniline

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000ND4-Chlorophenyl-phenylether

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000ND4-Methylphenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D1160000ND4-Nitroaniline

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000ND4-Nitrophenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDAcenaphthene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDAcenaphthylene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDAnthracene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D1160000NDBenzidine (M)

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDBenzo(a)anthracene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDBenzo(a)pyrene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDBenzo(b)fluoranthene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDBenzo(g,h,i)perylene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDBenzo(k)fluoranthene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D1160000NDBenzoic acid

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D166000NDBenzyl alcohol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDbis(2-chloroethoxy)methane

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDbis(2-Chloroethyl)ether

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDbis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDbis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDButylbenzylphthalate

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDChrysene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDDi-n-butylphthalate

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDDi-n-octylphthalate

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDDibenz(a,h)anthracene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDDibenzofuran

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDDiethyl phthalate

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDDimethyl phthalate

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDFluoranthene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDFluorene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDHexachlorobenzene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D166000NDHexachlorobutadiene

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 21 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-05

Client Sample ID H3-0.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D166000NDHexachlorocyclopentadiene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDHexachloroethane

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDIndeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDIsophorone

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDN-Nitroso-di-n propylamine

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDN-Nitrosodiphenylamine

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDNaphthalene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDNitrobenzene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D1160000NDPentachlorophenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDPhenanthrene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDPhenol

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D133000NDPyrene

100 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32 D1160000NDPyridine

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichlorobenzene-d4 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32B9E062316 - 87 S4

Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32B9E06230 - 148 S4

Surrogate: 2-Chlorophenol-d4 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32B9E062317 - 96 S4

Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32B9E062316 - 107 S4

Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32B9E062316 - 86 S4

Surrogate: 4-Terphenyl-d14 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32B9E06233 - 156 S4

Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32B9E062316 - 99 S4

Surrogate: Phenol-d6 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:32B9E062317 - 90 S4

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 22 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-06

Client Sample ID H3-1

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Title 22 Metals by ICP-AES EPA 6010B Analyst: GO

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:242.0NDAntimony

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:241.03.5Arsenic

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:241.0120Barium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:241.0NDBeryllium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:241.0NDCadmium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:241.018Chromium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:241.06.8Cobalt

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:242.030Copper

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:241.071Lead

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:241.0NDMolybdenum

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:241.026Nickel

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:241.0NDSelenium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:241.0NDSilver

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:241.0NDThallium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:241.021Vanadium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:241.079Zinc

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Mercury by AA (Cold Vapor) EPA 7471A Analyst: KEK

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0659 05/20/2019 05/20/19 17:430.100.62Mercury

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Gasoline Range Organics by EPA 8015B (Modified) Analyst: JBL

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0619 05/18/2019 05/18/19 10:541.0NDGasoline Range Organics

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 97.8 % 05/18/2019 05/18/19 10:54B9E061945 - 149

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

10 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 02:1110210DRO

10 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 02:1110860ORO

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 23 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-06

Client Sample ID H3-1

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

Surrogate: p-Terphenyl 0% 05/17/2019 05/18/19 02:11B9E061634 - 158 S4

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Volatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8260B Analyst: VW

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:025.0NDBenzene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:025.0NDEthylbenzene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:0210NDm,p-Xylene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:025.0NDo-Xylene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:025.0NDToluene

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 107 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:02B9E058860 - 145

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 90.5 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:02B9E058868 - 121

Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane 109 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:02B9E058865 - 137

Surrogate: Toluene-d8 104 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:02B9E058882 - 119

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000ND1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000ND1,2-Dichlorobenzene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000ND1,3-Dichlorobenzene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000ND1,4-Dichlorobenzene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000ND2,4,5-Trichlorophenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000ND2,4,6-Trichlorophenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D182000ND2,4-Dichlorophenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000ND2,4-Dimethylphenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D182000ND2,4-Dinitrophenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000ND2,4-Dinitrotoluene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000ND2,6-Dinitrotoluene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000ND2-Chloronaphthalene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000ND2-Chlorophenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000ND2-Methylnaphthalene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000ND2-Methylphenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D182000ND2-Nitroaniline

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000ND2-Nitrophenol

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 24 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-06

Client Sample ID H3-1

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D133000ND3,3´-Dichlorobenzidine

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D182000ND3-Nitroaniline

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D182000ND4,6-Dinitro-2-methyphenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000ND4-Bromophenyl-phenylether

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D133000ND4-Chloro-3-methylphenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D133000ND4-Chloroaniline

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000ND4-Chlorophenyl-phenylether

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000ND4-Methylphenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D182000ND4-Nitroaniline

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000ND4-Nitrophenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDAcenaphthene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDAcenaphthylene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDAnthracene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D182000NDBenzidine (M)

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDBenzo(a)anthracene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDBenzo(a)pyrene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDBenzo(b)fluoranthene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDBenzo(g,h,i)perylene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDBenzo(k)fluoranthene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D182000NDBenzoic acid

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D133000NDBenzyl alcohol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDbis(2-chloroethoxy)methane

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDbis(2-Chloroethyl)ether

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDbis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDbis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDButylbenzylphthalate

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDChrysene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDDi-n-butylphthalate

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDDi-n-octylphthalate

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDDibenz(a,h)anthracene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDDibenzofuran

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDDiethyl phthalate

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDDimethyl phthalate

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDFluoranthene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDFluorene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDHexachlorobenzene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D133000NDHexachlorobutadiene

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 25 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-06

Client Sample ID H3-1

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D133000NDHexachlorocyclopentadiene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDHexachloroethane

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDIndeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDIsophorone

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDN-Nitroso-di-n propylamine

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDN-Nitrosodiphenylamine

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDNaphthalene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDNitrobenzene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D182000NDPentachlorophenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDPhenanthrene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDPhenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D116000NDPyrene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57 D182000NDPyridine

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichlorobenzene-d4 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57B9E062316 - 87 S4

Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57B9E06230 - 148 S4

Surrogate: 2-Chlorophenol-d4 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57B9E062317 - 96 S4

Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57B9E062316 - 107 S4

Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57B9E062316 - 86 S4

Surrogate: 4-Terphenyl-d14 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57B9E06233 - 156 S4

Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57B9E062316 - 99 S4

Surrogate: Phenol-d6 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 20:57B9E062317 - 90 S4

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 26 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-07

Client Sample ID H4-1

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Title 22 Metals by ICP-AES EPA 6010B Analyst: GO

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:252.0NDAntimony

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:251.02.0Arsenic

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:251.073Barium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:251.0NDBeryllium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:251.0NDCadmium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:251.020Chromium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:251.05.6Cobalt

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:252.022Copper

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:251.0200Lead

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:251.0NDMolybdenum

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:251.024Nickel

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:251.0NDSelenium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:251.0NDSilver

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:251.0NDThallium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:251.020Vanadium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:251.058Zinc

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Mercury by AA (Cold Vapor) EPA 7471A Analyst: KEK

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0659 05/20/2019 05/20/19 17:450.100.14Mercury

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Gasoline Range Organics by EPA 8015B (Modified) Analyst: JBL

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0619 05/18/2019 05/18/19 11:121.0NDGasoline Range Organics

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 96.1 % 05/18/2019 05/18/19 11:12B9E061945 - 149

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

25 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 02:2725280DRO

25 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 02:27251100ORO

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 27 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-07

Client Sample ID H4-1

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

Surrogate: p-Terphenyl 0% 05/17/2019 05/18/19 02:27B9E061634 - 158 S4

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Volatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8260B Analyst: VW

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:215.0NDBenzene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:215.0NDEthylbenzene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:2110NDm,p-Xylene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:215.0NDo-Xylene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:215.0NDToluene

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 99.5 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:21B9E058860 - 145

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 91.4 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:21B9E058868 - 121

Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane 104 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:21B9E058865 - 137

Surrogate: Toluene-d8 102 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:21B9E058882 - 119

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000ND1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000ND1,2-Dichlorobenzene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000ND1,3-Dichlorobenzene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000ND1,4-Dichlorobenzene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000ND2,4,5-Trichlorophenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000ND2,4,6-Trichlorophenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D182000ND2,4-Dichlorophenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000ND2,4-Dimethylphenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D182000ND2,4-Dinitrophenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000ND2,4-Dinitrotoluene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000ND2,6-Dinitrotoluene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000ND2-Chloronaphthalene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000ND2-Chlorophenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000ND2-Methylnaphthalene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000ND2-Methylphenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D182000ND2-Nitroaniline

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000ND2-Nitrophenol

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 28 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-07

Client Sample ID H4-1

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D133000ND3,3´-Dichlorobenzidine

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D182000ND3-Nitroaniline

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D182000ND4,6-Dinitro-2-methyphenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000ND4-Bromophenyl-phenylether

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D133000ND4-Chloro-3-methylphenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D133000ND4-Chloroaniline

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000ND4-Chlorophenyl-phenylether

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000ND4-Methylphenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D182000ND4-Nitroaniline

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000ND4-Nitrophenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDAcenaphthene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDAcenaphthylene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDAnthracene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D182000NDBenzidine (M)

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDBenzo(a)anthracene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDBenzo(a)pyrene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDBenzo(b)fluoranthene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDBenzo(g,h,i)perylene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDBenzo(k)fluoranthene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D182000NDBenzoic acid

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D133000NDBenzyl alcohol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDbis(2-chloroethoxy)methane

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDbis(2-Chloroethyl)ether

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDbis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDbis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDButylbenzylphthalate

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDChrysene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDDi-n-butylphthalate

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDDi-n-octylphthalate

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDDibenz(a,h)anthracene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDDibenzofuran

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDDiethyl phthalate

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDDimethyl phthalate

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDFluoranthene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDFluorene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDHexachlorobenzene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D133000NDHexachlorobutadiene

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 29 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-07

Client Sample ID H4-1

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D133000NDHexachlorocyclopentadiene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDHexachloroethane

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDIndeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDIsophorone

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDN-Nitroso-di-n propylamine

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDN-Nitrosodiphenylamine

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDNaphthalene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDNitrobenzene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D182000NDPentachlorophenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDPhenanthrene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDPhenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D116000NDPyrene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23 D182000NDPyridine

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichlorobenzene-d4 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23B9E062316 - 87 S4

Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23B9E06230 - 148 S4

Surrogate: 2-Chlorophenol-d4 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23B9E062317 - 96 S4

Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23B9E062316 - 107 S4

Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23B9E062316 - 86 S4

Surrogate: 4-Terphenyl-d14 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23B9E06233 - 156 S4

Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23B9E062316 - 99 S4

Surrogate: Phenol-d6 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:23B9E062317 - 90 S4

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 30 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-08

Client Sample ID H4-2

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Title 22 Metals by ICP-AES EPA 6010B Analyst: GO

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:262.0NDAntimony

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:261.03.4Arsenic

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:261.058Barium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:261.0NDBeryllium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:261.0NDCadmium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:261.039Chromium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:261.013Cobalt

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:262.016Copper

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:261.018Lead

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:261.0NDMolybdenum

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:261.088Nickel

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:261.0NDSelenium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:261.0NDSilver

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:261.0NDThallium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:261.043Vanadium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:261.033Zinc

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Mercury by AA (Cold Vapor) EPA 7471A Analyst: KEK

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0659 05/20/2019 05/20/19 17:470.10NDMercury

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Gasoline Range Organics by EPA 8015B (Modified) Analyst: JBL

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0619 05/18/2019 05/18/19 11:311.0NDGasoline Range Organics

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 93.7 % 05/18/2019 05/18/19 11:31B9E061945 - 149

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 01:051.020DRO

1 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 01:051.039ORO

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 31 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-08

Client Sample ID H4-2

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

Surrogate: p-Terphenyl 111 % 05/17/2019 05/18/19 01:05B9E061634 - 158

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Volatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8260B Analyst: VW

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:405.0NDBenzene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:405.0NDEthylbenzene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:4010NDm,p-Xylene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:405.0NDo-Xylene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:405.0NDToluene

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 107 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:40B9E058860 - 145

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 94.2 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:40B9E058868 - 121

Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane 105 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:40B9E058865 - 137

Surrogate: Toluene-d8 99.7 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:40B9E058882 - 119

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330ND1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330ND1,2-Dichlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330ND1,3-Dichlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330ND1,4-Dichlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330ND2,4,5-Trichlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330ND2,4,6-Trichlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:491600ND2,4-Dichlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330ND2,4-Dimethylphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:491600ND2,4-Dinitrophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330ND2,4-Dinitrotoluene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330ND2,6-Dinitrotoluene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330ND2-Chloronaphthalene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330ND2-Chlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330ND2-Methylnaphthalene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330ND2-Methylphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:491600ND2-Nitroaniline

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330ND2-Nitrophenol

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 32 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-08

Client Sample ID H4-2

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49660ND3,3´-Dichlorobenzidine

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:491600ND3-Nitroaniline

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:491600ND4,6-Dinitro-2-methyphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330ND4-Bromophenyl-phenylether

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49660ND4-Chloro-3-methylphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49660ND4-Chloroaniline

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330ND4-Chlorophenyl-phenylether

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330ND4-Methylphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:491600ND4-Nitroaniline

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330ND4-Nitrophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDAcenaphthene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDAcenaphthylene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDAnthracene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:491600NDBenzidine (M)

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDBenzo(a)anthracene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDBenzo(a)pyrene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDBenzo(b)fluoranthene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDBenzo(g,h,i)perylene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDBenzo(k)fluoranthene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:491600NDBenzoic acid

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49660NDBenzyl alcohol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDbis(2-chloroethoxy)methane

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDbis(2-Chloroethyl)ether

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDbis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDbis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDButylbenzylphthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDChrysene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDDi-n-butylphthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDDi-n-octylphthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDDibenz(a,h)anthracene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDDibenzofuran

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDDiethyl phthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDDimethyl phthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDFluoranthene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDFluorene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDHexachlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49660NDHexachlorobutadiene

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 33 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-08

Client Sample ID H4-2

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49660NDHexachlorocyclopentadiene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDHexachloroethane

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDIndeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDIsophorone

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDN-Nitroso-di-n propylamine

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDN-Nitrosodiphenylamine

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDNaphthalene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDNitrobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:491600NDPentachlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDPhenanthrene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDPhenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49330NDPyrene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:491600NDPyridine

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichlorobenzene-d4 79.0 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49B9E062316 - 87

Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol 125 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49B9E06230 - 148

Surrogate: 2-Chlorophenol-d4 79.2 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49B9E062317 - 96

Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl 97.7 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49B9E062316 - 107

Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol 71.0 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49B9E062316 - 86

Surrogate: 4-Terphenyl-d14 102 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49B9E06233 - 156

Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5 78.3 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49B9E062316 - 99

Surrogate: Phenol-d6 77.6 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 21:49B9E062317 - 90

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 34 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-09

Client Sample ID H5-0.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Title 22 Metals by ICP-AES EPA 6010B Analyst: GO

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:302.0NDAntimony

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:301.01.1Arsenic

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:301.048Barium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:301.0NDBeryllium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:301.0NDCadmium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:301.026Chromium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:301.08.8Cobalt

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:302.039Copper

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:301.057Lead

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:301.0NDMolybdenum

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:301.026Nickel

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:301.0NDSelenium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:301.0NDSilver

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:301.0NDThallium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:301.026Vanadium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:301.039Zinc

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Mercury by AA (Cold Vapor) EPA 7471A Analyst: KEK

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0659 05/20/2019 05/20/19 17:490.10NDMercury

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Gasoline Range Organics by EPA 8015B (Modified) Analyst: JBL

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0619 05/18/2019 05/18/19 11:501.0NDGasoline Range Organics

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 93.5 % 05/18/2019 05/18/19 11:50B9E061945 - 149

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

5 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 01:385.082DRO

5 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 01:385.0250ORO

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 35 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-09

Client Sample ID H5-0.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

Surrogate: p-Terphenyl 113 % 05/17/2019 05/18/19 01:38B9E061634 - 158

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Volatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8260B Analyst: VW

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:595.0NDBenzene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:595.0NDEthylbenzene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:5910NDm,p-Xylene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:595.0NDo-Xylene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:595.0NDToluene

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 104 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:59B9E058860 - 145

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 92.5 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:59B9E058868 - 121

Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane 103 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:59B9E058865 - 137

Surrogate: Toluene-d8 100 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 11:59B9E058882 - 119

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600ND1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600ND1,2-Dichlorobenzene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600ND1,3-Dichlorobenzene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600ND1,4-Dichlorobenzene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600ND2,4,5-Trichlorophenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600ND2,4,6-Trichlorophenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D133000ND2,4-Dichlorophenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600ND2,4-Dimethylphenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D133000ND2,4-Dinitrophenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600ND2,4-Dinitrotoluene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600ND2,6-Dinitrotoluene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600ND2-Chloronaphthalene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600ND2-Chlorophenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600ND2-Methylnaphthalene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600ND2-Methylphenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D133000ND2-Nitroaniline

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600ND2-Nitrophenol

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 36 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-09

Client Sample ID H5-0.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D113000ND3,3´-Dichlorobenzidine

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D133000ND3-Nitroaniline

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D133000ND4,6-Dinitro-2-methyphenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600ND4-Bromophenyl-phenylether

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D113000ND4-Chloro-3-methylphenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D113000ND4-Chloroaniline

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600ND4-Chlorophenyl-phenylether

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600ND4-Methylphenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D133000ND4-Nitroaniline

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600ND4-Nitrophenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDAcenaphthene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDAcenaphthylene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDAnthracene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D133000NDBenzidine (M)

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDBenzo(a)anthracene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDBenzo(a)pyrene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDBenzo(b)fluoranthene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDBenzo(g,h,i)perylene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDBenzo(k)fluoranthene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D133000NDBenzoic acid

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D113000NDBenzyl alcohol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDbis(2-chloroethoxy)methane

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDbis(2-Chloroethyl)ether

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDbis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDbis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDButylbenzylphthalate

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDChrysene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDDi-n-butylphthalate

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDDi-n-octylphthalate

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDDibenz(a,h)anthracene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDDibenzofuran

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDDiethyl phthalate

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDDimethyl phthalate

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDFluoranthene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDFluorene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDHexachlorobenzene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D113000NDHexachlorobutadiene

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 37 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-09

Client Sample ID H5-0.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D113000NDHexachlorocyclopentadiene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDHexachloroethane

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDIndeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDIsophorone

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDN-Nitroso-di-n propylamine

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDN-Nitrosodiphenylamine

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDNaphthalene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDNitrobenzene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D133000NDPentachlorophenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDPhenanthrene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDPhenol

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D16600NDPyrene

20 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15 D133000NDPyridine

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichlorobenzene-d4 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15B9E062316 - 87 S4

Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15B9E06230 - 148 S4

Surrogate: 2-Chlorophenol-d4 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15B9E062317 - 96 S4

Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15B9E062316 - 107 S4

Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15B9E062316 - 86 S4

Surrogate: 4-Terphenyl-d14 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15B9E06233 - 156 S4

Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15B9E062316 - 99 S4

Surrogate: Phenol-d6 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:15B9E062317 - 90 S4

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 38 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-10

Client Sample ID H5-1.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Title 22 Metals by ICP-AES EPA 6010B Analyst: GO

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:312.0NDAntimony

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:311.03.9Arsenic

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:311.0160Barium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:311.0NDBeryllium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:311.0NDCadmium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:311.026Chromium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:311.08.0Cobalt

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:312.054Copper

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:311.0130Lead

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:311.0NDMolybdenum

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:311.038Nickel

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:311.0NDSelenium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:311.0NDSilver

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:311.0NDThallium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:311.022Vanadium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:311.095Zinc

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Mercury by AA (Cold Vapor) EPA 7471A Analyst: KEK

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0659 05/20/2019 05/20/19 17:500.100.66Mercury

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Gasoline Range Organics by EPA 8015B (Modified) Analyst: JBL

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0619 05/18/2019 05/18/19 12:081.0NDGasoline Range Organics

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 93.2 % 05/18/2019 05/18/19 12:08B9E061945 - 149

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

50 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 02:4450520DRO

50 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 02:44502200ORO

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 39 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-10

Client Sample ID H5-1.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

Surrogate: p-Terphenyl 0% 05/17/2019 05/18/19 02:44B9E061634 - 158 S4

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Volatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8260B Analyst: VW

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:175.0NDBenzene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:175.0NDEthylbenzene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:1710NDm,p-Xylene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:175.0NDo-Xylene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:175.0NDToluene

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 104 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:17B9E058860 - 145

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 86.7 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:17B9E058868 - 121

Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane 104 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:17B9E058865 - 137

Surrogate: Toluene-d8 98.3 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:17B9E058882 - 119

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000ND1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000ND1,2-Dichlorobenzene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000ND1,3-Dichlorobenzene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000ND1,4-Dichlorobenzene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000ND2,4,5-Trichlorophenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000ND2,4,6-Trichlorophenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D182000ND2,4-Dichlorophenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000ND2,4-Dimethylphenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D182000ND2,4-Dinitrophenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000ND2,4-Dinitrotoluene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000ND2,6-Dinitrotoluene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000ND2-Chloronaphthalene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000ND2-Chlorophenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000ND2-Methylnaphthalene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000ND2-Methylphenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D182000ND2-Nitroaniline

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000ND2-Nitrophenol

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 40 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-10

Client Sample ID H5-1.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D133000ND3,3´-Dichlorobenzidine

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D182000ND3-Nitroaniline

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D182000ND4,6-Dinitro-2-methyphenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000ND4-Bromophenyl-phenylether

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D133000ND4-Chloro-3-methylphenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D133000ND4-Chloroaniline

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000ND4-Chlorophenyl-phenylether

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000ND4-Methylphenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D182000ND4-Nitroaniline

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000ND4-Nitrophenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDAcenaphthene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDAcenaphthylene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDAnthracene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D182000NDBenzidine (M)

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDBenzo(a)anthracene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDBenzo(a)pyrene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDBenzo(b)fluoranthene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDBenzo(g,h,i)perylene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDBenzo(k)fluoranthene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D182000NDBenzoic acid

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D133000NDBenzyl alcohol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDbis(2-chloroethoxy)methane

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDbis(2-Chloroethyl)ether

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDbis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDbis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDButylbenzylphthalate

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDChrysene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDDi-n-butylphthalate

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDDi-n-octylphthalate

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDDibenz(a,h)anthracene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDDibenzofuran

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDDiethyl phthalate

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDDimethyl phthalate

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDFluoranthene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDFluorene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDHexachlorobenzene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D133000NDHexachlorobutadiene

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 41 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-10

Client Sample ID H5-1.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D133000NDHexachlorocyclopentadiene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDHexachloroethane

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDIndeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDIsophorone

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDN-Nitroso-di-n propylamine

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDN-Nitrosodiphenylamine

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDNaphthalene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDNitrobenzene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D182000NDPentachlorophenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDPhenanthrene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDPhenol

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D116000NDPyrene

50 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41 D182000NDPyridine

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichlorobenzene-d4 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41B9E062316 - 87 S4

Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41B9E06230 - 148 S4

Surrogate: 2-Chlorophenol-d4 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41B9E062317 - 96 S4

Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41B9E062316 - 107 S4

Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41B9E062316 - 86 S4

Surrogate: 4-Terphenyl-d14 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41B9E06233 - 156 S4

Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41B9E062316 - 99 S4

Surrogate: Phenol-d6 0% 05/17/2019 05/17/19 22:41B9E062317 - 90 S4

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 42 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-11

Client Sample ID H6-0.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Title 22 Metals by ICP-AES EPA 6010B Analyst: GO

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:322.0NDAntimony

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:321.0NDArsenic

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:321.02.7Barium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:321.0NDBeryllium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:321.0NDCadmium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:321.081Chromium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:321.015Cobalt

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:322.064Copper

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:321.0NDLead

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:321.0NDMolybdenum

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:321.034Nickel

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:321.0NDSelenium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:321.0NDSilver

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:321.0NDThallium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:321.029Vanadium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:321.013Zinc

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Mercury by AA (Cold Vapor) EPA 7471A Analyst: KEK

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0659 05/20/2019 05/20/19 17:520.100.13Mercury

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Gasoline Range Organics by EPA 8015B (Modified) Analyst: JBL

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0619 05/18/2019 05/18/19 12:271.0NDGasoline Range Organics

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 93.2 % 05/18/2019 05/18/19 12:27B9E061945 - 149

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 01:211.030DRO

1 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 01:211.067ORO

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 43 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-11

Client Sample ID H6-0.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

Surrogate: p-Terphenyl 105 % 05/17/2019 05/18/19 01:21B9E061634 - 158

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Volatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8260B Analyst: VW

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:365.0NDBenzene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:365.0NDEthylbenzene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:3610NDm,p-Xylene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:365.0NDo-Xylene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:365.0NDToluene

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 109 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:36B9E058860 - 145

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 83.8 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:36B9E058868 - 121

Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane 105 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:36B9E058865 - 137

Surrogate: Toluene-d8 104 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:36B9E058882 - 119

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330ND1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330ND1,2-Dichlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330ND1,3-Dichlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330ND1,4-Dichlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330ND2,4,5-Trichlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330ND2,4,6-Trichlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:071600ND2,4-Dichlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330ND2,4-Dimethylphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:071600ND2,4-Dinitrophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330ND2,4-Dinitrotoluene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330ND2,6-Dinitrotoluene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330ND2-Chloronaphthalene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330ND2-Chlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330ND2-Methylnaphthalene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330ND2-Methylphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:071600ND2-Nitroaniline

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330ND2-Nitrophenol

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 44 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-11

Client Sample ID H6-0.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07660ND3,3´-Dichlorobenzidine

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:071600ND3-Nitroaniline

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:071600ND4,6-Dinitro-2-methyphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330ND4-Bromophenyl-phenylether

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07660ND4-Chloro-3-methylphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07660ND4-Chloroaniline

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330ND4-Chlorophenyl-phenylether

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330ND4-Methylphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:071600ND4-Nitroaniline

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330ND4-Nitrophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDAcenaphthene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDAcenaphthylene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDAnthracene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:071600NDBenzidine (M)

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDBenzo(a)anthracene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDBenzo(a)pyrene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDBenzo(b)fluoranthene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDBenzo(g,h,i)perylene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDBenzo(k)fluoranthene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:071600NDBenzoic acid

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07660NDBenzyl alcohol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDbis(2-chloroethoxy)methane

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDbis(2-Chloroethyl)ether

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDbis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDbis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDButylbenzylphthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDChrysene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDDi-n-butylphthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDDi-n-octylphthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDDibenz(a,h)anthracene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDDibenzofuran

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDDiethyl phthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDDimethyl phthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDFluoranthene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDFluorene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDHexachlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07660NDHexachlorobutadiene

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 45 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-11

Client Sample ID H6-0.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07660NDHexachlorocyclopentadiene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDHexachloroethane

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDIndeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDIsophorone

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDN-Nitroso-di-n propylamine

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDN-Nitrosodiphenylamine

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDNaphthalene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDNitrobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:071600NDPentachlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDPhenanthrene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDPhenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07330NDPyrene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:071600NDPyridine

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichlorobenzene-d4 77.4 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07B9E062316 - 87

Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol 129 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07B9E06230 - 148

Surrogate: 2-Chlorophenol-d4 74.4 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07B9E062317 - 96

Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl 91.5 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07B9E062316 - 107

Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol 67.5 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07B9E062316 - 86

Surrogate: 4-Terphenyl-d14 104 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07B9E06233 - 156

Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5 74.9 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07B9E062316 - 99

Surrogate: Phenol-d6 75.5 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:07B9E062317 - 90

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 46 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-12

Client Sample ID H6-1.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Title 22 Metals by ICP-AES EPA 6010B Analyst: GO

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:332.0NDAntimony

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:331.0NDArsenic

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:331.01.8Barium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:331.0NDBeryllium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:331.0NDCadmium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:331.043Chromium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:331.016Cobalt

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:332.061Copper

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:331.0NDLead

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:331.0NDMolybdenum

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:331.022Nickel

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:331.0NDSelenium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:331.0NDSilver

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:331.0NDThallium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:331.045Vanadium

1 B9E0656 05/20/2019 05/21/19 09:331.012Zinc

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Mercury by AA (Cold Vapor) EPA 7471A Analyst: KEK

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0659 05/20/2019 05/20/19 17:540.100.14Mercury

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Gasoline Range Organics by EPA 8015B (Modified) Analyst: JBL

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0619 05/18/2019 05/18/19 12:451.0NDGasoline Range Organics

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 95.3 % 05/18/2019 05/18/19 12:45B9E061945 - 149

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 00:151.02.1DRO

1 B9E0616 05/17/2019 05/18/19 00:151.04.2ORO

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 47 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-12

Client Sample ID H6-1.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B Analyst: HT

Result

(mg/kg)(mg/kg)

PQL

Surrogate: p-Terphenyl 116 % 05/17/2019 05/18/19 00:15B9E061634 - 158

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Volatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8260B Analyst: VW

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:555.0NDBenzene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:555.0NDEthylbenzene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:5510NDm,p-Xylene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:555.0NDo-Xylene

1 B9E0588 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:555.0NDToluene

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 107 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:55B9E058860 - 145

Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 87.8 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:55B9E058868 - 121

Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethane 104 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:55B9E058865 - 137

Surrogate: Toluene-d8 105 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 12:55B9E058882 - 119

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330ND1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330ND1,2-Dichlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330ND1,3-Dichlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330ND1,4-Dichlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330ND2,4,5-Trichlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330ND2,4,6-Trichlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:331600ND2,4-Dichlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330ND2,4-Dimethylphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:331600ND2,4-Dinitrophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330ND2,4-Dinitrotoluene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330ND2,6-Dinitrotoluene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330ND2-Chloronaphthalene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330ND2-Chlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330ND2-Methylnaphthalene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330ND2-Methylphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:331600ND2-Nitroaniline

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330ND2-Nitrophenol

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 48 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-12

Client Sample ID H6-1.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33660ND3,3´-Dichlorobenzidine

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:331600ND3-Nitroaniline

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:331600ND4,6-Dinitro-2-methyphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330ND4-Bromophenyl-phenylether

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33660ND4-Chloro-3-methylphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33660ND4-Chloroaniline

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330ND4-Chlorophenyl-phenylether

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330ND4-Methylphenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:331600ND4-Nitroaniline

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330ND4-Nitrophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDAcenaphthene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDAcenaphthylene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDAnthracene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:331600NDBenzidine (M)

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDBenzo(a)anthracene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDBenzo(a)pyrene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDBenzo(b)fluoranthene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDBenzo(g,h,i)perylene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDBenzo(k)fluoranthene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:331600NDBenzoic acid

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33660NDBenzyl alcohol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDbis(2-chloroethoxy)methane

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDbis(2-Chloroethyl)ether

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDbis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDbis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDButylbenzylphthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDChrysene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDDi-n-butylphthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDDi-n-octylphthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDDibenz(a,h)anthracene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDDibenzofuran

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDDiethyl phthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDDimethyl phthalate

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDFluoranthene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDFluorene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDHexachlorobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33660NDHexachlorobutadiene

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 49 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-12

Client Sample ID H6-1.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C Analyst: SP

Result

(ug/kg)(ug/kg)

PQL

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33660NDHexachlorocyclopentadiene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDHexachloroethane

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDIndeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDIsophorone

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDN-Nitroso-di-n propylamine

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDN-Nitrosodiphenylamine

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDNaphthalene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDNitrobenzene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:331600NDPentachlorophenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDPhenanthrene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDPhenol

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33330NDPyrene

1 B9E0623 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:331600NDPyridine

Surrogate: 1,2-Dichlorobenzene-d4 80.8 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33B9E062316 - 87

Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol 130 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33B9E06230 - 148

Surrogate: 2-Chlorophenol-d4 78.9 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33B9E062317 - 96

Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl 95.1 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33B9E062316 - 107

Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol 70.8 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33B9E062316 - 86

Surrogate: 4-Terphenyl-d14 108 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33B9E06233 - 156

Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5 78.0 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33B9E062316 - 99

Surrogate: Phenol-d6 78.3 % 05/17/2019 05/17/19 23:33B9E062317 - 90

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 50 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

QUALITY CONTROL SECTION

Title 22 Metals by ICP-AES EPA 6010B - Quality Control

Analyte

Result PQL Spike

Level

Source

Result % Rec

% Rec

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit(mg/kg) (mg/kg) Notes

MDL

(mg/kg)

Batch B9E0656 - EPA 3050B_S

Blank (B9E0656-BLK1) Prepared: 5/20/2019 Analyzed: 5/21/2019

ND 2.0Antimony 0.51

ND 1.0Arsenic 0.12

ND 1.0Barium 0.12

ND 1.0Beryllium 0.03

ND 1.0Cadmium 0.14

ND 1.0Chromium 0.26

ND 1.0Cobalt 0.07

ND 2.0Copper 0.19

ND 1.0Lead 0.18

ND 1.0Molybdenum 0.12

ND 1.0Nickel 0.18

ND 1.0Selenium 0.40

ND 1.0Silver 0.12

ND 1.0Thallium 0.38

ND 1.0Vanadium 0.06

ND 1.0Zinc 0.15

LCS (B9E0656-BS1) Prepared: 5/20/2019 Analyzed: 5/21/2019

43.9557 2.0 50.0000 87.9 80 - 120Antimony 0.51

43.7753 1.0 50.0000 87.6 80 - 120Arsenic 0.12

46.1043 1.0 50.0000 92.2 80 - 120Barium 0.12

45.1959 1.0 50.0000 90.4 80 - 120Beryllium 0.03

43.4241 1.0 50.0000 86.8 80 - 120Cadmium 0.14

46.0249 1.0 50.0000 92.0 80 - 120Chromium 0.26

45.0746 1.0 50.0000 90.1 80 - 120Cobalt 0.07

46.6357 2.0 50.0000 93.3 80 - 120Copper 0.19

44.2980 1.0 50.0000 88.6 80 - 120Lead 0.18

45.8589 1.0 50.0000 91.7 80 - 120Molybdenum 0.12

44.7095 1.0 50.0000 89.4 80 - 120Nickel 0.18

41.5998 1.0 50.0000 83.2 80 - 120Selenium 0.40

44.0735 1.0 50.0000 88.1 80 - 120Silver 0.12

45.3220 1.0 50.0000 90.6 80 - 120Thallium 0.38

46.6509 1.0 50.0000 93.3 80 - 120Vanadium 0.06

42.7566 1.0 50.0000 85.5 80 - 120Zinc 0.15

Matrix Spike (B9E0656-MS1) Source: 1901964-01 Prepared: 5/20/2019 Analyzed: 5/21/2019

75.2439 2.0 124.378 0.935644 59.7 21 - 102Antimony 0.51

88.9474 1.0 124.378 3.70476 68.5 49 - 96Arsenic 0.12

228.007 1.0 124.378 139.539 71.1 26 - 121Barium 0.12

89.3885 1.0 124.378 0.220934 71.7 51 - 96Beryllium 0.03

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 51 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Analyte

Result PQL Spike

Level

Source

Result % Rec

% Rec

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit(mg/kg) (mg/kg) Notes

Title 22 Metals by ICP-AES EPA 6010B - Quality Control (cont'd)

MDL

(mg/kg)

Batch B9E0656 - EPA 3050B_S (continued)

Matrix Spike (B9E0656-MS1) - Continued Source: 1901964-01 Prepared: 5/20/2019 Analyzed: 5/21/2019

82.6850 1.0 124.378 0.379155 66.2 46 - 93Cadmium 0.14

112.267 1.0 124.378 22.6857 72.0 44 - 107Chromium 0.26

97.2023 1.0 124.378 6.21536 73.2 49 - 100Cobalt 0.07

116.762 2.0 124.378 20.4955 77.4 46 - 115Copper 0.19

240.431 1.0 124.378 125.230 92.6 29 - 126Lead 0.18

87.4176 1.0 124.378 ND 70.3 48 - 99Molybdenum 0.12

110.834 1.0 124.378 23.4778 70.2 37 - 108Nickel 0.18

80.8419 1.0 124.378 ND 65.0 48 - 95Selenium 0.40

90.8559 1.0 124.378 ND 73.0 53 - 99Silver 0.12

82.9958 1.0 124.378 ND 66.7 38 - 93Thallium 0.38

114.883 1.0 124.378 20.3880 76.0 48 - 104Vanadium 0.06

168.389 1.0 124.378 81.4886 69.9 24 - 111Zinc 0.15

Matrix Spike Dup (B9E0656-MSD1) Source: 1901964-01 Prepared: 5/20/2019 Analyzed: 5/21/2019

76.8084 2.0 124.378 0.935644 61.0 21 - 102 2.06 20Antimony 0.51

88.6126 1.0 124.378 3.70476 68.3 49 - 96 0.377 20Arsenic 0.12

226.758 1.0 124.378 139.539 70.1 26 - 121 0.550 20Barium 0.12

91.1597 1.0 124.378 0.220934 73.1 51 - 96 1.96 20Beryllium 0.03

83.9403 1.0 124.378 0.379155 67.2 46 - 93 1.51 20Cadmium 0.14

116.092 1.0 124.378 22.6857 75.1 44 - 107 3.35 20Chromium 0.26

96.8466 1.0 124.378 6.21536 72.9 49 - 100 0.367 20Cobalt 0.07

121.118 2.0 124.378 20.4955 80.9 46 - 115 3.66 20Copper 0.19

259.248 1.0 124.378 125.230 108 29 - 126 7.53 20Lead 0.18

88.8161 1.0 124.378 ND 71.4 48 - 99 1.59 20Molybdenum 0.12

112.851 1.0 124.378 23.4778 71.9 37 - 108 1.80 20Nickel 0.18

83.4129 1.0 124.378 ND 67.1 48 - 95 3.13 20Selenium 0.40

93.2115 1.0 124.378 ND 74.9 53 - 99 2.56 20Silver 0.12

83.7274 1.0 124.378 ND 67.3 38 - 93 0.878 20Thallium 0.38

115.714 1.0 124.378 20.3880 76.6 48 - 104 0.720 20Vanadium 0.06

172.399 1.0 124.378 81.4886 73.1 24 - 111 2.35 20Zinc 0.15

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 52 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Mercury by AA (Cold Vapor) EPA 7471A - Quality Control

Analyte

Result PQL Spike

Level

Source

Result % Rec

% Rec

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit(mg/kg) (mg/kg) Notes

MDL

(mg/kg)

Batch B9E0659 - EPA 7471_S

Blank (B9E0659-BLK1) Prepared: 5/20/2019 Analyzed: 5/20/2019

ND 0.10Mercury 0.007

LCS (B9E0659-BS1) Prepared: 5/20/2019 Analyzed: 5/20/2019

0.410631 0.10 0.416667 98.6 80 - 120Mercury 0.007

Matrix Spike (B9E0659-MS1) Source: 1901964-01 Prepared: 5/20/2019 Analyzed: 5/20/2019

1.04244 0.10 0.819672 0.125175 112 70 - 130Mercury 0.007

Matrix Spike Dup (B9E0659-MSD1) Source: 1901964-01 Prepared: 5/20/2019 Analyzed: 5/20/2019

1.09390 0.10 0.847458 0.125175 114 70 - 130 4.82 20Mercury 0.007

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 53 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Mercury by AA (Cold Vapor) EPA 7471A - Quality Control

Analyte

Result PQL Spike

Level

Source

Result % Rec

% Rec

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit(mg/L) (mg/L) Notes

Batch B9E0659 - EPA 7471_S

Post Spike (B9E0659-PS1) Source: 1901964-01 Prepared: 5/20/2019 Analyzed: 5/20/2019

0.004253 2.00000E-3 1.5021E-3 138 85 - 115 M1Mercury

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 54 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Gasoline Range Organics by EPA 8015B (Modified) - Quality Control

Analyte

Result PQL Spike

Level

Source

Result % Rec

% Rec

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit(mg/kg) (mg/kg) Notes

MDL

(mg/kg)

Batch B9E0619 - GCVOA_S

Blank (B9E0619-BLK1) Prepared: 5/18/2019 Analyzed: 5/18/2019

ND 1.0Gasoline Range Organics 0.20

0.1859 0.200000 93.0 45 - 149Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene

LCS (B9E0619-BS1) Prepared: 5/18/2019 Analyzed: 5/18/2019

4.16500 1.0 5.00000 83.3 70 - 130Gasoline Range Organics 0.20

0.1896 0.200000 94.8 45 - 149Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene

Matrix Spike (B9E0619-MS1) Source: 1901964-01 Prepared: 5/18/2019 Analyzed: 5/18/2019

3.10300 1.0 5.00000 ND 62.1 24 - 129Gasoline Range Organics 0.20

0.2007 0.200000 100 45 - 149Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene

Matrix Spike Dup (B9E0619-MSD1) Source: 1901964-01 Prepared: 5/18/2019 Analyzed: 5/18/2019

2.58900 1.0 5.00000 ND 51.8 24 - 129 18.1 20Gasoline Range Organics 0.20

0.1920 0.200000 96.0 45 - 149Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 55 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Diesel Range Organics by EPA 8015B - Quality Control

Analyte

Result PQL Spike

Level

Source

Result % Rec

% Rec

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit(mg/kg) (mg/kg) Notes

MDL

(mg/kg)

Batch B9E0616 - GCSEMI_DRO_LL_S

Blank (B9E0616-BLK1) Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/17/2019

ND 1.0DRO 1.0

ND 1.0ORO 1.0

2.186 2.66667 82.0 34 - 158Surrogate: p-Terphenyl

LCS (B9E0616-BS1) Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/17/2019

28.8330 1.0 33.3333 86.5 47 - 152DRO 1.0

2.409 2.66667 90.3 34 - 158Surrogate: p-Terphenyl

Matrix Spike (B9E0616-MS1) Source: 1901964-12 Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/17/2019

24.3083 1.0 33.3333 2.14533 66.5 34 - 130DRO 1.0

3.108 2.66667 117 34 - 158Surrogate: p-Terphenyl

Matrix Spike Dup (B9E0616-MSD1) Source: 1901964-12 Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/17/2019

27.0383 1.0 33.3333 2.14533 74.7 34 - 130 10.6 20DRO 1.0

3.279 2.66667 123 34 - 158Surrogate: p-Terphenyl

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 56 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Volatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8260B - Quality Control

Analyte

Result PQL Spike

Level

Source

Result % Rec

% Rec

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit(ug/kg) (ug/kg) Notes

MDL

(ug/kg)

Batch B9E0588 - MSVOA_S

Blank (B9E0588-BLK1) Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/17/2019

ND 5.0Benzene 0.64

ND 5.0Ethylbenzene 0.91

ND 10m,p-Xylene 1.5

ND 5.0o-Xylene 0.87

ND 5.0Toluene 0.94

51.86 50.0000 104 60 - 145Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4

46.24 50.0000 92.5 68 - 121Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene

50.19 50.0000 100 65 - 137Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethan

50.34 50.0000 101 82 - 119Surrogate: Toluene-d8

Blank (B9E0588-BLK2) Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/17/2019

ND 5.0Benzene 0.64

ND 5.0Ethylbenzene 0.91

ND 10m,p-Xylene 1.5

ND 5.0o-Xylene 0.87

ND 5.0Toluene 0.94

51.47 50.0000 103 60 - 145Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4

46.66 50.0000 93.3 68 - 121Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene

50.14 50.0000 100 65 - 137Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethan

52.35 50.0000 105 82 - 119Surrogate: Toluene-d8

LCS (B9E0588-BS1) Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/17/2019

92.1300 5.0 100.000 92.1 78 - 112Benzene 0.64

90.1600 5.0 100.000 90.2 82 - 121Ethylbenzene 0.91

94.3300 10 100.000 94.3 85 - 118m,p-Xylene 1.5

88.9500 5.0 100.000 89.0 86 - 118o-Xylene 0.87

95.2900 5.0 100.000 95.3 79 - 114Toluene 0.94

53.62 50.0000 107 60 - 145Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4

49.11 50.0000 98.2 68 - 121Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene

52.85 50.0000 106 65 - 137Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethan

52.19 50.0000 104 82 - 119Surrogate: Toluene-d8

LCS Dup (B9E0588-BSD1) Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/17/2019

88.6700 5.0 100.000 88.7 78 - 112 3.83 20Benzene 0.64

89.1600 5.0 100.000 89.2 82 - 121 1.12 20Ethylbenzene 0.91

93.7100 10 100.000 93.7 85 - 118 0.659 20m,p-Xylene 1.5

91.3700 5.0 100.000 91.4 86 - 118 2.68 20o-Xylene 0.87

93.3900 5.0 100.000 93.4 79 - 114 2.01 20Toluene 0.94

54.04 50.0000 108 60 - 145Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4

50.61 50.0000 101 68 - 121Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene

54.55 50.0000 109 65 - 137Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethan

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 57 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Analyte

Result PQL Spike

Level

Source

Result % Rec

% Rec

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit(ug/kg) (ug/kg) Notes

Volatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8260B - Quality Control (cont'd)

Batch B9E0588 - MSVOA_S (continued)

LCS Dup (B9E0588-BSD1) - Continued Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/17/2019

50.01 50.0000 100 82 - 119Surrogate: Toluene-d8

Matrix Spike (B9E0588-MS1) Source: 1901964-01 Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/17/2019

82.1900 5.0 100.000 ND 82.2 48 - 117Benzene 0.64

75.5900 5.0 100.000 ND 75.6 38 - 131Ethylbenzene 0.91

77.7500 10 100.000 ND 77.8 38 - 130m,p-Xylene 1.5

76.7900 5.0 100.000 ND 76.8 41 - 129o-Xylene 0.87

81.6200 5.0 100.000 ND 81.6 45 - 122Toluene 0.94

55.25 50.0000 110 60 - 145Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4

47.54 50.0000 95.1 68 - 121Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene

52.36 50.0000 105 65 - 137Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethan

49.98 50.0000 100 82 - 119Surrogate: Toluene-d8

Matrix Spike Dup (B9E0588-MSD1) Source: 1901964-01 Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/17/2019

82.7000 5.0 100.000 ND 82.7 48 - 117 0.619 20Benzene 0.64

74.7700 5.0 100.000 ND 74.8 38 - 131 1.09 20Ethylbenzene 0.91

77.0800 10 100.000 ND 77.1 38 - 130 0.865 20m,p-Xylene 1.5

75.2000 5.0 100.000 ND 75.2 41 - 129 2.09 20o-Xylene 0.87

82.1000 5.0 100.000 ND 82.1 45 - 122 0.586 20Toluene 0.94

55.15 50.0000 110 60 - 145Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4

48.87 50.0000 97.7 68 - 121Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene

52.92 50.0000 106 65 - 137Surrogate: Dibromofluoromethan

51.98 50.0000 104 82 - 119Surrogate: Toluene-d8

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 58 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C - Quality Control

Analyte

Result PQL Spike

Level

Source

Result % Rec

% Rec

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit(ug/kg) (ug/kg) Notes

MDL

(ug/kg)

Batch B9E0623 - MSSEMI_S

Blank (B9E0623-BLK1) Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/17/2019

ND 3301,2,4-Trichlorobenzene 71

ND 3301,2-Dichlorobenzene 60

ND 3301,3-Dichlorobenzene 65

ND 3301,4-Dichlorobenzene 60

ND 3302,4,5-Trichlorophenol 61

ND 3302,4,6-Trichlorophenol 220

ND 16002,4-Dichlorophenol 120

ND 3302,4-Dimethylphenol 120

ND 16002,4-Dinitrophenol 86

ND 3302,4-Dinitrotoluene 46

ND 3302,6-Dinitrotoluene 49

ND 3302-Chloronaphthalene 59

ND 3302-Chlorophenol 120

ND 3302-Methylnaphthalene 67

ND 3302-Methylphenol 67

ND 16002-Nitroaniline 200

ND 3302-Nitrophenol 110

ND 6603,3´-Dichlorobenzidine 280

ND 16003-Nitroaniline 44

ND 16004,6-Dinitro-2-methyphenol 300

ND 3304-Bromophenyl-phenylether 50

ND 6604-Chloro-3-methylphenol 110

ND 6604-Chloroaniline 53

ND 3304-Chlorophenyl-phenylether 48

ND 3304-Methylphenol 66

ND 16004-Nitroaniline 290

ND 3304-Nitrophenol 150

ND 330Acenaphthene 48

ND 330Acenaphthylene 51

ND 330Anthracene 49

ND 1600Benzidine (M) 1400

ND 330Benzo(a)anthracene 39

ND 330Benzo(a)pyrene 45

ND 330Benzo(b)fluoranthene 55

ND 330Benzo(g,h,i)perylene 38

ND 330Benzo(k)fluoranthene 52

ND 1600Benzoic acid 890

ND 660Benzyl alcohol 67

ND 330bis(2-chloroethoxy)methane 59

ND 330bis(2-Chloroethyl)ether 57

ND 330bis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether 65

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 59 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Analyte

Result PQL Spike

Level

Source

Result % Rec

% Rec

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit(ug/kg) (ug/kg) Notes

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C - Quality Control (cont'd)

MDL

(ug/kg)

Batch B9E0623 - MSSEMI_S (continued)

Blank (B9E0623-BLK1) - Continued Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/17/2019

ND 330bis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate 83

ND 330Butylbenzylphthalate 250

ND 330Chrysene 43

ND 330Di-n-butylphthalate 230

ND 330Di-n-octylphthalate 48

ND 330Dibenz(a,h)anthracene 43

ND 330Dibenzofuran 55

ND 330Diethyl phthalate 47

ND 330Dimethyl phthalate 46

ND 330Fluoranthene 47

ND 330Fluorene 49

ND 330Hexachlorobenzene 41

ND 660Hexachlorobutadiene 61

ND 660Hexachlorocyclopentadiene 64

ND 330Hexachloroethane 71

ND 330Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene 44

ND 330Isophorone 57

ND 330N-Nitroso-di-n propylamine 65

ND 330N-Nitrosodiphenylamine 48

ND 330Naphthalene 60

ND 330Nitrobenzene 67

ND 1600Pentachlorophenol 190

ND 330Phenanthrene 46

ND 330Phenol 130

ND 330Pyrene 53

ND 1600Pyridine 270

2456 3333.33 73.7 16 - 87Surrogate: 1,2-Dichlorobenzene-d

3636 3325.00 109 0 - 148Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol

2318 3325.00 69.7 17 - 96Surrogate: 2-Chlorophenol-d4

2885 3333.33 86.6 16 - 107Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl

2274 3325.00 68.4 16 - 86Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol

3205 3333.33 96.2 3 - 156Surrogate: 4-Terphenyl-d14

2384 3333.33 71.5 16 - 99Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5

2360 3325.00 71.0 17 - 90Surrogate: Phenol-d6

LCS (B9E0623-BS1) Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/17/2019

2828.67 330 3333.33 84.9 48 - 921,2,4-Trichlorobenzene 71

2511.67 330 3333.33 75.4 40 - 861,2-Dichlorobenzene 60

2506.00 330 3333.33 75.2 39 - 821,3-Dichlorobenzene 65

2467.00 330 3333.33 74.0 40 - 821,4-Dichlorobenzene 60

3400.33 330 3333.33 102 70 - 1112,4,5-Trichlorophenol 61

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 60 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Analyte

Result PQL Spike

Level

Source

Result % Rec

% Rec

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit(ug/kg) (ug/kg) Notes

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C - Quality Control (cont'd)

MDL

(ug/kg)

Batch B9E0623 - MSSEMI_S (continued)

LCS (B9E0623-BS1) - Continued Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/17/2019

3159.33 330 3333.33 94.8 54 - 1212,4,6-Trichlorophenol 220

2852.00 1600 3333.33 85.6 49 - 1112,4-Dichlorophenol 120

2810.00 330 3333.33 84.3 43 - 1162,4-Dimethylphenol 120

3497.00 1600 3333.33 105 48 - 1382,4-Dinitrophenol 86

3369.00 330 3333.33 101 62 - 1122,4-Dinitrotoluene 46

3389.67 330 3333.33 102 59 - 1142,6-Dinitrotoluene 49

3058.67 330 3333.33 91.8 57 - 922-Chloronaphthalene 59

2511.00 330 3333.33 75.3 43 - 942-Chlorophenol 120

3003.00 330 3333.33 90.1 49 - 1092-Methylnaphthalene 67

2525.67 330 3333.33 75.8 50 - 952-Methylphenol 67

3351.33 1600 3333.33 101 57 - 1202-Nitroaniline 200

2691.00 330 3333.33 80.7 48 - 1102-Nitrophenol 110

2903.33 660 3333.33 87.1 38 - 1153,3´-Dichlorobenzidine 280

3304.67 1600 3333.33 99.1 62 - 1103-Nitroaniline 44

3004.67 1600 3333.33 90.1 57 - 1364,6-Dinitro-2-methyphenol 300

3117.00 330 3333.33 93.5 64 - 1064-Bromophenyl-phenylether 50

2843.67 660 3333.33 85.3 54 - 1144-Chloro-3-methylphenol 110

3098.33 660 3333.33 93.0 60 - 1034-Chloroaniline 53

3363.33 330 3333.33 101 57 - 1064-Chlorophenyl-phenylether 48

2738.33 330 3333.33 82.2 53 - 964-Methylphenol 66

3353.67 1600 3333.33 101 69 - 1114-Nitroaniline 290

3243.00 330 3333.33 97.3 51 - 1414-Nitrophenol 150

2952.00 330 3333.33 88.6 61 - 105Acenaphthene 48

2968.00 330 3333.33 89.0 62 - 103Acenaphthylene 51

2844.33 330 3333.33 85.3 68 - 113Anthracene 49

ND 1600 3333.33 NR 25 - 109 L4Benzidine (M) 1400

2909.67 330 3333.33 87.3 66 - 110Benzo(a)anthracene 39

3041.00 330 3333.33 91.2 68 - 118Benzo(a)pyrene 45

2957.67 330 3333.33 88.7 64 - 117Benzo(b)fluoranthene 55

2989.00 330 3333.33 89.7 68 - 114Benzo(g,h,i)perylene 38

3086.67 330 3333.33 92.6 62 - 121Benzo(k)fluoranthene 52

2112.33 1600 3333.33 63.4 23 - 115Benzoic acid 890

2696.33 660 3333.33 80.9 47 - 99Benzyl alcohol 67

2766.33 330 3333.33 83.0 41 - 90bis(2-chloroethoxy)methane 59

2547.00 330 3333.33 76.4 38 - 84bis(2-Chloroethyl)ether 57

2544.00 330 3333.33 76.3 20 - 100bis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether 65

3070.33 330 3333.33 92.1 57 - 111bis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate 83

3101.67 330 3333.33 93.1 54 - 109Butylbenzylphthalate 250

2973.00 330 3333.33 89.2 61 - 113Chrysene 43

3186.00 330 3333.33 95.6 65 - 113Di-n-butylphthalate 230

3219.67 330 3333.33 96.6 54 - 111Di-n-octylphthalate 48

2937.67 330 3333.33 88.1 63 - 126Dibenz(a,h)anthracene 43

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 61 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Analyte

Result PQL Spike

Level

Source

Result % Rec

% Rec

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit(ug/kg) (ug/kg) Notes

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C - Quality Control (cont'd)

MDL

(ug/kg)

Batch B9E0623 - MSSEMI_S (continued)

LCS (B9E0623-BS1) - Continued Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/17/2019

3401.33 330 3333.33 102 67 - 103Dibenzofuran 55

3154.33 330 3333.33 94.6 62 - 108Diethyl phthalate 47

3202.00 330 3333.33 96.1 65 - 103Dimethyl phthalate 46

3038.00 330 3333.33 91.1 66 - 117Fluoranthene 47

3214.67 330 3333.33 96.4 65 - 112Fluorene 49

3165.33 330 3333.33 95.0 59 - 117Hexachlorobenzene 41

2790.33 660 3333.33 83.7 44 - 99Hexachlorobutadiene 61

3283.67 660 3333.33 98.5 44 - 102Hexachlorocyclopentadiene 64

2346.67 330 3333.33 70.4 38 - 85Hexachloroethane 71

3042.33 330 3333.33 91.3 63 - 123Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene 44

2782.67 330 3333.33 83.5 46 - 98Isophorone 57

2497.33 330 3333.33 74.9 45 - 98N-Nitroso-di-n propylamine 65

3034.00 330 3333.33 91.0 67 - 101N-Nitrosodiphenylamine 48

2610.00 330 3333.33 78.3 54 - 92Naphthalene 60

2732.33 330 3333.33 82.0 45 - 94Nitrobenzene 67

2854.33 1600 3333.33 85.6 45 - 137Pentachlorophenol 190

2882.00 330 3333.33 86.5 68 - 113Phenanthrene 46

2550.67 330 3333.33 76.5 40 - 95Phenol 130

2990.33 330 3333.33 89.7 62 - 124Pyrene 53

407.000 1600 3333.33 12.2 3 - 93Pyridine 270

2367 3333.33 71.0 16 - 87Surrogate: 1,2-Dichlorobenzene-d

3349 3325.00 101 0 - 148Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol

2377 3325.00 71.5 17 - 96Surrogate: 2-Chlorophenol-d4

2948 3333.33 88.4 16 - 107Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl

2233 3325.00 67.2 16 - 86Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol

2974 3333.33 89.2 3 - 156Surrogate: 4-Terphenyl-d14

2546 3333.33 76.4 16 - 99Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5

2504 3325.00 75.3 17 - 90Surrogate: Phenol-d6

Matrix Spike (B9E0623-MS1) Source: 1901996-05 Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/17/2019

2668.00 330 3333.33 ND 80.0 27 - 961,2,4-Trichlorobenzene 71

2488.00 330 3333.33 ND 74.6 25 - 871,2-Dichlorobenzene 60

2506.67 330 3333.33 ND 75.2 24 - 841,3-Dichlorobenzene 65

2451.33 330 3333.33 ND 73.5 25 - 851,4-Dichlorobenzene 60

3198.67 330 3333.33 ND 96.0 29 - 1222,4,5-Trichlorophenol 61

2978.67 330 3333.33 ND 89.4 21 - 1272,4,6-Trichlorophenol 220

2677.33 1600 3333.33 ND 80.3 24 - 1152,4-Dichlorophenol 120

2548.33 330 3333.33 ND 76.4 19 - 1242,4-Dimethylphenol 120

3342.67 1600 3333.33 ND 100 0 - 1182,4-Dinitrophenol 86

3328.67 330 3333.33 ND 99.9 35 - 1122,4-Dinitrotoluene 46

3167.33 330 3333.33 ND 95.0 15 - 1372,6-Dinitrotoluene 49

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 62 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Analyte

Result PQL Spike

Level

Source

Result % Rec

% Rec

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit(ug/kg) (ug/kg) Notes

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C - Quality Control (cont'd)

MDL

(ug/kg)

Batch B9E0623 - MSSEMI_S (continued)

Matrix Spike (B9E0623-MS1) - Continued Source: 1901996-05 Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/17/2019

2984.00 330 3333.33 ND 89.5 35 - 952-Chloronaphthalene 59

2408.00 330 3333.33 ND 72.2 22 - 1002-Chlorophenol 120

2792.00 330 3333.33 ND 83.8 17 - 1232-Methylnaphthalene 67

2490.33 330 3333.33 ND 74.7 28 - 1002-Methylphenol 67

3287.33 1600 3333.33 ND 98.6 34 - 1202-Nitroaniline 200

2574.00 330 3333.33 ND 77.2 22 - 1162-Nitrophenol 110

2556.00 660 3333.33 ND 76.7 9 - 1173,3´-Dichlorobenzidine 280

3234.33 1600 3333.33 ND 97.0 29 - 1163-Nitroaniline 44

2931.33 1600 3333.33 ND 87.9 21 - 1264,6-Dinitro-2-methyphenol 300

3024.67 330 3333.33 ND 90.7 36 - 1084-Bromophenyl-phenylether 50

2684.00 660 3333.33 ND 80.5 32 - 1164-Chloro-3-methylphenol 110

2895.67 660 3333.33 ND 86.9 22 - 1154-Chloroaniline 53

3131.67 330 3333.33 ND 94.0 36 - 1044-Chlorophenyl-phenylether 48

2672.67 330 3333.33 ND 80.2 32 - 984-Methylphenol 66

3259.67 1600 3333.33 ND 97.8 37 - 1164-Nitroaniline 290

3103.67 330 3333.33 ND 93.1 0 - 1484-Nitrophenol 150

2847.67 330 3333.33 ND 85.4 35 - 108Acenaphthene 48

2886.67 330 3333.33 ND 86.6 35 - 108Acenaphthylene 51

2882.67 330 3333.33 ND 86.5 40 - 114Anthracene 49

ND 1600 3333.33 ND NR 0 - 161Benzidine (M) 1400

2848.00 330 3333.33 ND 85.4 42 - 113Benzo(a)anthracene 39

2916.67 330 3333.33 ND 87.5 38 - 117Benzo(a)pyrene 45

2857.33 330 3333.33 ND 85.7 35 - 117Benzo(b)fluoranthene 55

2804.67 330 3333.33 ND 84.1 32 - 121Benzo(g,h,i)perylene 38

2875.67 330 3333.33 ND 86.3 34 - 119Benzo(k)fluoranthene 52

2085.33 1600 3333.33 ND 62.6 19 - 133Benzoic acid 890

2693.67 660 3333.33 ND 80.8 24 - 102Benzyl alcohol 67

2652.33 330 3333.33 ND 79.6 27 - 88bis(2-chloroethoxy)methane 59

2549.33 330 3333.33 ND 76.5 26 - 82bis(2-Chloroethyl)ether 57

2522.67 330 3333.33 ND 75.7 15 - 92bis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether 65

3130.33 330 3333.33 ND 93.9 21 - 128bis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate 83

3091.00 330 3333.33 ND 92.7 14 - 136Butylbenzylphthalate 250

2974.67 330 3333.33 ND 89.2 37 - 113Chrysene 43

3172.67 330 3333.33 ND 95.2 40 - 112Di-n-butylphthalate 230

3161.67 330 3333.33 ND 94.9 8 - 137Di-n-octylphthalate 48

2750.33 330 3333.33 ND 82.5 29 - 128Dibenz(a,h)anthracene 43

3219.33 330 3333.33 ND 96.6 40 - 109Dibenzofuran 55

3111.67 330 3333.33 ND 93.4 38 - 108Diethyl phthalate 47

3099.00 330 3333.33 ND 93.0 38 - 106Dimethyl phthalate 46

2917.00 330 3333.33 ND 87.5 37 - 118Fluoranthene 47

3021.33 330 3333.33 ND 90.6 38 - 114Fluorene 49

3058.00 330 3333.33 ND 91.7 35 - 115Hexachlorobenzene 41

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 63 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Analyte

Result PQL Spike

Level

Source

Result % Rec

% Rec

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit(ug/kg) (ug/kg) Notes

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C - Quality Control (cont'd)

MDL

(ug/kg)

Batch B9E0623 - MSSEMI_S (continued)

Matrix Spike (B9E0623-MS1) - Continued Source: 1901996-05 Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/17/2019

2637.33 660 3333.33 ND 79.1 31 - 101Hexachlorobutadiene 61

3057.00 660 3333.33 ND 91.7 28 - 99Hexachlorocyclopentadiene 64

2330.00 330 3333.33 ND 69.9 27 - 87Hexachloroethane 71

2890.00 330 3333.33 ND 86.7 29 - 125Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene 44

2696.33 330 3333.33 ND 80.9 26 - 97Isophorone 57

2534.00 330 3333.33 ND 76.0 27 - 97N-Nitroso-di-n propylamine 65

2964.00 330 3333.33 ND 88.9 19 - 123N-Nitrosodiphenylamine 48

2457.33 330 3333.33 ND 73.7 26 - 103Naphthalene 60

2668.00 330 3333.33 ND 80.0 24 - 99Nitrobenzene 67

2755.67 1600 3333.33 ND 82.7 13 - 130Pentachlorophenol 190

2849.33 330 3333.33 ND 85.5 40 - 116Phenanthrene 46

2475.67 330 3333.33 ND 74.3 23 - 96Phenol 130

2901.67 330 3333.33 ND 87.1 36 - 122Pyrene 53

1621.33 1600 3333.33 ND 48.6 7 - 87Pyridine 270

2087 3333.33 62.6 16 - 87Surrogate: 1,2-Dichlorobenzene-d

2961 3325.00 89.1 0 - 148Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol

2173 3325.00 65.4 17 - 96Surrogate: 2-Chlorophenol-d4

2713 3333.33 81.4 16 - 107Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl

2035 3325.00 61.2 16 - 86Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol

2789 3333.33 83.7 3 - 156Surrogate: 4-Terphenyl-d14

2301 3333.33 69.0 16 - 99Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5

2325 3325.00 69.9 17 - 90Surrogate: Phenol-d6

Matrix Spike (B9E0623-MS2) Source: 1901964-12 Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/20/2019

3023.33 330 3333.33 ND 90.7 27 - 961,2,4-Trichlorobenzene 71

2716.00 330 3333.33 ND 81.5 25 - 871,2-Dichlorobenzene 60

2762.67 330 3333.33 ND 82.9 24 - 841,3-Dichlorobenzene 65

2726.67 330 3333.33 ND 81.8 25 - 851,4-Dichlorobenzene 60

3705.33 330 3333.33 ND 111 29 - 1222,4,5-Trichlorophenol 61

3473.67 330 3333.33 ND 104 21 - 1272,4,6-Trichlorophenol 220

3040.33 1600 3333.33 ND 91.2 24 - 1152,4-Dichlorophenol 120

2874.00 330 3333.33 ND 86.2 19 - 1242,4-Dimethylphenol 120

3503.33 1600 3333.33 ND 105 0 - 1182,4-Dinitrophenol 86

3791.67 330 3333.33 ND 114 35 - 112 M22,4-Dinitrotoluene 46

3638.67 330 3333.33 ND 109 15 - 1372,6-Dinitrotoluene 49

3439.67 330 3333.33 ND 103 35 - 95 M22-Chloronaphthalene 59

2650.67 330 3333.33 ND 79.5 22 - 1002-Chlorophenol 120

3307.00 330 3333.33 ND 99.2 17 - 1232-Methylnaphthalene 67

2801.00 330 3333.33 ND 84.0 28 - 1002-Methylphenol 67

3592.67 1600 3333.33 ND 108 34 - 1202-Nitroaniline 200

2898.33 330 3333.33 ND 87.0 22 - 1162-Nitrophenol 110

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 64 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Analyte

Result PQL Spike

Level

Source

Result % Rec

% Rec

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit(ug/kg) (ug/kg) Notes

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C - Quality Control (cont'd)

MDL

(ug/kg)

Batch B9E0623 - MSSEMI_S (continued)

Matrix Spike (B9E0623-MS2) - Continued Source: 1901964-12 Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/20/2019

3054.33 660 3333.33 ND 91.6 9 - 1173,3´-Dichlorobenzidine 280

3595.00 1600 3333.33 ND 108 29 - 1163-Nitroaniline 44

3327.33 1600 3333.33 ND 99.8 21 - 1264,6-Dinitro-2-methyphenol 300

3481.00 330 3333.33 ND 104 36 - 1084-Bromophenyl-phenylether 50

3134.00 660 3333.33 ND 94.0 32 - 1164-Chloro-3-methylphenol 110

3350.00 660 3333.33 ND 100 22 - 1154-Chloroaniline 53

3561.00 330 3333.33 ND 107 36 - 104 M24-Chlorophenyl-phenylether 48

3099.33 330 3333.33 ND 93.0 32 - 984-Methylphenol 66

3662.67 1600 3333.33 ND 110 37 - 1164-Nitroaniline 290

3458.00 330 3333.33 ND 104 0 - 1484-Nitrophenol 150

3228.33 330 3333.33 ND 96.8 35 - 108Acenaphthene 48

3246.33 330 3333.33 ND 97.4 35 - 108Acenaphthylene 51

3132.33 330 3333.33 ND 94.0 40 - 114Anthracene 49

2859.67 1600 3333.33 ND 85.8 0 - 161Benzidine (M) 1400

3157.33 330 3333.33 ND 94.7 42 - 113Benzo(a)anthracene 39

3319.00 330 3333.33 ND 99.6 38 - 117Benzo(a)pyrene 45

3354.33 330 3333.33 ND 101 35 - 117Benzo(b)fluoranthene 55

3043.00 330 3333.33 ND 91.3 32 - 121Benzo(g,h,i)perylene 38

3276.00 330 3333.33 ND 98.3 34 - 119Benzo(k)fluoranthene 52

1217.00 1600 3333.33 ND 36.5 19 - 133Benzoic acid 890

3108.00 660 3333.33 ND 93.2 24 - 102Benzyl alcohol 67

3021.33 330 3333.33 ND 90.6 27 - 88 M2bis(2-chloroethoxy)methane 59

2921.00 330 3333.33 ND 87.6 26 - 82 M2bis(2-Chloroethyl)ether 57

2867.00 330 3333.33 ND 86.0 15 - 92bis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether 65

3629.33 330 3333.33 ND 109 21 - 128bis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate 83

3743.67 330 3333.33 ND 112 14 - 136Butylbenzylphthalate 250

3353.67 330 3333.33 ND 101 37 - 113Chrysene 43

3704.33 330 3333.33 ND 111 40 - 112Di-n-butylphthalate 230

4133.00 330 3333.33 ND 124 8 - 137Di-n-octylphthalate 48

3050.67 330 3333.33 ND 91.5 29 - 128Dibenz(a,h)anthracene 43

3773.33 330 3333.33 ND 113 40 - 109 M2Dibenzofuran 55

3651.00 330 3333.33 ND 110 38 - 108 M2Diethyl phthalate 47

3640.33 330 3333.33 ND 109 38 - 106 M2Dimethyl phthalate 46

3370.67 330 3333.33 ND 101 37 - 118Fluoranthene 47

3421.67 330 3333.33 ND 103 38 - 114Fluorene 49

3473.67 330 3333.33 ND 104 35 - 115Hexachlorobenzene 41

2938.33 660 3333.33 ND 88.2 31 - 101Hexachlorobutadiene 61

3584.33 660 3333.33 ND 108 28 - 99 M2Hexachlorocyclopentadiene 64

2598.00 330 3333.33 ND 77.9 27 - 87Hexachloroethane 71

3175.00 330 3333.33 ND 95.3 29 - 125Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene 44

3059.00 330 3333.33 ND 91.8 26 - 97Isophorone 57

2959.33 330 3333.33 ND 88.8 27 - 97N-Nitroso-di-n propylamine 65

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 65 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Analyte

Result PQL Spike

Level

Source

Result % Rec

% Rec

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit(ug/kg) (ug/kg) Notes

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C - Quality Control (cont'd)

MDL

(ug/kg)

Batch B9E0623 - MSSEMI_S (continued)

Matrix Spike (B9E0623-MS2) - Continued Source: 1901964-12 Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/20/2019

3391.33 330 3333.33 ND 102 19 - 123N-Nitrosodiphenylamine 48

2816.00 330 3333.33 ND 84.5 26 - 103Naphthalene 60

2925.33 330 3333.33 ND 87.8 24 - 99Nitrobenzene 67

3287.67 1600 3333.33 ND 98.6 13 - 130Pentachlorophenol 190

3219.67 330 3333.33 ND 96.6 40 - 116Phenanthrene 46

2767.33 330 3333.33 ND 83.0 23 - 96Phenol 130

3167.67 330 3333.33 ND 95.0 36 - 122Pyrene 53

2430.00 1600 3333.33 ND 72.9 7 - 87Pyridine 270

2564 3333.33 76.9 16 - 87Surrogate: 1,2-Dichlorobenzene-d

3494 3325.00 105 0 - 148Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol

2595 3325.00 78.0 17 - 96Surrogate: 2-Chlorophenol-d4

3208 3333.33 96.2 16 - 107Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl

2429 3325.00 73.1 16 - 86Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol

3408 3333.33 102 3 - 156Surrogate: 4-Terphenyl-d14

2668 3333.33 80.0 16 - 99Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5

2667 3325.00 80.2 17 - 90Surrogate: Phenol-d6

Matrix Spike Dup (B9E0623-MSD1) Source: 1901996-05 Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/17/2019

2473.00 330 3333.33 ND 74.2 27 - 96 7.59 201,2,4-Trichlorobenzene 71

2283.67 330 3333.33 ND 68.5 25 - 87 8.56 201,2-Dichlorobenzene 60

2282.33 330 3333.33 ND 68.5 24 - 84 9.37 201,3-Dichlorobenzene 65

2282.33 330 3333.33 ND 68.5 25 - 85 7.14 201,4-Dichlorobenzene 60

3033.67 330 3333.33 ND 91.0 29 - 122 5.29 202,4,5-Trichlorophenol 61

2863.00 330 3333.33 ND 85.9 21 - 127 3.96 202,4,6-Trichlorophenol 220

2515.33 1600 3333.33 ND 75.5 24 - 115 6.24 202,4-Dichlorophenol 120

2492.67 330 3333.33 ND 74.8 19 - 124 2.21 202,4-Dimethylphenol 120

3327.33 1600 3333.33 ND 99.8 0 - 118 0.460 202,4-Dinitrophenol 86

3229.67 330 3333.33 ND 96.9 35 - 112 3.02 202,4-Dinitrotoluene 46

3179.33 330 3333.33 ND 95.4 15 - 137 0.378 202,6-Dinitrotoluene 49

2897.67 330 3333.33 ND 86.9 35 - 95 2.94 202-Chloronaphthalene 59

2257.33 330 3333.33 ND 67.7 22 - 100 6.46 202-Chlorophenol 120

2688.33 330 3333.33 ND 80.6 17 - 123 3.78 202-Methylnaphthalene 67

2349.00 330 3333.33 ND 70.5 28 - 100 5.84 202-Methylphenol 67

3193.33 1600 3333.33 ND 95.8 34 - 120 2.90 202-Nitroaniline 200

2484.33 330 3333.33 ND 74.5 22 - 116 3.55 202-Nitrophenol 110

2417.67 660 3333.33 ND 72.5 9 - 117 5.56 203,3´-Dichlorobenzidine 280

3181.33 1600 3333.33 ND 95.4 29 - 116 1.65 203-Nitroaniline 44

2892.33 1600 3333.33 ND 86.8 21 - 126 1.34 204,6-Dinitro-2-methyphenol 300

2930.67 330 3333.33 ND 87.9 36 - 108 3.16 204-Bromophenyl-phenylether 50

2659.00 660 3333.33 ND 79.8 32 - 116 0.936 204-Chloro-3-methylphenol 110

2754.00 660 3333.33 ND 82.6 22 - 115 5.02 204-Chloroaniline 53

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 66 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Analyte

Result PQL Spike

Level

Source

Result % Rec

% Rec

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit(ug/kg) (ug/kg) Notes

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C - Quality Control (cont'd)

MDL

(ug/kg)

Batch B9E0623 - MSSEMI_S (continued)

Matrix Spike Dup (B9E0623-MSD1) - Continued Source: 1901996-05 Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/17/2019

3050.67 330 3333.33 ND 91.5 36 - 104 2.62 204-Chlorophenyl-phenylether 48

2507.67 330 3333.33 ND 75.2 32 - 98 6.37 204-Methylphenol 66

3304.67 1600 3333.33 ND 99.1 37 - 116 1.37 204-Nitroaniline 290

2961.33 330 3333.33 ND 88.8 0 - 148 4.69 204-Nitrophenol 150

2790.00 330 3333.33 ND 83.7 35 - 108 2.05 20Acenaphthene 48

2774.67 330 3333.33 ND 83.2 35 - 108 3.96 20Acenaphthylene 51

2737.67 330 3333.33 ND 82.1 40 - 114 5.16 20Anthracene 49

ND 1600 3333.33 ND NR 0 - 161 NR 20Benzidine (M) 1400

2741.67 330 3333.33 ND 82.3 42 - 113 3.80 20Benzo(a)anthracene 39

2802.67 330 3333.33 ND 84.1 38 - 117 3.99 20Benzo(a)pyrene 45

2798.33 330 3333.33 ND 84.0 35 - 117 2.09 20Benzo(b)fluoranthene 55

2738.33 330 3333.33 ND 82.2 32 - 121 2.39 20Benzo(g,h,i)perylene 38

2780.00 330 3333.33 ND 83.4 34 - 119 3.38 20Benzo(k)fluoranthene 52

2170.00 1600 3333.33 ND 65.1 19 - 133 3.98 20Benzoic acid 890

2520.67 660 3333.33 ND 75.6 24 - 102 6.64 20Benzyl alcohol 67

2550.33 330 3333.33 ND 76.5 27 - 88 3.92 20bis(2-chloroethoxy)methane 59

2381.00 330 3333.33 ND 71.4 26 - 82 6.83 20bis(2-Chloroethyl)ether 57

2381.67 330 3333.33 ND 71.5 15 - 92 5.75 20bis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether 65

3021.67 330 3333.33 ND 90.7 21 - 128 3.53 20bis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate 83

3034.00 330 3333.33 ND 91.0 14 - 136 1.86 20Butylbenzylphthalate 250

2911.33 330 3333.33 ND 87.3 37 - 113 2.15 20Chrysene 43

3127.33 330 3333.33 ND 93.8 40 - 112 1.44 20Di-n-butylphthalate 230

3165.67 330 3333.33 ND 95.0 8 - 137 0.126 20Di-n-octylphthalate 48

2707.00 330 3333.33 ND 81.2 29 - 128 1.59 20Dibenz(a,h)anthracene 43

3180.33 330 3333.33 ND 95.4 40 - 109 1.22 20Dibenzofuran 55

3117.00 330 3333.33 ND 93.5 38 - 108 0.171 20Diethyl phthalate 47

3085.67 330 3333.33 ND 92.6 38 - 106 0.431 20Dimethyl phthalate 46

2914.33 330 3333.33 ND 87.4 37 - 118 0.0915 20Fluoranthene 47

2987.67 330 3333.33 ND 89.6 38 - 114 1.12 20Fluorene 49

2896.67 330 3333.33 ND 86.9 35 - 115 5.42 20Hexachlorobenzene 41

2403.67 660 3333.33 ND 72.1 31 - 101 9.27 20Hexachlorobutadiene 61

2914.33 660 3333.33 ND 87.4 28 - 99 4.78 20Hexachlorocyclopentadiene 64

2182.67 330 3333.33 ND 65.5 27 - 87 6.53 20Hexachloroethane 71

2787.00 330 3333.33 ND 83.6 29 - 125 3.63 20Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene 44

2638.67 330 3333.33 ND 79.2 26 - 97 2.16 20Isophorone 57

2436.33 330 3333.33 ND 73.1 27 - 97 3.93 20N-Nitroso-di-n propylamine 65

2844.33 330 3333.33 ND 85.3 19 - 123 4.12 20N-Nitrosodiphenylamine 48

2321.67 330 3333.33 ND 69.7 26 - 103 5.68 20Naphthalene 60

2545.00 330 3333.33 ND 76.4 24 - 99 4.72 20Nitrobenzene 67

2628.00 1600 3333.33 ND 78.8 13 - 130 4.74 20Pentachlorophenol 190

2754.33 330 3333.33 ND 82.6 40 - 116 3.39 20Phenanthrene 46

2327.33 330 3333.33 ND 69.8 23 - 96 6.18 20Phenol 130

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 67 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Analyte

Result PQL Spike

Level

Source

Result % Rec

% Rec

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit(ug/kg) (ug/kg) Notes

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C - Quality Control (cont'd)

MDL

(ug/kg)

Batch B9E0623 - MSSEMI_S (continued)

Matrix Spike Dup (B9E0623-MSD1) - Continued Source: 1901996-05 Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/17/2019

2872.00 330 3333.33 ND 86.2 36 - 122 1.03 20Pyrene 53

1395.67 1600 3333.33 ND 41.9 7 - 87 15.0 20Pyridine 270

1856 3333.33 55.7 16 - 87Surrogate: 1,2-Dichlorobenzene-d

2888 3325.00 86.9 0 - 148Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol

1948 3325.00 58.6 17 - 96Surrogate: 2-Chlorophenol-d4

2536 3333.33 76.1 16 - 107Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl

1832 3325.00 55.1 16 - 86Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol

2742 3333.33 82.3 3 - 156Surrogate: 4-Terphenyl-d14

2168 3333.33 65.0 16 - 99Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5

2039 3325.00 61.3 17 - 90Surrogate: Phenol-d6

Matrix Spike Dup (B9E0623-MSD2) Source: 1901964-12 Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/20/2019

3188.33 330 3333.33 ND 95.6 27 - 96 5.31 201,2,4-Trichlorobenzene 71

2838.00 330 3333.33 ND 85.1 25 - 87 4.39 201,2-Dichlorobenzene 60

2834.00 330 3333.33 ND 85.0 24 - 84 2.55 20 M21,3-Dichlorobenzene 65

2829.33 330 3333.33 ND 84.9 25 - 85 3.70 201,4-Dichlorobenzene 60

4046.67 330 3333.33 ND 121 29 - 122 8.81 202,4,5-Trichlorophenol 61

3701.33 330 3333.33 ND 111 21 - 127 6.35 202,4,6-Trichlorophenol 220

3290.33 1600 3333.33 ND 98.7 24 - 115 7.90 202,4-Dichlorophenol 120

3108.33 330 3333.33 ND 93.2 19 - 124 7.83 202,4-Dimethylphenol 120

3757.67 1600 3333.33 ND 113 0 - 118 7.01 202,4-Dinitrophenol 86

4249.00 330 3333.33 ND 127 35 - 112 11.4 20 M22,4-Dinitrotoluene 46

4100.00 330 3333.33 ND 123 15 - 137 11.9 202,6-Dinitrotoluene 49

3696.00 330 3333.33 ND 111 35 - 95 7.18 20 M22-Chloronaphthalene 59

2809.00 330 3333.33 ND 84.3 22 - 100 5.80 202-Chlorophenol 120

3644.67 330 3333.33 ND 109 17 - 123 9.71 202-Methylnaphthalene 67

2982.00 330 3333.33 ND 89.5 28 - 100 6.26 202-Methylphenol 67

3925.67 1600 3333.33 ND 118 34 - 120 8.86 202-Nitroaniline 200

3170.00 330 3333.33 ND 95.1 22 - 116 8.95 202-Nitrophenol 110

3408.67 660 3333.33 ND 102 9 - 117 11.0 203,3´-Dichlorobenzidine 280

3973.33 1600 3333.33 ND 119 29 - 116 10.0 20 M23-Nitroaniline 44

3635.67 1600 3333.33 ND 109 21 - 126 8.86 204,6-Dinitro-2-methyphenol 300

3742.00 330 3333.33 ND 112 36 - 108 7.23 20 M24-Bromophenyl-phenylether 50

3475.00 660 3333.33 ND 104 32 - 116 10.3 204-Chloro-3-methylphenol 110

3612.00 660 3333.33 ND 108 22 - 115 7.53 204-Chloroaniline 53

3985.67 330 3333.33 ND 120 36 - 104 11.3 20 M24-Chlorophenyl-phenylether 48

3261.00 330 3333.33 ND 97.8 32 - 98 5.08 204-Methylphenol 66

4128.67 1600 3333.33 ND 124 37 - 116 12.0 20 M24-Nitroaniline 290

3945.00 330 3333.33 ND 118 0 - 148 13.2 204-Nitrophenol 150

3570.00 330 3333.33 ND 107 35 - 108 10.1 20Acenaphthene 48

3515.67 330 3333.33 ND 105 35 - 108 7.97 20Acenaphthylene 51

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 68 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Analyte

Result PQL Spike

Level

Source

Result % Rec

% Rec

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit(ug/kg) (ug/kg) Notes

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C - Quality Control (cont'd)

MDL

(ug/kg)

Batch B9E0623 - MSSEMI_S (continued)

Matrix Spike Dup (B9E0623-MSD2) - Continued Source: 1901964-12 Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/20/2019

3313.00 330 3333.33 ND 99.4 40 - 114 5.61 20Anthracene 49

2852.00 1600 3333.33 ND 85.6 0 - 161 0.268 20Benzidine (M) 1400

3408.33 330 3333.33 ND 102 42 - 113 7.65 20Benzo(a)anthracene 39

3563.67 330 3333.33 ND 107 38 - 117 7.11 20Benzo(a)pyrene 45

3579.67 330 3333.33 ND 107 35 - 117 6.50 20Benzo(b)fluoranthene 55

3347.33 330 3333.33 ND 100 32 - 121 9.52 20Benzo(g,h,i)perylene 38

3699.67 330 3333.33 ND 111 34 - 119 12.1 20Benzo(k)fluoranthene 52

1033.33 1600 3333.33 ND 31.0 19 - 133 16.3 20Benzoic acid 890

3224.33 660 3333.33 ND 96.7 24 - 102 3.67 20Benzyl alcohol 67

3317.67 330 3333.33 ND 99.5 27 - 88 9.35 20 M2bis(2-chloroethoxy)methane 59

3018.67 330 3333.33 ND 90.6 26 - 82 3.29 20 M2bis(2-Chloroethyl)ether 57

3091.67 330 3333.33 ND 92.8 15 - 92 7.54 20 M2bis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether 65

4015.67 330 3333.33 ND 120 21 - 128 10.1 20bis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate 83

4038.33 330 3333.33 ND 121 14 - 136 7.57 20Butylbenzylphthalate 250

3525.00 330 3333.33 ND 106 37 - 113 4.98 20Chrysene 43

4033.00 330 3333.33 ND 121 40 - 112 8.50 20 M2Di-n-butylphthalate 230

4619.33 330 3333.33 ND 139 8 - 137 11.1 20 M2Di-n-octylphthalate 48

3306.67 330 3333.33 ND 99.2 29 - 128 8.05 20Dibenz(a,h)anthracene 43

4050.33 330 3333.33 ND 122 40 - 109 7.08 20 M2Dibenzofuran 55

4069.00 330 3333.33 ND 122 38 - 108 10.8 20 M2Diethyl phthalate 47

3999.67 330 3333.33 ND 120 38 - 106 9.41 20 M2Dimethyl phthalate 46

3474.33 330 3333.33 ND 104 37 - 118 3.03 20Fluoranthene 47

3844.00 330 3333.33 ND 115 38 - 114 11.6 20 M2Fluorene 49

3586.00 330 3333.33 ND 108 35 - 115 3.18 20Hexachlorobenzene 41

3075.33 660 3333.33 ND 92.3 31 - 101 4.56 20Hexachlorobutadiene 61

3823.00 660 3333.33 ND 115 28 - 99 6.44 20 M2Hexachlorocyclopentadiene 64

2765.67 330 3333.33 ND 83.0 27 - 87 6.25 20Hexachloroethane 71

3425.00 330 3333.33 ND 103 29 - 125 7.58 20Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene 44

3382.67 330 3333.33 ND 101 26 - 97 10.0 20 M2Isophorone 57

3236.67 330 3333.33 ND 97.1 27 - 97 8.95 20 M2N-Nitroso-di-n propylamine 65

3575.33 330 3333.33 ND 107 19 - 123 5.28 20N-Nitrosodiphenylamine 48

2985.33 330 3333.33 ND 89.6 26 - 103 5.84 20Naphthalene 60

3130.33 330 3333.33 ND 93.9 24 - 99 6.77 20Nitrobenzene 67

3518.33 1600 3333.33 ND 106 13 - 130 6.78 20Pentachlorophenol 190

3442.33 330 3333.33 ND 103 40 - 116 6.68 20Phenanthrene 46

2859.67 330 3333.33 ND 85.8 23 - 96 3.28 20Phenol 130

3342.00 330 3333.33 ND 100 36 - 122 5.36 20Pyrene 53

2427.67 1600 3333.33 ND 72.8 7 - 87 0.0961 20Pyridine 270

2661 3333.33 79.8 16 - 87Surrogate: 1,2-Dichlorobenzene-d

3869 3325.00 116 0 - 148Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol

2723 3325.00 81.9 17 - 96Surrogate: 2-Chlorophenol-d4

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 69 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Analyte

Result PQL Spike

Level

Source

Result % Rec

% Rec

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit(ug/kg) (ug/kg) Notes

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by EPA 8270C - Quality Control (cont'd)

Batch B9E0623 - MSSEMI_S (continued)

Matrix Spike Dup (B9E0623-MSD2) - Continued Source: 1901964-12 Prepared: 5/17/2019 Analyzed: 5/20/2019

3427 3333.33 103 16 - 107Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl

2506 3325.00 75.4 16 - 86Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol

3675 3333.33 110 3 - 156Surrogate: 4-Terphenyl-d14

2912 3333.33 87.4 16 - 99Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5

2791 3325.00 83.9 17 - 90Surrogate: Phenol-d6

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 70 of 73



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 05/21/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Notes and Definitions

S4 Surrogate was diluted out.

M2 Matrix spike recovery outside of acceptance limit due to possible matrix interference.  The analytical batch was validated by the laboratory 

control sample.

M1 Matrix spike recovery outside of acceptance limit.  The analytical batch was validated by the laboratory control sample.

L4 Laboratory Control Sample outside of control limit but within Marginal Exceedance (ME) limit.

D2 Sample required dilution due to high concentration of non-target analyte.

D1 Sample required dilution due to possible matrix interference.

ND Analyte is not detected at or above the Practical Quantitation Limit (PQL).   When client requests quantitation against MDL, 

analyte is not detected at or above the Method Detection Limit (MDL)

PQL Practical Quantitation Limit

MDL Method Detection Limit

RPD Relative Percent Difference

Not ReportedNR

CA2 CA-ELAP (CDPH)

OR-NELAP (OSPHL)OR1

Notes:

(1) The reported MDL and PQL are based on prep ratio variation and analytical dilution.

(2) The suffix [2C] of specific analytes signifies that the reported result is taken from the instrument's second column.

(3) Results are wet unless otherwise specified.

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 71 of 73



Page 72 of 73



Page 73 of 73



June 05, 2019

6671 Brisa Street

Livermore, CA 94550

Rick Day

Tel: (925) 961-5270  

Fax:(925) 371-5915

Geocon Consultants, Inc.
ELAP No.:  1838        

CSDLAC No.: 10196

ORELAP No.: CA300003

Re: ATL Work Order Number :

Client Reference :

1901964

Enclosed are the results for sample(s) received on May 14, 2019 by Advanced Technology 

Laboratories. The sample(s) are tested for the parameters as indicated on the enclosed chain of 

custody in accordance with applicable laboratory certifications. The laboratory results contained 

in this report specifically pertains to the sample(s) submitted.

Thank you for the opportunity to serve the needs of your company. If you have any questions, 

please feel free to contact me or your Project Manager.

Sincerely,

President & Laboratory Director

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Edgar Caballero

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040

www.atlglobal.com

The cover letter and the case narrative are an integral part of  this analytical report and its absence renders the report invalid. 

Test results contained within this data package meet the requirements of applicable state-specific certification programs. The 

report cannot be reproduced without written permission from the client and Advanced Technology Laboratories .

Page 1 of 12



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 06/05/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Sample ID Laboratory ID Matrix Date Sampled Date Received

SUMMARY OF SAMPLES

H1-0 1901964-01 Soil 5/09/19   9:00 5/14/19   9:18

H3-1 1901964-06 Soil 5/09/19  11:00 5/14/19   9:18

H4-1 1901964-07 Soil 5/09/19  10:30 5/14/19   9:18

H5-0.5 1901964-09 Soil 5/09/19  12:30 5/14/19   9:18

H5-1.5 1901964-10 Soil 5/09/19  12:30 5/14/19   9:18

H6-0.5 1901964-11 Soil 5/09/19  11:30 5/14/19   9:18

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 2 of 12



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 06/05/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-01

Client Sample ID H1-0

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

STLC Metals by ICP-AES by EPA 6010B Analyst: GO

Result

(mg/L)(mg/L)

PQL

20 B9E1029 06/03/2019 06/03/19 14:22 D11.04.1Lead

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 3 of 12



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 06/05/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-06

Client Sample ID H3-1

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

STLC Metals by ICP-AES by EPA 6010B Analyst: GO

Result

(mg/L)(mg/L)

PQL

20 B9E1029 06/03/2019 06/03/19 14:32 D11.03.1Lead

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 4 of 12



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 06/05/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-07

Client Sample ID H4-1

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

STLC Metals by ICP-AES by EPA 6010B Analyst: GO

Result

(mg/L)(mg/L)

PQL

20 B9E1029 06/03/2019 06/03/19 14:36 D11.011Lead

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 5 of 12



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 06/05/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-09

Client Sample ID H5-0.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

STLC Metals by ICP-AES by EPA 6010B Analyst: GO

Result

(mg/L)(mg/L)

PQL

20 B9E1029 06/03/2019 06/03/19 14:37 D11.01.9Lead

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 6 of 12



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 06/05/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-10

Client Sample ID H5-1.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

STLC Metals by ICP-AES by EPA 6010B Analyst: GO

Result

(mg/L)(mg/L)

PQL

20 B9E1029 06/03/2019 06/03/19 14:38 D11.02.7Lead

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 7 of 12



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 06/05/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-11

Client Sample ID H6-0.5

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

STLC Metals by ICP-AES by EPA 6010B Analyst: GO

Result

(mg/L)(mg/L)

PQL

20 B9E1029 06/03/2019 06/03/19 14:40 D11.0NDChromium

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 8 of 12



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 06/05/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

QUALITY CONTROL SECTION

STLC Metals by ICP-AES by EPA 6010B - Quality Control

Analyte

Result PQL Spike

Level

Source

Result % Rec

% Rec

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit(mg/L) (mg/L) Notes

MDL

(mg/L)

Batch B9E1029 - STLC_S Extraction

Blank (B9E1029-BLK1) Prepared: 6/3/2019 Analyzed: 6/3/2019

ND 1.0Chromium 0.039

ND 1.0Lead 0.094

LCS (B9E1029-BS1) Prepared: 6/3/2019 Analyzed: 6/3/2019

1.92184 2.00000 96.1 80 - 120Chromium

1.83071 2.00000 91.5 80 - 120Lead

Duplicate (B9E1029-DUP1) Source: 1901964-01 Prepared: 6/3/2019 Analyzed: 6/3/2019

ND 1.0 ND NR 20Chromium 0.039

3.75717 1.0 4.05874 7.72 20Lead 0.094

Duplicate (B9E1029-DUP2) Source: 1902078-15 Prepared: 6/3/2019 Analyzed: 6/3/2019

0.057577 1.0 0.056367 2.12 20Chromium 0.039

6.20907 1.0 6.30928 1.60 20Lead 0.094

Matrix Spike (B9E1029-MS1) Source: 1901964-01 Prepared: 6/3/2019 Analyzed: 6/3/2019

2.35320 2.50000 0.031829 92.9 70 - 130Chromium

6.20976 2.50000 4.05874 86.0 70 - 130Lead

Matrix Spike (B9E1029-MS2) Source: 1902078-15 Prepared: 6/3/2019 Analyzed: 6/3/2019

2.26460 2.50000 0.056367 88.3 70 - 130Chromium

8.21351 2.50000 6.30928 76.2 70 - 130Lead

Matrix Spike Dup (B9E1029-MSD1) Source: 1901964-01 Prepared: 6/3/2019 Analyzed: 6/3/2019

2.31888 2.50000 0.031829 91.5 70 - 130 1.47 20Chromium

6.10806 2.50000 4.05874 82.0 70 - 130 1.65 20Lead

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 9 of 12



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 06/05/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Notes and Definitions

D1 Sample required dilution due to possible matrix interference.

ND Analyte is not detected at or above the Practical Quantitation Limit (PQL).   When client requests quantitation against MDL, 

analyte is not detected at or above the Method Detection Limit (MDL)

PQL Practical Quantitation Limit

MDL Method Detection Limit

RPD Relative Percent Difference

Not ReportedNR

CA2 CA-ELAP (CDPH)

OR-NELAP (OSPHL)OR1

Notes:

(1) The reported MDL and PQL are based on prep ratio variation and analytical dilution.

(2) The suffix [2C] of specific analytes signifies that the reported result is taken from the instrument's second column.

(3) Results are wet unless otherwise specified.

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 10 of 12



�

&DUPHQ�$JXLOD

)URP� 5LFN�'D\��GD\#JHRFRQLQF�FRP!

6HQW� :HGQHVGD\��0D\���������������30

7R� &DUPHQ�$JXLOD

&F� FXVWRPHU�UHODWLRQV#DWOJOREDO�FRP

6XEMHFW� 5(��5HVXOWV��,QYRLFH���(70$�%XV�<DUG���(�������������$7/���������

,]U����u�vX�

�

Wo������v�oÇÌ���Z��(}oo}Á]vP�(}��^d>��}v����v�����d�dW�

�

íõìíõòðrìí� ,írì� >����

íõìíõòðrìò� ,ïrí� >����

íõìíõòðrìó� ,ðrí� >����

íõìíõòðrìõ� ,ñrìXñ� >����

íõìíõòðríì� ,ñríXñ� >����

íõìíõòðríí� ,òrìXñ� �Z�}u]µu�

�

�

dZ�vl�U�

Z]�lX�

�

�

Z���WllÁÁÁXP�}�}v]v�X�}ul����Ço�A��}�]�]}vW���}oµ��Vu��P]vro�(�WìVu��P]vr

�}�WìVÁ]��ZWõò��VZ�]PZ�WòóXñ��VÌr]v��ÆWîñíòòíïíîVÀ]�]�]o]�ÇWÀ]�]�o�Vu�}rÁ���r��Ço�W��µ���Vu�}rÁ]��Zr�����v�WìVu�}r

Z�]PZ�r�����v�WìVu�}rÁ���r�]���v��ro�(�WìVu�}rÁ���r�]���v��r�}�WìVu�}rÁ���r�]���v��r�]PZ�WìVu�}rÁ���r�]���v��r

�}��}uWìVu�}r�}�]�]}vrZ}�]Ì}v��oWo�(�Vu�}r�}�]�]}vrZ}�]Ì}v��or��o��]À�W��Æ�Vu�}r�}�]�]}vrÀ���]��oW���}oµ��Vu�}r

�}�]�]}vrÀ���]��or��o��]À�Wo]v�Vu�}rÁ]��Zr�����v�WìVu�}rZ�]PZ�r�����v�WìVu�}rÁ]��Zr��o��]À�W��P�Vu�}rZ�]PZ�r

��o��]À�W��P���}W�oo}Á}À��o��A�(��}W�µ��}vA���E�Richard Day, CEG, CHG | President  

GEOCON CONSULTANTS, INC. 
6671 Brisa Street, Livermore, California 94550 
P|925.371.5900 ext. 401    M|925.872.5860 
day@geoconinc.com / www.geoconinc.com / Facebook / Linkedin 

�

Bay Area ~ Sacramento ~ Fairfield ~ Los Angeles ~ Orange County ~ Riverside County ~ Coachella Valley ~ San 
Diego 
 

Geotechnical Engineering      Environmental Services      Engineering Geology      Construction Inspection 
        Land Development      Transportation      Infrastructure      Institutional      Brownfields/Redevelopment      Natural Resources 
 
 

�

�

�

&�}uW����u�v��Pµ]o��D���u�vX�Pµ]o����oPo}��oX�}uE��

^�v�W�dµ����ÇU�D�Ç�îíU�îìíõ�ïWðõ�WD�

d}W�Z]�l���Ç�D��Ç�P�}�}v]v�X�}uE�

Page 11 of 12



�

��W��µ��}u��X��o��]}v����oPo}��oX�}u�

^µ�i���W�Z��µo��l�/vÀ}]���r��dD���µ��z���U��õíïïrìîrìîU��d>·�íõìíõòð�

�

'}}���(���v}}v�Z]�lU��

�

Wo�����(]v��Ç}µ�����µo���(}���Z����}À����}i���������Z��X�/(�/���v�(µ��Z������]��U��o�����o���u��lv}ÁX��

�

�

�

dZ�vl�Ç}µU�

�

���u�v��Pµ]o��n�W�}i����D�v�P���
ADVANCED  TECHNOLOGY  LABORATORIES 

ïîóñ�t�ovµ���À�vµ�U�^]Pv�o�,]oo�����õìóññ�

KW�ñòîXõôõXðìðñ��Æ��îðñ�n&W�ñòîXõôõròïðô�nDW�ñòîXóíñXôóóì�

Z���WllÁÁÁX��oPo}��oX�}u�

  Laboratory   Excellence   Defined 
�

�
$GYDQFHG�7HFKQRORJ\�/DERUDWRULHV�LV�D�IXOO�VHUYLFH�HQYLURQPHQWDO�ODE�SURYLGLQJ�RUJDQLF�DQG�LQRUJDQLF�DQDO\VHV�RI�VRLO��ZDWHU��ZDVWHZDWHU��VWRUP�ZDWHU�DQG�
KD]DUGRXV�ZDVWH�VDPSOHV��$7/�LV�DFFUHGLWHG�E\�WKH�6WDWH�RI�&DOLIRUQLD��1(/$3�DQG�6WDWH�RI�2UHJRQ��$LU��DQG�KROGV�YDULRXV�6%(��'%(�DQG�0%(�FHUWLILFDWHV�DQG�D�
86'$�VRLO�SHUPLW��$7/�WDNHV�SULGH�LQ�SURYLGLQJ�RXU�FXVWRPHUV�ZLWK�TXLFN�WXUQDURXQG�WLPH��H[FHOOHQW�FXVWRPHU�VHUYLFH�DQG�GHIHQVLEOH�GDWD�ZKLOH�RIIHULQJ�YHU\�
FRPSHWLWLYH�UDWHV� Advanced Technology Labs - Your Partner for Quality Environmental Testing�
7KLV�PHVVDJH�LV�LQWHQGHG�IRU�WKH�XVH�RI�WKH�LQGLYLGXDO�RU�HQWLW\�WR�ZKLFK�LW�LV�DGGUHVVHG��7KLV�PD\�FRQWDLQ�LQIRUPDWLRQ�WKDW�LV�SULYLOHJHG��FRQILGHQWLDO��DQG�H[HPSW�
IURP�GLVFORVXUH�XQGHU�DSSOLFDEOH�ODZ��,I�WKH�UHDGHU�RI�WKLV�PHVVDJH�LV�QRW�WKH�LQWHQGHG�UHFLSLHQW��RU�WKH�HPSOR\HH�RU�DJHQW�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�GHOLYHULQJ�WKH�PHVVDJH�
WR�WKH�LQWHQGHG�UHFLSLHQW��\RX�DUH�KHUHE\�QRWLILHG�WKDW�DQ\�GLVVHPLQDWLRQ��GLVWULEXWLRQ�RU�FRS\LQJ�RI�WKLV�FRPPXQLFDWLRQ�LV�VWULFWO\�SURKLELWHG��,I�\RX�KDYH�UHFHLYHG�WKLV�
FRPPXQLFDWLRQ�LQ�HUURU��SOHDVH�QRWLI\�XV�LPPHGLDWHO\�E\�WHOHSKRQH�DQG�GHOHWH�WKH�RULJLQDO�PHVVDJH��7KDQN�\RX��

�

�

�

�

�

Page 12 of 12



June 07, 2019

6671 Brisa Street

Livermore, CA 94550

Rick Day

Tel: (925) 961-5270  

Fax:(925) 371-5915

Geocon Consultants, Inc.
ELAP No.:  1838        

CSDLAC No.: 10196

ORELAP No.: CA300003

Re: ATL Work Order Number :

Client Reference :

1901964

Enclosed are the results for sample(s) received on May 14, 2019 by Advanced Technology 

Laboratories. The sample(s) are tested for the parameters as indicated on the enclosed chain of 

custody in accordance with applicable laboratory certifications. The laboratory results contained 

in this report specifically pertains to the sample(s) submitted.

Thank you for the opportunity to serve the needs of your company. If you have any questions, 

please feel free to contact me or your Project Manager.

Sincerely,

President & Laboratory Director

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Edgar Caballero

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040

www.atlglobal.com

The cover letter and the case narrative are an integral part of  this analytical report and its absence renders the report invalid. 

Test results contained within this data package meet the requirements of applicable state-specific certification programs. The 

report cannot be reproduced without written permission from the client and Advanced Technology Laboratories .

Page 1 of 6



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 06/07/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Sample ID Laboratory ID Matrix Date Sampled Date Received

SUMMARY OF SAMPLES

H4-1 1901964-07 Soil 5/09/19  10:30 5/14/19   9:18

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 2 of 6



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 06/07/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Lab ID: 1901964-07

Client Sample ID H4-1

Notes

Date/Time

AnalyzedPreparedBatchDilutionAnalyte

TCLP Metals by ICP-AES EPA 6010B Analyst: GO

Result

(mg/L)(mg/L)

PQL

5 B9F0183 06/07/2019 06/07/19 14:59 D10.25NDLead

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 3 of 6



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 06/07/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

QUALITY CONTROL SECTION

TCLP Metals by ICP-AES EPA 6010B - Quality Control

Analyte

Result PQL Spike

Level

Source

Result % Rec

% Rec

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit(mg/L) (mg/L) Notes

MDL

(mg/L)

Batch B9F0183 - EPA 3010A_S

Blank (B9F0183-BLK1) Prepared: 6/7/2019 Analyzed: 6/7/2019

ND 0.050Lead 0.0047

LCS (B9F0183-BS1) Prepared: 6/7/2019 Analyzed: 6/7/2019

0.813963 0.050 1.00000 81.4 80 - 120Lead 0.0047

Duplicate (B9F0183-DUP1) Source: 1901964-07 Prepared: 6/7/2019 Analyzed: 6/7/2019

ND 0.25 ND NR 20Lead 0.024

Duplicate (B9F0183-DUP2) Source: 1902078-15 Prepared: 6/7/2019 Analyzed: 6/7/2019

ND 0.25 ND NR 20Lead 0.024

Matrix Spike (B9F0183-MS1) Source: 1901964-07 Prepared: 6/7/2019 Analyzed: 6/7/2019

2.18870 0.25 2.50000 ND 87.5 59 - 123Lead 0.024

Matrix Spike Dup (B9F0183-MSD1) Source: 1901964-07 Prepared: 6/7/2019 Analyzed: 6/7/2019

2.18784 0.25 2.50000 ND 87.5 59 - 123 0.0390 20Lead 0.024

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 4 of 6



6671 Brisa Street

Livermore , CA 94550

Project Number :

Report To :

ETMA Bus Yard,  E9133-02-02

Rick Day

Reported : 06/07/2019

Geocon Consultants, Inc.

Certificate of Analysis

Notes and Definitions

D1 Sample required dilution due to possible matrix interference.

ND Analyte is not detected at or above the Practical Quantitation Limit (PQL).   When client requests quantitation against MDL, 

analyte is not detected at or above the Method Detection Limit (MDL)

PQL Practical Quantitation Limit

MDL Method Detection Limit

RPD Relative Percent Difference

Not ReportedNR

CA2 CA-ELAP (CDPH)

OR-NELAP (OSPHL)OR1

Notes:

(1) The reported MDL and PQL are based on prep ratio variation and analytical dilution.

(2) The suffix [2C] of specific analytes signifies that the reported result is taken from the instrument's second column.

(3) Results are wet unless otherwise specified.

3275 Walnut Avenue, Signal Hill, CA 90755 � Tel: 562-989-4045 � Fax: 562-989-4040 � www.atlglobal.com Page 5 of 6



�

&DUPHQ�$JXLOD

)URP� 5LFN�'D\��GD\#JHRFRQLQF�FRP!

6HQW� :HGQHVGD\��-XQH��������������30

7R� &DUPHQ�$JXLOD

&F� FXVWRPHU�UHODWLRQV#DWOJOREDO�FRP

6XEMHFW� 5(��$GG
O��5HVXOWV��,QYRLFH���(70$�%XV�<DUG���(�������������$7/���������

,]U����u�vX�

�

Wo������v�oÇÌ����u�o��,ðrí�~íõìíõòðrìó��(}��d�>W�>���X�

�

ðôrZ��d�d��o����X�

�

�

dZ�vl�U�

Z]�lX�

�

�

Z���WllÁÁÁXP�}�}v]v�X�}ul����Ço�A��}�]�]}vW���}oµ��Vu��P]vro�(�WìVu��P]vr

�}�WìVÁ]��ZWõò��VZ�]PZ�WòóXñ��VÌr]v��ÆWîñíòòíïíîVÀ]�]�]o]�ÇWÀ]�]�o�Vu�}rÁ���r��Ço�W��µ���Vu�}rÁ]��Zr�����v�WìVu�}r

Z�]PZ�r�����v�WìVu�}rÁ���r�]���v��ro�(�WìVu�}rÁ���r�]���v��r�}�WìVu�}rÁ���r�]���v��r�]PZ�WìVu�}rÁ���r�]���v��r

�}��}uWìVu�}r�}�]�]}vrZ}�]Ì}v��oWo�(�Vu�}r�}�]�]}vrZ}�]Ì}v��or��o��]À�W��Æ�Vu�}r�}�]�]}vrÀ���]��oW���}oµ��Vu�}r

�}�]�]}vrÀ���]��or��o��]À�Wo]v�Vu�}rÁ]��Zr�����v�WìVu�}rZ�]PZ�r�����v�WìVu�}rÁ]��Zr��o��]À�W��P�Vu�}rZ�]PZ�r

��o��]À�W��P���}W�oo}Á}À��o��A�(��}W�µ��}vA���E�Richard Day, CEG, CHG | President  

GEOCON CONSULTANTS, INC. 
6671 Brisa Street, Livermore, California 94550 
P|925.371.5900 ext. 401    M|925.872.5860 
day@geoconinc.com / www.geoconinc.com / Facebook / Linkedin 

�

Bay Area ~ Sacramento ~ Fairfield ~ Los Angeles ~ Orange County ~ Riverside County ~ Coachella Valley ~ San 
Diego 
 

Geotechnical Engineering      Environmental Services      Engineering Geology      Construction Inspection 
        Land Development      Transportation      Infrastructure      Institutional      Brownfields/Redevelopment      Natural Resources 
 
 

�

�

�

&�}uW����u�v��Pµ]o��D���u�vX�Pµ]o����oPo}��oX�}uE��

^�v�W�t��v����ÇU�:µv��ìñU�îìíõ�ñWñò�WD�

d}W�Z]�l���Ç�D��Ç�P�}�}v]v�X�}uE�

��W��µ��}u��X��o��]}v����oPo}��oX�}u�

^µ�i���W�����o�Z��µo��l�/vÀ}]���r��dD���µ��z���U��õíïïrìîrìîU��d>·�íõìíõòð�

�

'}}���(���v}}v�Z]�lU��

�

Wo�����(]v��Ç}µ�����µo���(}���Z����}À����}i���������Z��X�/(�/���v�(µ��Z������]��U��o�����o���u��lv}ÁX��

Page 6 of 6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 APPENDIX  B



1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65

A B C D E F G H I J K L

Approximate Chi Square Value (8.45, α)       2.998 Adjusted Chi Square Value (8.45, β)       2.525

nu hat (MLE)       9.489 nu star (bias corrected)       8.45
Adjusted Level of Significance (β)      0.029

k hat (MLE)       0.395 k star (bias corrected MLE)       0.352
Theta hat (MLE)    145 Theta star (bias corrected MLE)    162.8

Maximum    200 Median      27.5
SD      63.92 CV       1.115

For gamma distributed detected data, BTVs and UCLs may be computed using gamma distribution on KM estimates
Minimum      0.01 Mean      57.33

Gamma ROS Statistics using Imputed Non-Detects
GROS may not be used when data set has > 50% NDs with many tied observations at multiple DLs

GROS may not be used when kstar of detects is small such as <1.0, especially when the sample size is small (e.g., <15-20)
For such situations, GROS method may yield incorrect values of UCLs and BTVs

This is especially true when the sample size is small.

Mean (detects)      68.79

Theta hat (MLE)      55.25 Theta star (bias corrected MLE)      73.32
nu hat (MLE)      24.9 nu star (bias corrected)      18.76

Detected data appear Gamma Distributed at 5% Significance Level

Gamma Statistics on Detected Data Only
k hat (MLE)       1.245 k star (bias corrected MLE)       0.938

K-S Test Statistic       0.21 Kolmogorov-Smirnov GOF
5% K-S Critical Value       0.272Detected data appear Gamma Distributed at 5% Significance Leve

Gamma GOF Tests on Detected Observations Only
A-D Test Statistic       0.326 Anderson-Darling GOF Test

5% A-D Critical Value       0.744Detected data appear Gamma Distributed at 5% Significance Leve

97.5% KM Chebyshev UCL    173.5 99% KM Chebyshev UCL    242.3

   95% KM (z) UCL      88.04    95% KM Bootstrap t UCL    104.8
90% KM Chebyshev UCL    113.2 95% KM Chebyshev UCL    138.5

KM SD      61.04    95% KM (BCA) UCL      89.33
95% KM (t) UCL      90.85 95% KM (Percentile Bootstrap) UCL      88.75

Detected Data appear Normal at 5% Significance Level

Kaplan-Meier (KM) Statistics using Normal Critical Values and other Nonparametric UCLs
KM Mean      57.49 KM Standard Error of Mean      18.57

Lilliefors Test Statistic       0.238 Lilliefors GOF Test
5% Lilliefors Critical Value       0.262 Detected Data appear Normal at 5% Significance Level

Normal GOF Test on Detects Only
Shapiro Wilk Test Statistic       0.853 Shapiro Wilk GOF Test

5% Shapiro Wilk Critical Value       0.842 Detected Data appear Normal at 5% Significance Level

Mean of Logged Detects       3.778 SD of Logged Detects       1.066

Median Detects      42.5 CV Detects       0.933
Skewness Detects       1.099 Kurtosis Detects       0.261

Variance Detects   4117 Percent Non-Detects      16.67%
Mean Detects      68.79 SD Detects      64.16

Minimum Detect       6.9 Minimum Non-Detect       1
Maximum Detect    200 Maximum Non-Detect       1

Number of Detects      10 Number of Non-Detects       2
Number of Distinct Detects       9 Number of Distinct Non-Detects       1

General Statistics
Total Number of Observations      12 Number of Distinct Observations      10

umber of Bootstrap Operations   2000

Lead

From File   WorkSheet.xls
Full Precision   OFF

Confidence Coefficient   95%

UCL Statistics for Data Sets with Non-Detects

User Selected Options
Date/Time of Computation   ProUCL 5.16/19/2019 3:10:30 PM



66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99

100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119

A B C D E F G H I J K L

Note: Suggestions regarding the selection of a 95% UCL are provided to help the user to select the most appropriate 95% UCL.
Recommendations are based upon data size, data distribution, and skewness.

These recommendations are based upon the results of the simulation studies summarized in Singh, Maichle, and Lee (2006).
However, simulations results will not cover all Real World data sets; for additional insight the user may want to consult a statistician

Suggested UCL to Use
95% KM (t) UCL      90.85

DL/2 is not a recommended method, provided for comparisons and historical reasons

Nonparametric Distribution Free UCL Statistics
Detected Data appear Normal Distributed at 5% Significance Level

SD in Original Scale      63.84 SD in Log Scale       1.99
   95% t UCL (Assumes normality)      90.5    95% H-Stat UCL   2913

DL/2 Statistics
DL/2 Normal DL/2 Log-Transformed

Mean in Original Scale      57.41 Mean in Log Scale       3.033

KM SD (logged)       1.684    95% Critical H Value (KM-Log)       4.281
KM Standard Error of Mean (logged)       0.512

KM SD (logged)       1.684    95% Critical H Value (KM-Log)       4.281
KM Standard Error of Mean (logged)       0.512    95% H-UCL (KM -Log)    845.6

Statistics using KM estimates on Logged Data and Assuming Lognormal Distribution
KM Mean (logged)       3.149 KM Geo Mean      23.31

   95% BCA Bootstrap UCL      91.5    95% Bootstrap t UCL    105.5
   95% H-UCL (Log ROS)    351.3

SD in Original Scale      63.36 SD in Log Scale       1.392
   95% t UCL (assumes normality of ROS data)      90.76    95% Percentile Bootstrap UCL      88.08

Detected Data appear Lognormal at 5% Significance Level

Lognormal ROS Statistics Using Imputed Non-Detects
Mean in Original Scale      57.91 Mean in Log Scale       3.352

Lilliefors Test Statistic       0.162 Lilliefors GOF Test
5% Lilliefors Critical Value       0.262 Detected Data appear Lognormal at 5% Significance Level

Lognormal GOF Test on Detected Observations Only
Shapiro Wilk Test Statistic       0.958 Shapiro Wilk GOF Test

5% Shapiro Wilk Critical Value       0.842 Detected Data appear Lognormal at 5% Significance Level

   5% Gamma Approximate KM-UCL (use when n>=50)    111.9    95% Gamma Adjusted KM-UCL (use when n<50)    124.6

Gamma Kaplan-Meier (KM) Statistics
Approximate Chi Square Value (17.30, α)       8.887 Adjusted Chi Square Value (17.30, β)       7.983

80% gamma percentile (KM)      94.41 90% gamma percentile (KM)    143.3
95% gamma percentile (KM)    193.6 99% gamma percentile (KM)    313.4

nu hat (KM)      21.29 nu star (KM)      17.3
theta hat (KM)      64.81 theta star (KM)      79.75

Variance (KM)   3726 SE of Mean (KM)      18.57
k hat (KM)       0.887 k star (KM)       0.721

Estimates of Gamma Parameters using KM Estimates
Mean (KM)      57.49 SD (KM)      61.04

95% Gamma Approximate UCL (use when n>=50)    161.6 95% Gamma Adjusted UCL (use when n<50)    191.9



1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

A B C D E F G H I J K L M

     12      10
      1

      0.5       2.283
      3.9       2.35
      1.354       0.391
      0.593     -0.27

      0.863

      0.243

      0.891
      0.741
      0.217
      0.248

      2.108
      1.083
     50.59

      3.46       3.695

    -0.693       0.57
      1.361       0.84

      4.907       4.287
      5.131       6.301
      8.601

      2.926       2.985
      2.893       2.93

General Statistics

Normal GOF Test
Shapiro Wilk GOF Test

5% Shapiro Wilk Critical Value
Lilliefors Test Statistic

Data appear Normal at 5% Significance Level

Assuming Normal Distribution

   95% CLT UCL    95% Jackknife UCL
   95% Standard Bootstrap UCL    95% Bootstrap-t UCL

Nonparametric Distribution Free UCL Statistics
Data appear to follow a Discernible Distribution at 5% Significance Level

Nonparametric Distribution Free UCLs

   95% Chebyshev (MVUE) UCL  97.5% Chebyshev (MVUE) UCL
   99% Chebyshev (MVUE) UCL

   95% H-UCL    90% Chebyshev (MVUE) UCL
Assuming Lognormal Distribution

Maximum of Logged Data SD of logged Data
Minimum of Logged Data Mean of logged Data

Lognormal Statistics

Data appear Approximate Lognormal at 5% Significance Level
5% Lilliefors Critical Value

5% Shapiro Wilk Critical Value
Lilliefors Test Statistic

Lognormal GOF Test
Shapiro Wilk Test Statistic

   5% Approximate Gamma UCL (use when n>=50))    95% Adjusted Gamma UCL (use when n<50)
Assuming Gamma Distribution

Adjusted Level of Significance

MLE Mean (bias corrected)

Theta hat (MLE)
nu hat (MLE)

Theta star (bias corrected MLE)
nu star (bias corrected)

k hat (MLE)
Gamma Statistics

k star (bias corrected MLE)

5% K-S Critical Value
Detected data follow Appr. Gamma Distribution at 5% Significance Level

  pear Gamma Distributed at 5% Significance Level

5% A-D Critical Value
K-S Test Statistic

 Not Gamma Distributed at 5% Significance Level
Kolmogorov-Smirnov Gamma GOF Test

A-D Test Statistic
Gamma GOF Test

Anderson-Darling Gamma GOF Test

   95% Student's-t UCL
   95% Normal UCL

5% Lilliefors Critical Value Data appear Normal at 5% Significance Level

Shapiro Wilk Test Statistic

Coefficient of Variation Skewness

Maximum Median
SD Std. Error of Mean

Number of Missing Observations
Minimum Mean

Total Number of Observations Number of Distinct Observations

ber of Bootstrap Operations   2000

Arsenic

From File   E9133-02-02 ProUCL Output AS and Ni.xls
Full Precision   OFF

Confidence Coefficient   95%

UCL Statistics for Uncensored Full Data Sets

User Selected Options
Date/Time of Computation   ProUCL 5.16/20/2019 2:49:38 PM



73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99

100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144

A B C D E F G H I J K L M
      2.852       2.892
      2.883
      3.456       3.987

      2.985

     12      10

     88      25.5
     19.41       5.603
      0.584       2.4

      0.243

      1.095

k hat (MLE)       4.894 k star (bias corrected MLE)       3.726
Theta hat (MLE)       6.793 Theta star (bias corrected MLE)       8.923
nu hat (MLE)    117.5 nu star (bias corrected)      89.43
MLE Mean (bias corrected)      33.25 MLE Sd (bias corrected)      17.22

Approximate Chi Square Value (0.05)      68.63
Adjusted Level of Significance      0.029 Adjusted Chi Square Value      65.85

Assuming Gamma Distribution
   95% Approximate Gamma UCL (use when n>=5     43.33    95% Adjusted Gamma UCL (use when n<50)      45.16

Lognormal GOF Test
Shapiro Wilk Test Statistic       0.837 Shapiro Wilk Lognormal GOF Test
5% Shapiro Wilk Critical Value       0.859 Data Not Lognormal at 5% Significance Level
Lilliefors Test Statistic       0.292 Lilliefors Lognormal GOF Test
5% Lilliefors Critical Value       0.243 Data Not Lognormal at 5% Significance Level
Data Not Lognormal at 5% Significance Level

Lognormal Statistics
Minimum of Logged Data       2.89 Mean of logged Data       3.398
Maximum of Logged Data       4.477 SD of logged Data       0.438

Assuming Lognormal Distribution
   95% H-UCL      43.28    90% Chebyshev (MVUE) UCL      45.27
   95% Chebyshev (MVUE) UCL      50.99  97.5% Chebyshev (MVUE) UCL      58.93
   99% Chebyshev (MVUE) UCL      74.52

Gamma Statistics

Data Not Gamma Distributed at 5% Significance Level
5% K-S Critical Value

5% A-D Critical Value
K-S Test Statistic

Gamma GOF Test
A-D Test Statistic Anderson-Darling Gamma GOF Test

   95% Student's-t UCL

Assuming Normal Distribution

Data Not Normal at 5% Significance Level

   95% Normal UCL

Lilliefors GOF Test
5% Lilliefors Critical Value

Lilliefors Test Statistic
Data Not Normal at 5% Significance Level

Normal GOF Test
Shapiro Wilk Test Statistic

5% Shapiro Wilk Critical Value

Coefficient of Variation Skewness

Maximum Median
SD Std. Error of Mean

Minimum

Total Number of Observations Number of Distinct Observations

Nickel

General Statistics

Note: For highly negatively-skewed data, confidence limits (e.g., Chen, Johnson, Lognormal, and Gamma) may not b
reliable.  Chen's and Johnson's methods provide adjustments for positvely skewed data sets.

 Suggestions regarding the selection of a 95% UCL are provided to help the user to select the most appropriate 95% 
  d upon data size, data distribution, and skewness.

          es summarized in Singh, Maichle, and Lee (2006).
             insight the user may want to consult a statistician.

95% Student's-t UCL
Suggested UCL to Use

   90% Chebyshev(Mean, Sd) UCL    95% Chebyshev(Mean, Sd) UCL
 97.5% Chebyshev(Mean, Sd) UCL

   95% Hall's Bootstrap UCL    95% Percentile Bootstrap UCL
   95% BCA Bootstrap UCL



145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164

A B C D E F G H I J K L M

Nonparametric Distribution Free UCL Statistics
Data do not follow a Discernible Distribution (0.05)

Nonparametric Distribution Free UCLs
   95% CLT UCL      42.47    95% Jackknife UCL      43.31
   95% Standard Bootstrap UCL      42.12    95% Bootstrap-t UCL      61.48
   95% Hall's Bootstrap UCL      79.55    95% Percentile Bootstrap UCL      43.08
   95% BCA Bootstrap UCL      46.75
   90% Chebyshev(Mean, Sd) UCL      50.06    95% Chebyshev(Mean, Sd) UCL      57.67
 97.5% Chebyshev(Mean, Sd) UCL      68.24    99% Chebyshev(Mean, Sd) UCL      89

Suggested UCL to Use
95% Student's-t UCL      43.31 or 95% Modified-t UCL      43.96

Note: Suggestions regarding the selection of a 95% UCL are provided to help the user to select the most appropriate 95% UCL.
Recommendations are based upon data size, data distribution, and skewness.
These recommendations are based upon the results of the simulation studies summarized in Singh, Maichle, and Lee (2006).
However, simulations results will not cover all Real World data sets; for additional insight the user may want to consult a statistician.



Sample ID
Total Lead

(mg/kg)
WET Lead

(mg/l)

Predicted
WET Lead

(mg/l)

Residual
WET Lead

(mg/l)

Squared Residual
WET Lead

(mg/l)

H1-0 130 4.1 5.3 -1.16 1.35
H3-1 71 3.1 1.9 1.17 1.38
H4-1 200 11 9.2 1.78 3.19

H5-0.5 57 1.9 1.1 0.76 0.58
H5-1.5 130 2.7 5.3 -2.56 6.56

y = 0.0565x - 2.0839
R² = 0.76

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

0 50 100 150 200 250

W
ET

 L
ea

d 
(m

g/
l)

Total Lead (mg/kg)

Total vs WET Lead

-5

-4

-3

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

4

5

0 50 100 150 200 250

R
es

id
ua

l W
ET

 L
ea

d 
(m

g/
l)

Total Lead (mg/kg)

Total vs Residual WET Lead

E9133-02-02 PSI Report Tables; WET Regression Page 1 of 1



 Estimate #
 

ESTIMATE Date

7969 Enterprise Drive   Customer
Newark, CA 94560
510-744-2190 office
510-713-8541 fax CA
BAR# AB220336

E-Mail:

VIN: Terms:
YEAR MAKE MODEL LICENSE NO. SPEEDOMETER NET COD

LABOR PARTS PAINT

HOURS AMOUNT AMOUNT

202.50 $16,065.00

Labor Sign/Decal Amt.

18,225.00$   total hrs labor

Materials Amount 16,065.00$   202.50

$499.50 499.50$        Labor rate
-$             90.00$    

Sublet Amount -$             per hour

$4,725.00 4,725.00$      
9.75% CA Sales Tx 1,615.04$      

41,129.54$    

-$             

-$             

Customer Copy Customer P.O. #

Estmate Amount

  Thank-You Estimate Amount
Deposit

Balance Due

Total Paint

Sublet Description Total Sign/Decals

CLASSIC GRAPHICS TO PICK UP AND DELIVER Sublet

 Total Labor
Body Materials Description Total Parts

RIVETS AND BOLTS Total Materials

Sign 

Shop

DESCRIPTION OF SIGN/DECAL

NOTE: CUSTOMER CAN DROP OFF AND PICK UP BUSES AT 
CLASSIC GRAPHICS TO SAVE IN DELIVERY FEE'S

 INCLUDES ONE HINGE AND ONE TUBING FRAME SUPPORT
FROM FLOOR TO ROOF

PASSENGER

CUSTOM CUT CLEAR POLYCARBONATE 3/16 TO FIT

SUPPLY AND INSTALL PROTECTIVE BARRIER BETWEEN DRIVER AND

                                     EMERY GO ROUND
                                  NEW DRIVERS BARRIER
                                  PRICE IS FOR 27 BUSES

R/R/P/P/D DESCRIPTION OF WORK PERFORMED

Bin Number DESCRIPTION OF PARTS AND MATERIALS 

Unit Number: BUSES

INTER BUSES

City/State/Zip Walnut Creek

Fax NA karen@graybowenscott.com

SIGNS, DECALS & CUSTOM VEHICLE WRAPS  

Name/Division Emeryville Transportation Management Association 451 City of Newark 

Address 1211 Newell Ave. #200

T & J Lewis Inc.

CLASSIC GRAPHICS June 2, 2020

COMPLETE PAINTING & BODY REPAIRS - FABRICATION Repair Order # ESTIMATE

94596
Phone 1-925-899-2360             Karen Boggs

mailto:karen@graybowenscott.com


 Estimate #
 

ESTIMATE Date

7969 Enterprise Drive   Customer
Newark, CA 94560
510-744-2190 office
510-713-8541 fax CA
BAR# AB220336

E-Mail:

VIN: Terms:
YEAR MAKE MODEL LICENSE NO. SPEEDOMETER NET 30

LABOR PARTS PAINT

HOURS AMOUNT AMOUNT

8.50 $595.00

Labor Sign/Decal Amt.

765.00$       total hrs labor

Materials Amount 595.00$       8.50

$18.50 18.50$         Labor rate
-$             90.00$    

Sublet Amount -$             per hour

$175.00 175.00$        
9.75% CA Sales Tx 59.82$          

1,613.32$     

-$             
-$             

-$             

karen@graybowenscott.com

SIGNS, DECALS & CUSTOM VEHICLE WRAPS  

Name/Division West Berkeley Bus 451 City of Newark

Address 1211 Newell Ave. #200

T & J Lewis Inc.

CLASSIC GRAPHICS June 9, 2020

COMPLETE PAINTING & BODY REPAIRS - FABRICATION Repair Order # ESTIMATE

94596
Phone 1-925-899-2360             Karen Boggs

Unit Number: NA

INTER/FORDBUSES

City/State/Zip Walnut Creek

Fax NA

                                    NEW DRIVERS BARRIER
                                       PRICE PER BUS

R/R/P/P/D DESCRIPTION OF WORK PERFORMED

Bin Number DESCRIPTION OF PARTS AND MATERIALS 

CUSTOM CUT CLEAR POLYCARBONATE TO FIT
TWO STAINLESS STEEL HINGES

SUPPLY AND INSTALL PROTECTIVE BARRIER BETWEEN DRIVER AND 
PASSENGERS

NOTE CAN CLEAN AND DISINFECT

Sign 

Shop

DESCRIPTION OF SIGN/DECAL

Total Paint

Sublet Description Total Sign/Decals

PICK UP AND DELIVER Sublet

 Total Labor
Body Materials Description Total Parts

RIVETS / BOLTS Total Materials

Customer Copy Customer P.O. #

 
Estmate Amount

  Thank-You Estimate Amount
Deposit

Balance Due

mailto:karen@graybowenscott.com

	June 2020 Agenda
	May2020_meeting minutes_final
	Airspace Lease - ALA-580-34 JB 6-4-20
	Preliminary Site Investigation Report
	COVER
	E9133-02-02 PSI Report DRAFT
	REPORT LIMITATIONS
	PRELIMINARY SITE INVESTIGATION REPORT

	1.0 Introduction
	1.1 Project Description and Proposed Improvements
	1.2 General Objectives

	2.0 BACKGROUND
	2.1 Hazardous Waste Determination Criteria
	2.2 Environmental Screening Levels

	3.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES
	3.1 Pre-field Activities
	3.2 Field Activities

	4.0 INVESTIGATIVE METHODS
	4.1 Sampling Procedures
	4.2 Laboratory Analyses
	4.3 Laboratory QA/QC

	5.0 INVESTIGATIVE RESULTS
	5.1 Subsurface Conditions
	5.2 Laboratory Analytical Results
	5.3 Laboratory Quality Assurance/Quality Control
	5.4 Statistical Evaluation for Lead Detected in Soil Samples
	5.4.1 Calculating the UCLs for the Arithmetic Mean
	5.4.2 Correlation of Total and WET Lead


	6.0 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
	6.1 CAM 17 Metals in Soil
	6.2 Petroleum Hydrocarbons in Soil
	6.3  Organic Compounds in Soil
	6.4 Worker Protection
	6.5 Excess Soil Disposal


	Vic Map
	Site Plan-02
	1
	Lead 

	2
	Metals - Soil

	3
	Organics - Soil

	Appendix A-color
	1901964
	1901964add
	1901964add2
	Appendix B-color
	Lead Stats
	Sheet1

	As and Ni Stats
	Sheet1

	b
	WET Regression


	06.20 ESTIMATE BUS BARRIER Quote
	06.20 ESTIMATE INTERNATIONAL-FORD BARRIER

